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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Golden
Century International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of the Group
for the twelve months ended 31 December 2021 (“Year 2021” or the “Year”).

In 2021, the world encountered tremendous changes and challenges unseen
in a century, amidst which the Group actively embraced new changes,
spared no effort to capitalise on new opportunities, and firmly followed the
development path under its “industry + finance” dual-driver approach. The
Group also further implemented its core strategy of “based in Hong Kong,
further cultivating its business in the Greater Bay Area and in pursuit of global
deployment”, and continuously optimised its operating structure.

Against the backdrop of the global pandemic, the Group strived to diversify its
business and improve its financial position. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the total revenue of the Group amounted to HK$36,931,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 47.06% as compared with last year;
and the loss for the Year was approximately HK$62,429,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 3.40% as compared with last year.

In order to improve its financial position, optimise its shareholder structure
and raise funds to promote its rapid development, the Group carried out two
rounds of placings in 2021, which raised a total of approximately HK$109
million and introduced two influential new shareholders, namely Wealthking
Investments Limited, a well-known listed company in Hong Kong (formerly
known as OP Financial Investments Limited, stock code: 01140.HK), and
Innovest Investment Fund SPC-Innovest Special Opportunities SP, a private
equity fund. As at 31 December 2021, the shareholders’ equity of the Group
was HK$24,752,000 (2020: capital deficiency of HK$383,108,000).

COALBED METHANE BUSINESS

In the context of the general trend of the world’s implementation of “dual-
carbon” strategy, building a green, low-carbon, efficient and safe energy
system has become the consensus of mainstream countries, the Su’nan
coalbed methane project in Suzhou City, Anhui Province, China (the “Su’nan
Coalbed Methane Project”), owned by Canada Can-Elite Energy Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, achieved a series of significant progress during the
Year.
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In August 2021, the Group announced that a new horizontal well located in
Area A (part of Luling Block with an area of 23.686 square kilometres that
has its proven reserves submitted) (“Area A”) was successfully ignited and
commenced gas production, which will benefit the subsequent preparation
of the overall development proposal, marking that the development of the
Su’nan Coalbed Methane Project has entered into a new stage. In September
2021, the Group also announced the appointment of Apaisi Oil & Gas
Consulting Limited (the English name is for identification purpose only), a
professional technical service company, to assist in the preparation of the
overall development proposal report, thus providing solid support for the
future development of the project. In addition, the Group will continue
to devote resources in Area B (primary part of Su'nan Block with an area
of 401.942 square kilometres, with proven reserve yet to be submitted),
endeavouring to verify reserve therein as soon as possible.

In order to promote the Group’s strength in coalbed methane, the Group
appointed Professor Zhang Suian, a leading figure in China’s coalbed
methane industry, as a senior consultant for its coalbed methane business in
September 2021. Professor Zhang is known as one of the earliest pioneers in
coalbed methane research, exploration and development in China, and was
elected as an academician of the European Academy of Natural Sciences last
year.

FINANCIAL AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

Currently, the Group is the holder of Type 1, 2, 4, 5 and 9 licences within the
meaning under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong), a principal intermediary registration within the meaning under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the laws of
Hong Kong), money lenders licence and insurance brokerage licence, which
has developed a good synergy and complementation among its licence-
required businesses, and thus can provide customers with comprehensive
one-stop financial services. Meanwhile, the prominent advantages of
integrated comprehensive services have also driven the orderly development
of its securities, asset management, wealth management and other businesses,
which helped the Group’s financial sector to continuously achieve new
breakthroughs.

Adhering to the development strategy of “based in Hong Kong, connecting
the mainland and radiating to the world”, the Group established two
wholly-owned subsidiaries in Changsha City, Hunan Province and Zhuhai
City, Guangdong Province, China during the Year, thereby further expanding
the Group’s business footprints. The subsidiaries will effectively promote
the financial connection between China and Hong Kong, and will help the
Group to become a more professional and influential financial service brand.

In addition, in April 2021, the Group appointed Professor Wong Man
Hung Patrick, a well-known financial review expert in Hong Kong, as an
independent non-executive director, adding more authoritative support to the
Group'’s development in the field of professional financial services in Hong
Kong.
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COMPREHENSIVE HEALTHCARE BUSINESS

The Group has consistently paid close attention to investment opportunities
of high-growth potential, leading technology and high technical barriers
in the field of comprehensive healthcare. In 2021, the Group carried out
a diversified layout in the field of comprehensive healthcare, and invested
into a fund which focuses on investment in pharmaceutical technology
companies.

In addition, the Group’s existing business segment in manufacturing and
selling medical devices and epidemic-prevention supplies and products
continued to develop.

PROSPECTS

The “T4th Five-Year Plan” promulgated by the PRC government emphasises
the active promotion of low-carbon and clean transformation to achieve the
goal of carbon peak and carbon neutrality. Given that the global warming and
associated environmental problems have deteriorated rapidly, the public’s
awareness of environmental protection is gradually rising, and all walks of
life of our society are showing their grave concerns on the national policies.
Moreover, as coalbed methane is a clean energy, it has come to the country’s
great concern, and that the Group will continue such energy development to
tie in with the national policy. In the future, the Group will do its utmost to
closely follow the national plan for clean energy development and continue
to, develop the coalbed methane projects and make contributions to achieve
the goal of carbon neutrality.

During the Year, the development of the financial and industrial sectors
of the Group was promoted in an orderly manner, leading to continuous
expansion in its business scope and delivering greater results in its project
execution. Looking ahead to 2022, the global economy is still unstable
under the shadow of COVID-19 pandemic and the political uncertainties in
the world. The Group will make concerted efforts to enhance its operation
and management efficiency, and to equip itself to cope with the upcoming
stringent business environment. The Group will adhere to its vision of
“conducting constant innovation and forging a centennial enterprise”,
continue to consolidate the foundation of its businesses, and firmly move
towards its grand blueprint of the “Centennial Golden Century” in a more
stable, efficient and high-spirited manner.

Pan Jibiao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR D

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) hereby presents the
audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of HK$36,931,000 for the Year, which
represented a decrease of 47.06% when compared with that of last year (2020:
HK$69,766,000).

Due to the keen market competition, the revenue generated from the sales of
medical devices and epidemic-prevention supplies and products under the
comprehensive healthcare business recorded a decrease of about 82.64%
from HK$60,399,000 for 2020 to HK$10,488,000 for the Year.

In addition, there was a further decline in the electronic components business
with a decrease of 74.81% from HK$7,035,000 for 2020 to HK$1,772,000
for the Year. However, as far as the financial sector is concerned, there
was a gradual business development in the Year. The contribution from the
financial business and wealth management business were approximately
HK$19,520,000 (2020: HK$809,000) and HK$5,151,000 (2020:
HK$1,523,000) respectively.

It was also noted that none of revenue came from the coalbed methane
exploration and exploitation business for the Year (2020: Nil).

Gross Profit

The Group recorded a gross profit of HK$22,186,000 for the Year which
indicated an increase of about 330.71% when compared with that of last
year (2020: HK$5,151,000). It was mainly attributable to the development of
businesses in the financial sector.

Other Income

The other income increased by about 115.42% from HK$3,457,000 for 2020
to HK$7,447,000 for the Year. It was mainly attributable to the income of
sublease office area to an independent third party as well as some referral
incomes.

Other Gains and Losses

The gains significantly decreased by about 43.82% from HK$72,412,000
for 2020 to HK$40,681,000 for the Year. It was mainly attributable to the
decrease in gain on fair value change of convertible notes — embedded
derivatives by HK$27,216,000 to HK$34,383,000 for the Year.
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BRI

Administrative Expenses

The Group recorded the administrative expenses of HK$69,522,000 for the
Year, which indicated an increase of about 10.21% from HK$63,081,000
of last year. The increment was mainly attributable to the increase in
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use
assets and staff cost.

(Loss)/Profit from Operations

The Group turned from the profit of HK$6,056,000 of last year to a loss
of HK$10,974,000 for the Year, which was mainly attributable to (i) the
decrease in other gains and losses, (ii) the increase in administrative expenses,
and (iii) the gain on bargain purchase last year, but was partly offset by the
increase in gross profit and other income.

Finance Costs
The finance costs incurred for the Year were HK$53,838,000 (2020:
HK$70,794,000), which were mainly imputed interests on convertible notes.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As reported in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 (“2020 Annual Report”), the Group aimed to build a global
corporate platform with “industry + finance” as a dual driver approach. In
addition to the core business of coalbed methane exploration and production
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the Group has diversified its
business to financial business and comprehensive healthcare business.

Industrial Sector
The industrial sector comprises (a) coalbed methane (“CBM”) business; (b)
comprehensive healthcare business; and (c) electronic components business.

(@ Coalbed Methane (“CBM”) Business

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Canada Can-Elite
Energy Limited (“Can-Elite”), entered into the production sharing
contract (the “PSC”) with China United Coalbed Methane Corporation
Limited (“China United”), a state-owned company which is wholly-
owned by China National Offshore Oil Corporation authorised by the
government of the PRC to partner with foreign companies to explore,
develop and produce CBM resources. Pursuant to the PSC, Can-Elite is
the operator of the Anhui CBM resources and holds 70% of participating
interests in the PSC for a term of 30 years starting from 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRON

The Group explores, develops and produces CBM in Anhui Province
with a total exploration area of 425.628 square kilometres (the “Contract
Area”). As at 31 December 2021, the CBM operation was still in
exploration stage with a total of 46 exploration wells and no revenue
was generated.

The Contract Area is divided into Area A (part of Luling Block with
an area of 23.686 square kilometres that has its proven reserves
submitted) (“Area A”) and Area B (primary part of Su’nan Block with
an area of 401.942 square kilometres, with the proven reserve yet to
be submitted) (“Area B”). Area A can start production as soon as the
overall development proposal has been filed with relevant government
authorities of the PRC. On 10 August 2020, Can-Elite and China United
entered into the fifth modification agreement regarding the PSC (the
“Fifth Modification Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties to the
Fifth Modification Agreement agreed to further extend the exploration
period of Area B for two years from the original expiry date to 31
March 2022. Can-Elite has applied to China United for an extension of
the exploration period under the Fifth Modification Agreement. As of
the date of this report, the relevant extension application is still under
discussion.

On 31 December 2019, the Ministry of Natural Resources has published
the “Opinions on Several Matters Concerning Promoting the Reform of
Mineral Resources Administration (for Trial Implementation)” (No. 7
2019 of the Ministry of Natural Resources) (the “Opinions”). Article 7 of
the Opinion sets out the adjustments to the term of prospecting rights,
pursuant to which the initial registration term of the prospecting rights
can be extended for five years by application. In the application for
extension of the registration of the prospecting rights, the area set out in
the initial exploration permit should be reduced by 25%.
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In 2020, Can-Elite and China United submitted an application for
extension of the registration of the prospecting rights (the “Extension
Application”) to the relevant governmental authorities of the PRC. In the
Extension Application, the original area set out in the initial exploration
permit was reduced by 25% pursuant to Article 7 of the Opinions.
Due to the change of the responsible government authorities for
approving the Extension Application, the vetting processes have been
greatly extended. Under the cooperation with China United and our
tremendous effort, the Extension Application was finally approved in
late October 2021 and the area in the exploration permit was reduced
to 425.628 square kilometres. Even though there was a significant delay
in the Extension Application, the Group managed to proceed with the
development as practicable as we could.

As disclosed in the 2020 Annual Report, one new horizontal well was
drilled in Area A during the year ended 31 December 2020. However,
most of the preparatory and planning works for the CBM project were
delayed due to various factors including the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic and the identification of appropriate engineering team, and
the CBM project was only able to officially resume development and
exploration in November 2020.

Despite the unfavourable weather conditions in Huaibei area, technical
issues and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the drilling of the new
horizontal well in Area A was completed in March 2021. On 4 August
2021, the horizontal well in Area A commenced to produce coalbed
methane. The exploratory and production data obtained from the said
horizontal well is important for the Company’s preparation of the
Overall Development Plan (“ODP”) report and the development of the
CBM business.

In the meantime, after lengthy and prudent selection of service providers
and subsequent negotiations on relevant terms of agreement, Can-
Elite entered into a technical services agreement (the “TS Agreement”)
with Apaisi Oil & Gas Consulting Limited (the English name is for
identification only) Bl J& & i 8 £ i (4 52) AR 2 & (“Apaisi”) on the
preparation of the ODP report at a consideration of RMB2.95 million.
Apaisi is a company established in the PRC with limited liability
specialising in the provision of professional technical services on reserve
assets evaluation, exploration evaluation, oil gas field development
plan and adjustment plan preparation, integrated research on oil gas
reservoirs, unconventional oil and gas field evaluation, and seismic data
processing of all kinds of local and overseas oils and gases.

As of the date of this report, the preparation of the ODP report has been
under progress according to the established timetable, and it is expected
to be completed in the second or third quarter of 2022 and submitted to
the relevant departments.
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In June 2021, China United entered into a letter of intent (“Letter of
Intent”) with a subsidiary of one of the largest trans-regional energy
service enterprises in the PRC (the “Cooperation Party”) for cooperation
in respect of development and utilisation of coalbed methane from the
Su’nan coalbed methane project of the Group in Anhui, the PRC. In
accordance with the Letter of Intent, China United would supply the
pilot production of gas from the Su’nan coalbed methane project to the
Cooperation Party, subject to, among others, the development of a gas
treatment centre near the said horizontal well by the Group and China
United and the construction of the connecting pipeline network by the
Cooperation Party. The Letter of Intent is not legally binding and not
enforceable and any further cooperation is subject to negotiation on the
terms of the formal agreement among the parties. The local exploration
team of the Company considered that the cooperation would provide an
opportunity to start with initial commercial sales, so that it would help
demonstrating the commerciality of the Su’nan coalbed methane project
which would be conducive to the preparation of the ODP report.

During the Year, Can-Elite continued to make new drilling of vertical
exploration wells in Area B, in an effort to compile the reserves report as
soon as possible.

In order to strengthen the Group's strength in the CBM business, the
Group appointed Professor Zhang Suian, an authority in China’s
coalbed methane industry, as the senior consultant of the CBM business
during the Year. The Group believed that Professor Zhang's expertise in
coalbed methane, coal and petroleum industries will contribute to the
development of the Group’s CBM business.

If there is any update on further development of the business of the
Group, the Company will keep the shareholders and potential investors
fully informed by way of publishing voluntary announcement(s).

As at 31 December 2021, despite a gain on fair value change
of the embedded derivative portion of the convertible notes of
HK$34,383,000 (2020: HK$61,599,000), a loss of HK$43,834,000 for
CBM business (2020: HK$27,152,000) was recorded mainly due to
the amortisation of the PSC of HK$4,754,000 (2020: HK$5,035,000),
the imputed interest on convertible notes of HK$48,388,000 (2020:
HK$51,478,000), depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of HK$9,873,000 (2020: HK$8,065,000), impairment
loss of HK$1,670,000 (2020: HK$1,946,000) on property, plant and
equipment and impairment loss of HK$5,342,000 on the PSC in 2021
(2020: HK$11,376,000).
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Comprehensive Healthcare Business

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, the global demand
for personal protective gears and equipment has increased rapidly.
In particular, the demand for meltblown fabrics used for the filtration
layer in face masks had skyrocketed. In light of this, the Group officially
embarked on the new business segment in manufacturing and selling
medical devices and epidemic-prevention supplies and products in May
2020, and the management of the Group has renamed the categorised
business as “Comprehensive Healthcare” with a view to further
reflecting the business strategies of the Company thereafter.

During the Year, the Group derived revenue of approximately
HK$10,488,000 (2020: HK$60,399,000) and a loss of approximately
HK$692,000 (2020: profit of approximately HK$619,000) from this
business, mainly from the sales of meltblown fabrics used for the
filtration layer in face masks and sales of related raw materials.

Due to the stable situation of epidemic in the PRC, the demand for
meltblown fabrics, related equipment and raw materials has gradually
decreased, and hence the Group has decelerated the development of
its manufacture and distribution correspondingly during the Year. On
the other hand, the Group has explored other opportunity to invest
US$300,000 into a fund which focuses on investment in pharmaceutical
technology companies.

Electronic Components Business

Due to the fact that the global consumables market has been sliding
into a recession, the revenue generated from the electronic components
segment dropped to approximately HK$1,772,000 which represented a
decrease of approximately 74.81% and recorded a loss of approximately
HK$1,115,000 (2020: loss of approximately HK$733,000) when
compared with last year. In view of the stringent market situation, the
Group will continue to monitor the development of this business and
will not rule out the possibility of scaling down or even disposing of this
business segment in the near future with an aim to concentrate available
resources on the core business of the Group.

Financial Sector

The financial sector includes (a) financial business; (b) wealth management

business; and (c) proprietary investment business. Members of the Group

possess Type 1,

2, 4, 5 and 9 licences within the meaning under the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong
(“SFO”)), money lenders licence under Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163

of the laws of Hong Kong), a principal intermediary registration within the

meaning under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Cap. 485

of the laws of Hong Kong) and insurance brokerage company licence within
the meaning under the Insurance Ordinance (Cap. 41 of the laws of Hong

Kong), so as to provide our customers with a one-stop financial and wealth
management services. The Group has recruited qualified and experienced
personnel during the Year.
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The Group has held some conferences and sharing sessions with our
customers under a brand name “ 12 B % 38 ” to provide the latest market
information to our customers. In addition to the subsidiary in Shenzhen, the
Group has set up two subsidiaries in Changsha City, Hunan Province and
Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, respectively to find out more
new business opportunities and potential customers in the domestic market
during the Year.

To cope with the requirement of additional high quality business projects, the
Group signed a strategic cooperation agreement with 1t 7/ 1 B E 1% & &
30 (Beijing China Enterprise Roadshow Investment Management Center)
(the English name is for identification only) in June 2021. Through large-
scale venture investment activities, the Group expects to provide a platform
for project resources, set up funds to acquire startup projects with growth
potential, and expand the scale of domestic financial business and explore
more new opportunities in cross-border finance and markets in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

(@ Financial Business
The financial business recorded a gradual development during the Year,
amid the volatile financial market under the influence of the COVID-19
pandemic and Sino-US’s tension. During the Year, the financial
business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$19,520,000 (2020:
HK$809,000) and a profit of approximately HK$4,497,000 (2020: loss
of approximately HK$5,131,000).

With the Group’s concerted effort and proactive development strategy,
the Group held 2,687 client accounts (31 December 2020: 270) and
client assets of approximately HK$56,852,000 (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$20 million) as at 31 December 2021.

(b) Wealth Management Business

Even though the border restriction between the PRC and Hong Kong has
not yet been lifted, the business has recorded a satisfactory development
during the Year. During the Year, more insurance professionals were
recruited by the Group to provide valuable wealth management and
insurance solutions and advices to our customers. During the Year, the
segment revenue and profit amounted to approximately HK$5,151,000
(2020: HK$1,523,000) and approximately HK$428,000 (2020:
HK$1,038,000) respectively.
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(c) Proprietary Investment Business
Under the impact of pandemic, tense Sino-US relations and global
political uncertainty, the stock market remained volatile during the Year.
Thus, the Group has adopted a more prudent approach in proprietary
investment and recorded a loss of approximately HK$946,000 during
the Year (2020: loss of approximately HK$4,258,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any securities
investments.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to
HK$106,379,000 (2020: HK$34,411,000), which were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The net current liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$157,442,000 (2020: the net current liabilities
of HK$369,227,000). As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bonds of
HK$9,999,000 (2020: HK$9,996,000), loan from Century Gold Millennium
International Holdings Group Limited (“Ultimate Holding Company” or
“Century Gold”) of HK$107,510,000 (2020: HK$107,655,000), loan from
Mr. Pan Jibiao, the ultimate controlling party of the Company (“Ultimate
Controlling Party”) of HK$70,477,000 (2020: HK$68,220,000) and
convertible notes (liability and embedded derivatives portion) of nil (2020:
HK$358,179,000).

The amount due to the Ultimate Controlling Party and the other borrowing
were unsecured, interest-free and denominated in RMB, while the bonds
was interest bearing with a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total assets amounting to
HK$366,232,000 (2020: HK$361,908,000) and total liabilities of
HK$341,480,000 (2020: HK$745,016,000). The gearing ratio of the Group,
calculated as total net debt over total capital and expressed as percentage
figure, was 82.72% as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 321.91%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had equity attributable to
the Shareholders of HK$30,410,000 (2020: capital deficiency of
HK$378,259,000).
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Convertible Notes

On 24 August 2018, the Company entered into the convertible notes
restructuring agreement with New Alexander Limited (“New Alexander”),
pursuant to which New Alexander agreed to a consensual restructuring of its
rights and obligations under the existing convertible notes due 31 December
2018 (the “Convertible Notes Restructuring Agreement”). Upon completion
of the stipulated conditions precedent to the Convertible Notes Restructuring
Agreement, new convertible notes due 31 December 2021 would be issued
for the settlement of the existing convertible notes. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 October 2018, the special mandate for the issue of the new
convertible notes with principal amount of HK$365,000,000 and bearing
interest at 2% per annum due 31 December 2021 (the “Convertible Notes”)
upon completion of the Convertible Notes Restructuring Agreement and issue
and allotment of the conversion shares were approved. All the conditions
precedent under the Convertible Notes Restructuring Agreement were
fulfilled and the completion took place on 6 November 2018.

On 30 September 2019, the Ultimate Holding Company as purchaser
and New Alexander as vendor entered into a transfer agreement dated 30
September 2019 (the “CN Transfer Agreement”) in relation to the transfer
of the Convertible Notes, pursuant to which the Ultimate Holding Company
conditionally agreed to acquire and New Alexander conditionally agreed
to sell the Convertible Notes issued by the Company in the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of HK$365,000,000, which are convertible into
a total of 3,041,666,666 new shares upon full conversion at the conversion
price of HK$0.12 per share, at a total consideration of HK$310,250,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.102 per share of the Company).
Completion of the CN Transfer Agreement took place on 1 April 2020.

On 30 June 2020, the Convertible Notes with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 were converted into 83,333,333 ordinary shares of the
Company. Convertible Notes with the principal amount of HK$355,000,000
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

During the Year, the Convertible Notes with the principal amount of
HK$355,000,000 were converted into 2,958,333,333 ordinary shares at
the conversion price of HK$0.12 per share. The Group did not have any
outstanding Convertible Notes as at 31 December 2021.
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Placing under General Mandates
The Group has managed to improve its financial position and has conducted
two placings of shares under general mandates during the Year.

On 15 March 2021, the Group entered into a placing agreement with an
independent financial institution to raise fund by issuance of shares under
general mandate (the “March Placing”). The placing price was HK$0.20
per share, representing a discount of approximately 18.70% to the closing
price of HK$0.246 per share of the Company on 15 March 2021, being the
date of the placing agreement. In order to satisfy the daily operational needs
of the Group, the Directors considered that the March Placing represented
an opportunity to raise additional funding for the Company to satisfy its
imminent needs of cash and to enlarge the shareholder base of the Company
which may in return enhance the liquidity of the Shares without interest
burden within a relatively shorter time frame and at lower costs when
compared with other means of fundraising.

On 25 March 2021, completion of the March Placing took place. A total of
149,691,195 ordinary shares were successfully placed by the placing agent
to not less than six placees which were independent third parties at the
placing price of HK$0.20 per share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement. The net proceeds of approximately HK$29,340,000
were raised. On this basis, the net issue price of each placing share was
approximately HK$0.196. HK$20,000,000 of the net proceeds has been used
for the financial business for its IPO financing business and related operations
while the remaining balance of HK$9,340,000 has been used as general
working capital of the Group.

Afterwards, the Group entered into another placing agreement with the
independent financial institution on 22 October 2021 to raise additional
funds by issuance of shares under general mandate granted in the Company’s
annual general meeting held in June 2021 (the “October Placing”). The
placing price was HK$0.2 per share, representing a discount of approximately
13.04% to the closing price of HK$0.23 per share of the Company on 22
October 2021, being the date of the placing agreement. The Directors
considered that the October Placing represented a good opportunity to
raise additional funds to strengthen the Company’s financial position and
to provide fuel for development of its business. It would also widen the
Company’s shareholder base and hopefully improve the liquidity of the
shares of the Company.
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Completion of the October Placing took place on 17 November 2021. A
total of 409,000,000 ordinary shares were successfully placed by the placing
agent to not less than six placees which were independent third parties at the
placing price of HK$0.20 per share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the placing agreement. The net proceeds of approximately HK$80,164,000
were raised while the net issue price of each placing share was approximately
HK$0.196. The entire net proceeds were intended to be applied and have
been applied as general working capital of the Group.

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operations from net
proceeds from issuance of shares under general mandate and cash flow from
various operations.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments of the Group are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollars. The existing currency peg of Hong Kong dollars with United States
dollars will likely continue in the near future, so the exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuation is minimal.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure

and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

CONTINGENCIES

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no other contingencies as at 31 December 2021.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no charges on assets.

LITIGATION

As at the date of this report, there was no material litigation, arbitration or
claim of material importance in which the Company is engaged or pending
or which was threatened against the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material event after the reporting period.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 68 employees, of which 28 were
in Hong Kong and 40 were in the PRC. Employee remuneration policy of the
Group is reviewed periodically and is determined based on performance of
the Group and employees’ responsibilities, qualifications and performances.
Remuneration packages comprise basic salary, discretionary bonus,
mandatory provident fund schemes for employees in Hong Kong and the
state-managed employee pension schemes for employees in the PRC.

The emolument payable to the Directors was determined with reference to

their qualification and experience and subject to review of the remuneration
committee of the Company.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures in the Year.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEBR/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

PAN Jibiao, aged 48, was appointed as the chairman and an executive
director of the Company in December 2019 and as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in September 2020. He completed a PhD program
in law from China University of Political Science and Law in the PRC in
2015. He completed a degree of Master program in Finance from Hong
Kong Finance and Economics College in Hong Kong in 2020. He was a legal
consultant of Shenzhen Jinze Shiye Development Company Limited* during
the period from 1996 to 2004, and was a general manager of Guangzhou
Jinxi Credit Guarantee Company Limited* during the period from 2004
to 2009. Mr. Pan is a founder and has been a director of Yongzhou Jinxi
Guarantee Company Limited* since 2009. He is also a founder and has been
a director of Hunan Shengda Jinxi Financial Services Company Limited* since
2011. Mr. Pan has over 20 years of management and investment experience
in financial and treasury services in the PRC. Mr. Pan is a director and sole
shareholder of Century Gold Millennium International Holdings Group
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.

SHAO Yanxia, aged 43, the executive director of the Company. Ms. Shao
is mainly responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group,
comprehensive operation management, investors and public relations affairs.
She was appointed as an executive director of the Company in April 2020.

Ms. Shao has more than 10 years of experience in corporate management
and investment in the financial industry. She worked for Founder Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited as an executive director from May 2015 to September
2019, where she was responsible for managing the operation in Hong Kong.
Before this, Ms. Shao had worked for Founder Securities Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 601901) as Director of
Institutional Business Management Department and the General Manager of
Chongging Branch. Ms. Shao was graduated from Shandong University of
Finance & Economics (formerly known as “Shandong University of Finance”)
in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 2001. She received
her master’s degree in business administration from Central South University,
the PRC, in May 2011. Ms Shao was also an authorised representative of the
Company under the Listing Rules and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAI Kin Keung, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in April 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lai received his Doctor of Philosophy
degree in civil engineering from Michigan State University, United States
of American, in September 1977. He is currently a professor at the College
of Economics, Shenzhen University, the PRC and an honorary professor at
the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems Engineering, the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai is also currently an independent non-
executive director of Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”), stock code: 1157) since June 2015 and an independent director
of Bank of Communications Schroders in Shanghai since October 2018.
Mr. Lai was an independent non-executive director of Minshang Creative
Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as Food Wise Holdings
Limited) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1632) from
November 2016 to July 2018. Mr. Lai was teaching at the City University
of Hong Kong from July 1985 to August 2016 where his last post was the
chair professor of management science between September 2003 and August
2016. Mr. Lai was also the dean of the College of Business Administration of
Hunan University, the PRC, from February 2005 to February 2008.

YEUNG Chi Wai, age 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in April 2020. He is also a chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Yeung has over 30 years of experience in
accounting, finance and audit. He is the founder and director of Edwin
Yeung & Company (CPA) Limited, which was incorporated in 2008. Mr.
Yeung has currently been an independent non-executive directors of China
Outfitters Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1146) since June 2011, and Wah Sun Handbags
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2683) since January 2018. Mr. Yeung has been
a director of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association
Limited since September 2019. He is a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Shandong Province and a member of
the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), an independent statutory body
established by the Government of Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung has been an
associate of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants since 1988.
He became an associate member and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1989 and 1996, respectively.
He has been a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 1993, a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since 2005 and a fellow member of
CPA Australia since 2010. He was the president of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors in 2008. He was awarded the Medal of Honour by
the Government of the Hong Kong in 2010.
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EENEREEAESHNT

WONG Man Hung Patrick, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in April 2021. He is also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau in 1991 and
was a member of the Executive Program for International Managers given at
Columbia University in the City of New York in the United States of America
in 1982. Mr. Wong was also admitted as an associate of The Association of
Cost and Executive Accountants in 1994. Prior to joining the Group, from
September 2014 to April 2016, Mr. Wong was a director and vice chairman
of Agritrade Resources Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1131). From April 2008 to August 2014, Mr.
Wong was an executive director of Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited
(formerly known as China Chief Cable TV Group Limited until 2010, now
known as Farnova Group Holdings Limited), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8153). Mr. Wong has extensive experience
in corporate management and has over 30 years of experience in providing
financial advisory service for the institutional clients and has involved in the
financing activities for various infrastructure projects in Hong Kong and the
PRC since the 1990s.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Prof. ZHANG Suian, aged 64, was appointed as the senior consultant for
CBM business of the Group since September 2021. He graduated from the
Department of Coalfield Geological System (% H 3 8 %) with a major in
Regional Geological Survey and Mineral Census (1% 131 & 5825 [ ff# 2= 25)
of IIZREZEZ2FT (the Shandong Institute of Mining and Technology*)(currently
known as the Shandong University of Science and Technology) in 1982. Prof.
Zhang attains outstanding academic achievements and possesses extensive
practical experience in CBM, coal and oil industries.

Prof. Zhang is currently a director and the dean of 3t ¥ REIR I T 78
Ffr (Beijing Panluyang Energy Technology Research Institute*). He is also the
legal representative and the chairman of the board of 8¢ #A(dEL 7)) Ti2H:
fiir % 1 5 BR 2 &) (Zhongneng Enron (Beijing) Engineering Technology Joint
Stock Limited Company*). Both companies are principally engaged in the
provision of technical research and engineering services in relation to CBM
development technology. Prof. Zhang had been a Deputy Project Manager
of KRB M EE QT (China United Coalbed Methane Corporation
Limited*). In 1998, Prof. Zhang had been approved as a researcher of EIZ
IS (National Coal Industry Bureau*) and accredited with the title of a
researcher of REIA A AZEIER) (China University of Petroleum — Beijing).
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Prof. Zhang has been awarded BIFRBIEEMTHE 4 — %47 (Second Prize of
National Science and Technology Progress Award*) in respect of his project
named SR [ R JE ST BE HER AR B0l B 3 (L 7R &8 (Key Technologies and
Industrialisation Demonstration of Three Dimensional Extraction of Coalbed
Methane in Coal Areas*) and K% & 51 8 7 % 1t 5 B A8 (B B R Fe i S 40
% 5 (Key Technologies and Detection Equipment for Geological Dynamic
Evaluation of Coalbed Methane Reservoirs*) in 2011 and 2017 respectively,
Pk 78 & R 2 Bl 48 — 5 52 (First Prize of Shaanxi Provincial Science and
Technology Award*) in respect of his project named 1& (81K ) 2 f H = &
P BUE AR = BR M K Bl B AE 22 R & (Low (Ultra-Low) Permeability
Oilfields, High-Efficiency Production Increasing Transformation and
Enhanced Oil Recovery Technology and Industrialisation Demonstration*) in
2012, HP I ik TR 8555 52 (Special Prize of China Coal Industry
Science and Technology Award*) in respect of his project named # /2 £ /&
[E R BB F B RS R B E 2 (b R E (Key Technologies and Industrialisation
Demonstration of Anthracite Coalbed Methane Development and
Utilisation®) in 2010 and B AMAM{L 8 TG RIS I —F 18 (First
Prize of Science and Technology Progress Award of China Petroleum and
Chemical Industry Federation*) in respect of his project named # B [E &K
FEUM Tl 2 BDER A EE H IR T (Research on China’s CBM Reservoir Formation
Mechanism and Exploration Technology*) in 2010, and BIZR 868 B ELHL £
FTBEFK R 4% (Second Prize of the Soft Science Research Outstanding
Achievement Award of National Energy Administration*) in respect of
his project named # & 5 & % B 3K T 5T (Research on Policy on Coalbed
Methane Industrialisation*) in 2010. In 2009, Prof. Zhang was recognised
jointly by the Ministry of Land and Resources (Bl & JR#&E), General Office
of the National Development and Reform Commission ( B 5 % & 1 2 &
% B &) and the Ministry of Finance (Bf BZ &) of the People’s Republic of
China as #1—#H 2 BUAR ERFTE LIFEFHEZK (New Round Outstanding
Expert of National Oil and Gas Resources Evaluation*). He was elected as an
academician of the European Academy of Natural Sciences in 2021.

LEE Kin Fai, aged 49, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of the Company since July 2020 and April 2020
respectively. He holds a master’s degree in business administration from
The University of Manchester in United Kingdom obtained in 2007. He was
admitted as a certified public accountant in 1998 and is a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive
experience in the areas of financial management and company secretarial
affairs.
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FUNG, Fai Dennis, aged 57, was appointed as the Chief People Officer
in April 2020. Mr. Fung has over 20 years of experience in compensation
strategy, people development and incentive plan design.

Since 2000, Mr. Fung has been providing management advisory service
to senior executives and board of directors of different entities in China’s
financial market. Prior to joining our Group, he served as Director of
McLagan Partners’” China Business, providing strategic planning in human
resources for international clients operating in China. Mr. Fung was a Vice
President, Compensation and Benefits at Societe Generale Corporate &
Investment Banking from 2007 to 2010.

Mr. Fung obtained a Bachelor of Statistics degree from the University of
Minnesota, in the United States in 1991, a Master of Science degree in
Engineering Business Management from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom in 1997, and a Fintech Certificate from the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology, United States in 2016.

LI Jianhao, aged 43, has been appointed as the Chief Investment Officer in
October 2020. Mr. Li has over 15 years’ experience in the financial industry
focusing on private equity, investment banking and legal services.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li was the managing partner of a domestic
private equity fund, focusing on multi-asset investment management,
investment vehicles including securities, bonds, and insurance products,
fund size was over RMB3 billion. He also serviced in South China Financial
Holdings in Hong Kong, Shenwan Hongyuan Securities, and Haitong
Securities Co., Ltd in Beijing in his earlier career years.

Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering degree from
the Shandong University in the PRC in 2001, a Master of Law degree
from the Beijing University in the PRC in 2004, and a master of business
administration degree from the City University of Hong Kong in 2014.

* For identification purpose only and should not be regarded as the official English translation
of the Chinese names. In the event of any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (“Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
practices and believes that maintaining high standard of corporate
governance practices is crucial to the development of the Company
and essential for maintaining and promoting investor’s confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns.

During the Year, the Company had complied with the code provisions of the
then prevailing Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “CG Code”) with the exception of code provisions
A.2.1 and A.4.1, details of which will be explained below.

In order to protect and enhance the benefits of the shareholders, the Board
and its executive management will continue to monitor and review the
governance policies so as to ensure that such policies comply with the
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the directors’
securities transactions on exactly the terms and required standard contained
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry to all the Directors, they confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and its code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to make decision on the
objectives, strategic plans, budgets and management structure of the
Company; to oversee the management of the business and affairs of the
Group; to supervise the management of the business and affairs with the
objective of enhancing the Company and its shareholders’ value with the
proper delegation of power to the management for its day-to-day operation;
to implement the Board’s decision by implementing the budgets and strategic
plans and developing the organisation of the Company.

The Board has reviewed, inter alia, the performance and formulated business
strategy of the Group during the Year. Also, the Board has reviewed and
approved the annual and interim results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the six months ended 30 June 2021 respectively.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Composition

The Board reviews and approves corporate matters such as business strategies
and investments as well as the general administration and management of
the Group. As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, the Board
consists of two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)”):

Executive Directors
Pan Jibiao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shao Yanxia

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Lai Kin Keung

Yeung Chi Wai

Wong Man Hung Patrick

The Directors as aforesaid, accompanied by their respective biographical
details, are listed in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report and that the INEDs are expressly
identified in all the Company’s publication such as announcement, circular
or relevant corporate communications in which the names of directors of the
Company as disclosed.

Out of the three INEDs, Mr. Yeung Chi Wai possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and related financial management
expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. Each of the
INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all INEDs are
independent.
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The Company considers that the Board has the necessary skills and
experience appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interest of the Company and that the current Board size is adequate
for its present operations. Each of the Directors keeps abreast of his/her
responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company. All Directors are updated from
time to time with development in the laws and regulations applicable to the
Company.

The Board has regularly reviewed the contribution required from the
Directors to perform their responsibilities to the Company, and whether they
are spending sufficient time performing them.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the members of the Board.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis at approximately quarterly
intervals and on an ad hoc basis, as required by business needs. The articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) allow Board meetings to be
conducted by way of telephone or otherwise orally and any resolutions to be
passed by way of written resolutions circulated to and signed by all Directors
from time to time when necessary unless any matters in which a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest. Notices of regular Board
meetings were served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings
while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings so as to
ensure that each of them had an opportunity to attend the meetings. Agendas
and accompanying Board papers were given to all Directors in a timely
manner before the appointed date of Board meetings and at least 3 days
before the regular Board meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. Sufficient
information was also supplied by the management to the Board to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make decisions, which are made in the best
interests of the Company. Separate independent professional advice would
be provided to the Directors, upon reasonable request, to assist them to
discharge their duties. The Company has also arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors. Minutes of Board
meetings recorded in sufficient detail of matters considered and the decisions
reached were kept by the company secretary and available for inspection by
the Directors.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings and general
meetings during the Year is set out below:

FAREENEZREHELBRAGNHFLE
I

Attendance/Number of

BRHER RHY

Extraordinary Annual

Board General General
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting
EEME ESREE BRI RS RERBFRE
Mr. Pan Jibiao BER L 7/9 0/2 11
Ms. Shao Yanxia AR EE 8/9 0/2 11
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (Note 1) AR (M) 3/7 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie (Note 2) BRA R e A (e 2) 1/3 0/0 0/0
Mr. Lai Kin Keung REREE 9/9 2/2 1/1
Mr. Yeung Chi Wai BEEEE 9/9 2/2 1/1
Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick (Note 3) T SCUHESC A4 (K75£3) 5/5 2/2 11
Notes: Bt
1. Resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 1 October 2021 1. BHERGTESR RN -_Z-—FTA-BEX
2. Resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2021 2. BMEBUIEMTES  N-E-—FMA-BAR
3. Appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2021 3. BRERBUIFNTESR R_T-_—FMA-HE

The chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of INEDs in particular and ensuring constructive
relations between executive Directors and INEDs. During the Year, the
chairman held a meeting with the INEDs without the presence of the other
Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1)

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The divisions of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

During the Year, Mr. Pan Jibiao was the CEO of the Company and the
chairman of the Board. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision
A.2.1. However, the chairman of the Board and CEO, Mr. Pan Jibiao, who
is also an executive Director, has led the Board and ensured that the Board
works together as a group and that decisions of the Board are taken on a
well-informed basis and in the best interest of the Company and all important
issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. Pan Jibiao also manages the
strategic development of business and operation of the Group while the
Group develops its business with his leadership in the Board.

3
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Non-executive directors (Deviation from Code Provision A.4.1)

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie, who
resigned on 1 April 2021, was the only INED who was not appointed for a
specific term which constitutes a deviation from the code provision A.4.1.
Following the resignation of Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie with effect from 1
April 2021, all non-executive directors (including the INEDs) entered into the
service agreements with the Company for a term of three years.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Articles. The Board as a whole is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the appointment of
Directors and assessing the independence of INEDs.

Under the code provision A.4.2 and in accordance with the Articles, directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
board should be subject to election by shareholders at the next AGM after
their appointment.

Attendance of Non-executive Directors at General Meetings

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors, as equal board members, should give the board
and any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and
active participation. Generally, they should also attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

At the respective general meetings of the Company, there were executive
Directors and INEDs present to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection
of candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives and
measurable objectives including but not limited to gender, age, experience,
cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how. The
ultimate decision shall be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Policy
and review the Board composition under diversified perspectives annually
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the businesses of the Company.
The Nomination Committee would receive nominations from shareholders
or directors when such are tendered and make recommendations to the
Board on the candidacy of the nominees, having regard to the Board’s
compositional requirements and suitability of the nominees. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprises five Directors. Three of them are INEDs,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the management process.
The Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of gender, nationality, professional background and skills.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development Programme

All Directors are provided with necessary induction and information to ensure
that they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses of the
Company as well as their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. Moreover, Directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
Year, all Directors are provided with updates on the latest development
and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Some Directors also attended seminars and/or conferences
and/or talks organised by professional bodies on topics including corporate
governance, Listing Rules updates, legal supervising or financial updates.
A summary of training received by Directors during the year ended 31

REZEEEFHUZTLARSERRNER
ERHEFRNAR  BREFREFENK
B EBMZTTIEAE  YBEARNRREKT
2 - REZEERNRERRIFERRRNES
ZR%E  TEEEEZRZERERRERSE A
ZARBENEREIRBAZREERAESRBREY
BEoRNARSAY  EXRHAREFENX -
ZRRBIUFMITES - AMA R BB &
EREIRER - THRIER - BE  EEXEERR
REETEEE EERPVAERE+HZT/IEM
R o

ESNHEEIIRRRE
ERESHEEHLZOAREINRER - AE
ORIR 5222 R A 2 48 R K5 A R (5 SRR IR AR
BUER R - RARIEPITmARNEETREE
THE o WO EETEREBEARRRE - M
ARARNGAEHER  WEEEREBRE
EREITERB

ARABBERET2HABEEXRE - HEY
FHRENMBLIREE - RAFE  2RBES
ERE ETRANEMABERIEEREZR
MERMEHEN S TEFTHFEHEXERE
EIMzBMAEERER - EWMRRAER  APIE
RYUMBENSIELAITG R HEHER X
B o MBEEMIEHNLE  BEERHE_T
Tt A=t B ULEFERZEIINBERN

December 2021 according to the records provided by the Directors is as I :
follows:

Types of Training
Name of Directors EEpnE EHIER
Mr. Pan Jibiao BT A, B
Ms. Shao Yanxia AR EE 2+ A B
Mr. Shiu Shu Ming (Note 1) AR S (M) A
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie (Note 2) BRAORE S (Tat2) A, B
Mr. Lai Kin Keung ESEL: S A B
Mr. Yeung Chi Wai SE A A B
Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick (Note 3) TR E(HE3) A B
A: Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or talks A HEHSER SeEk stEE
B:  Reading updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and other . R/ | TR R B M IHE L2 EESH T2 54T

relevant legal and regulatory requirements

Notes:

1. Resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 1 October 2021

2. Resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2021
3. Appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2021

BRREH TR
Bret
1. BHEEMITESR KR-Z-—F+A—-REX
2. BHEEMIEAOTES RN FHA-HAEXR

3. BERERBYIINTES R-_T-_—FMA-HE
03
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BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee (collectively
“Board Committees”), with defined written terms of reference which are
in line with the code provisions of the CG Code describing their respective
authority and duties and for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are published on
the websites of the Company (www.gci.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk). All the members of the Board committees are INEDs.
All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties, and upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
Minutes of the Board Committees meetings recorded sufficient detail of
matters and the decisions reached were kept by the company secretary and
available for inspection by the respective committee members.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration structure and
policy, determining the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and the senior management as well as making recommendations
to the Board the remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to
the corporate goals and objectives of the Board. No Director takes part in any
discussion on his/her own remuneration. As at 31 December 2021 and the
date of this report, members of the Remuneration Committee comprised Mr.
Wong Man Hung Patrick (Chairman), Mr. Lai Kin Keung and Mr. Yeung Chi
Wai, all of whom are INEDs.

Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 April 2021. Mr. Chan Yim Por
Bonnie resigned as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect
from 1 April 2021.
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RAFE  FHZEEERIT—RE#H  UEXE
BIFATER TR ENH T BN HINE
2o MERSEHIIMT

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year and has
determined the remuneration package of Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick as an
INED and the salary trend. The attendance record is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of
Remuneration
Committee Meetings

FHESSEE

Name of Directors EEpMR HEERE
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie (Chairman) BRI Se A (F /)

(resigned with effect from 1 April 2021) (BER=ZT=_—FWA—BAR) 11
Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick (Chairman) TXHERAE(FE)

(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021) (RERZZE_—FWHA—BER 0/0

Mr. Lai Kin Keung R AE 1”71

Mr. Yeung Chi Wai BEERE 1”71

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, taking into account
candidates’ qualifications, in particular any qualifications as required in
the Listing Rules, ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics in considering and recommending to the Board suitable persons for
appointment as Directors, reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
to complement the corporate strategy of the Company, and assessing the
independence of the INEDs. As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this
annual report, members of the Nomination Committee comprised Mr. Lai Kin
Keung (Chairman), Mr. Yeung Chi Wai and Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick, all
of whom are INEDs.

Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 1 April 2021. Mr. Chan Yim Por
Bonnie resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from
1 April 2021.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year and has
determined the suitability and duties and responsibilities of Mr. Wong Man
Hung Patrick as an INED. The attendance record is set out below:

RAFE  REZEGERTREH  UEXE
BIFATESEXEEENSBELREE - 1
JEREREIIITS

Attendance/
Number of Nomination
Committee Meetings

REZESER

Name of Directors EEME HEERE

Mr. Lai Kin Keung (Chairman) R (TE) 171
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie BRARK e

(resigned with effect from 1 April 2021) (BERZZTZ—FEA— B4R 11

Mr. Yeung Chi Wai BEERE 1/1
Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick EXRAE

(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021) (RERZZ_—FWHA-BER) 0/0

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process and
internal control and risk evaluation, overseeing the audit process, and liaison
among shareholder, the Board and the auditor of the Company. No former
partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm acted as a member of the
Audit Committee within two years from ceasing to be a partner or having any
financial interest in the auditing firm. As at 31 December 2021 and the date
of this annual report, members of the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Yeung
Chi Wai (Chairman), Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick and Mr. Lai Kin Keung,
all of whom are INEDs.

Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick has been appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 1 April 2021. Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie resigned
as a member of a Audit Committee with effect from 1 April 2021.

EREEE
ERZECRABPDESRUNBYBHBERYT
BEBEERAEZERRFENARE - &8
FAHBRE  WRBR C EEREARRZHRE
FIEVESAE TIF - RARIIRERBARIMAES R
ABERTBEIEBARMFALEEZEZE
BRE - TERERRREE AU BHE -
TECF T A=t -BRAFHREH T
ZEENEREHERELE(LE)  EXMHRE
NEBESRSAE - WEYREIIFMTES -

— 5
=

IXHELCRZERERZEGKE  BE-F
TFUA-BAER - RRARELBEEZEZE
BXE BT —FHA-HRER -



Corporate Governance Report
ERERRE

Three meetings were held during the Year. The Audit Committee reviewed
(i) the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 and unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 of the Group with recommendation
to the Board for approval; (ii) the accounting policies adopted by the Group
and issues related to accounting practices with the senior management
and auditor of the Company, the audit scope and fees, and qualifications,
independence and performance of the auditor of the Company; and (iii) the
financial reporting system and internal control, environmental, social and
governance matters, risk management systems and internal audit function
of the Group. During the Year, the Audit Committee met the Company’s
auditors twice without the presence of the executive directors. The
attendance record is set out below:

RAFE  BEREZEQERITZRGHE  LOE
HAEEHE T -_TF+_A=+—HLHF
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NEBZHBRERGARAIBEIE - IRE - 1
EREREH  BREERFRANDERAE -
RAFE  BREECHEARR LB EMAMK
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Attendance/
Number of Audit
Committee Meetings

ERZEEER

Name of Directors EEHA HER R

Mr. Yeung Chi Wai (Chairman) GBS (EE) 3/3

Mr. Lai Kin Keung it 3/3
Mr. Chan Yim Por Bonnie PR S

(resigned with effect from 1 April 2021) (BMERZZE_—FIMA—B4ER) 2/2
Mr. Wong Man Hung Patrick EXERAE

(appointed with effect from 1 April 2021) (ZERZZZ—FWA—BAER) 1/1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate governance
duties as required under the CG Code:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company. The Group has engaged an internal control
adviser which reports directly to the Audit Committee and is responsible
for conducting regular reviews on the major activities of the Group. The
objective is to ensure that all important controls, including financial,
operational, compliance, and risk management functions are in place
and functioning effectively. Review covering the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and internal audit function is also conducted
annually. The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted an annual
review on the need of setting up an internal audit function and having taken
into account the scale of the Group, the Board and the Audit Committee have
considered that the setting up of an internal audit function was not necessary
for the time being and the Board might consider engaging external services
provider to perform the internal audit function in future.

Internal Control

The internal control and risk management systems will be reviewed at least
annually to ensure that it is adapted as necessary to any changes in the
Group's risk profile and is considered to be effective and adequate.

The Board has received a report from the outsourced internal control adviser
summarising the reviews concluded in the Year. The report summarised
internal control review findings and any action to be taken by management as
a result. A summary of the internal control review activities during the Year is
as follows:

(@) performed operational review on business units of the Group to ascertain
the adequacy and integrity of their system of internal controls and made
recommendations for improvement where weaknesses were found; and

(b)  conducted follow-up review to determine the adequacy, effectiveness
and timeliness of actions taken by the management on audit
recommendations and provided updates on their status to the Audit
Committee.

After each review, the findings and recommendations for improvement will
be communicated to the respective management for their responses and
corrective actions. The Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and
recommendations made by the outsourced internal control adviser and have
ensured that any issues arising from the review are appropriately resolved
by management in an efficient and timely manner. The outsourced internal
control adviser had reviewed, among other things, the connected transaction
monitoring and reporting procedures of the Group for the Year and was
satisfied that the Group has taken the improvement measures on all internal
control weaknesses and failings identified by the outsourced internal control
adviser.
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It should be recognised that such review can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as it is designed
to manage rather than eliminate those risks that may affect the Company in
achieving its business objectives.

Risk Management

The successful management of risk is essential for the long term growth and
sustainability of the Group’s business. The principal activities of the Group
are the coalbed methane exploration and exploitation in the PRC, sale of
electronic components, comprehensive healthcare, financial business, wealth
management and proprietary investment. These can only be achievable if
certain risks are managed effectively.

The Board has overall accountability for determining the type and level of risk
it is prepared to take. The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee which
seeks to identify risks for Board’s consideration. Further, the Audit Committee
monitors, and deploys appropriate actions to control or mitigate the risks.
They also assess the likelihood of these risks occurring. Risk mitigation
factors are reviewed and documented based on the level and likelihood of
occurrence. The Audit Committee reviews the risk register and monitors the
implementation of risk mitigation procedures via executive management.

Based on the report from the outsourced internal control adviser, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considers them to be adequate and
effective and the Group has complied with the CG Code.

The Company has also developed inside information policy which sets out
guidelines to the employees of the Group to ensure inside information is
to be disseminated to the public in equal, timely and effectively manner in
accordance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the Listing Rules and
all other applicable rules and regulations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Huen Felix Ting Cheung (“Mr. Huen”) resigned as a joint company
secretary of the Company with effect from 1 October 2021. Following the
resignation of Mr. Huen, the other joint company secretary of the Company,
Mr. Lee Kin Fai, remains in office and acts as the sole company secretary
of the Company. The company secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. The company secretary reports to the chairman and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For the Year, the
company secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

The biographical details of Mr. Lee Kin Fai is set out in the section of
biographical details of directors and senior management of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 December 2021, results and cash flows for the year
then ended and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance;
appropriate accounting policies have been selected, consistently used and
applied, and reasonable judgements and estimates are properly made.

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the ability of the Company to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 97 to 102 of this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the Year, the fees paid to the auditor of the Company comprise
services charges for the following:
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2021 2020
—s-—F TECTHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T
Statutory audit EEER 750 680
Review of interim results EHR A 100 100
Other non-audit services (mainly professional HiIEERRE (FERRER 1A
services for preparation of a circular for a B B B ERT)
major transaction) = 119
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS B SRR
Enquiries to the Board MEERELHER

The Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the share registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. They may also at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available and make enquiries to the Company with
the contact details provided by post, telephone, fax or email.
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Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting Forward
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

In accordance with sections 566, 567 and 568 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Ordinance”),
shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general meetings can
send a written request to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company at
45/F, Tower 1, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Board) or in electronic form (by email: info@gci.com.hk). Such
requisition, signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a request (after being verified to be valid) proceed to convene
an EGM on a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the EGM is given, the shareholders concerned, or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call a meeting.

To put forward proposals at the shareholders’ meeting, shareholders are
requested to follow sections 580 and 615 of the Ordinance, which a request
in writing must be made by:

(@) shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having the right to vote at the shareholder’s meeting; or

(b) atleast 50 shareholders holding shares of the Company having the right
to vote at the meeting,

to the Company to give to shareholders notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an AGM, or to circulate to
shareholders any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at any general meeting.

The written request must be signed by all the shareholders concerned in one
or more documents in like form and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Board not less than six weeks before the
meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, and not
less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Upon the request verified to be valid, the Company will give notice of the
resolution or circulate the statement.
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If a shareholder of the Company intends to propose a person other than a
Director for election as a director of the Company at any general meeting, the
shareholder concerned shall lodge with the registered office of the Company
for the attention of the company secretary (i) a written notice of his intention
to propose that person for election as a director of the Company; and (ii) a
notice in writing by that person of his/her willingness to be elected together
with the necessary information within the period commencing no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting and ending no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Detailed procedures can be found in the following documents which are
available on the website of the Company:

e “Shareholders Communication Policy”
e “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director”

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and, in particular, use AGM or other general meetings to communicate with
shareholders and encourage their participation.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Details of poll voting procedures will be explained during the proceedings of
meetings. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange following the general meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The chairman of
all the committees or in the absence of the chairman of such committee,
another member of the committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate,
is available to answer questions at the general meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains websites
at www.gci.com.hk, which contains corporation information, interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars issued by the Company as
well as the recent developments of the Company, to enable the shareholders
of the Company to have timely and updated information of the Company.
Shareholders can refer to the “Shareholders Communication Policy” posted
on the website of the Company for more details.

AR R BUEA RN EAIBRRARRBESIA
SN ATRBARBES - AABRREABUTX
HE2EXANREEMBEELRE - FRBAEWEW : )
HEBREMATHRBEAARREZNEREME
o RiZBALTRAEEREROEERN - &
RBEER  MEXXHRAETERTEAM
BRASBEBAMSG A TEERZBRAE
BRI AR -

BREF BRI A R B AU TIE Y 513
&

o [BEREBABR]

o [BRRBABSEEZNEF

BERRNER

EERBENERRISERFHE  LEERR
BERGREMBRAGBBIREANBERE
228 o

EBRRAE L SHRERBYNEE(2EESRE
PER)SERIRIRESR -

BEUEES RFRANEFBRAGIEE AR
B o BB RISRBR R AR RIEAL 7 LB
4TI -

ARRHBERAGRRREEERZHRREER
e MEZESIRIAEXELZESIERE
RRs—REZE(HWZEBEEAREHE - BIEE
BERENRR)ERRAS LMERA -

RTREERBER  ARAARAMUH
www.gci.com.hk » P FIEMEER - RAE T
BT HRFERE  AERBERARERFN
BHBRE - MEARRRREHARE THRAAF
BVERHTAILR « PRER AT 2B A1 RIAR s TIH A9 [ AR
WA THREZEHE -



Corporate Governance Report
ERERRE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after taking into account the
Group’s results of operation of the business, actual and expected financial
performance, general business conditions and strategies, expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans and other factors as it may
deem relevant at such time. Any proposed distribution of dividends will be
subject to the Company’s constitutional documents and the Companies Law,
including the approval of the Shareholders. Future declarations of dividends
may or may not be reflected from the Company’s historical declarations of
dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the Board.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 26 March 2021.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

The latest and consolidated version of the Articles is available for inspection
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board
Pan Jibiao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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INTRODUCTION

Golden Century International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is mainly engaged in coalbed
methane (“CBM”) business, comprehensive healthcare business, electronic
components business, financial business, wealth management business,
and proprietary investment business. The Group is pleased to present its
sixth Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”). The
ESG Report summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and demonstrates its
commitment to sustainable development.

BOARD STATEMENT

The board of directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the Group’s ESG
Report which reviewed the Group’s ESG initiative, plans, performance, as
well as its sustainable development in respect of environmental protection,
labour practices, business operations, supply chain management, and other
issues. As a responsible corporate, the Group adheres to the management
policies of sustainable ESG development. As a key to its continued success in
the future, the Group is also committed to handling its ESG affairs effectively
and in a responsible manner, which becomes a core part of its business
strategy.

The Group looks forward to enhancing the communication and collaboration
with its stakeholders, and further promoting the sustainable development
of the Group in preparation of the ESG Report. Therefore, the Group has
conducted the stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment to
determine and enhance the disclosure content of the ESG Report. Details of
which will be described in the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment” respectively.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group conducts a top-down management approach regarding its ESG
issues and has developed a framework to ensure its ESG governance is
aligned with its strategic growth, while advocating for integrating ESG into
its business operation. The ESG governance structure of the Group is mainly
comprised of three components, which are the Board, the Audit Committee
(the “Committee”), and designated personnel from business and functional
departments.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting, as well as managing its ESG-related issues with the assistance of
the Committee and designated personnel. The Board examines and approves
the ESG-related goals and targets, priorities, management approach, policies
and frameworks and reviews progress towards their implementation and
achievement. Besides, the Board is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness
of Group’s risk management and internal controls through an annual
assessment and assuring the precision and accuracy of the information
disclosed in the ESG reports.
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The Board authorises the Committee to oversee risk management and internal
control systems. The Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering financial, operational and
compliance controls along with ESG-related risks. Reporting to the Board,
the Committee identifies and makes recommendations on any matters where
action or improvement is needed. In addition, the Committee reviews and
approves ESG reports.

The designated personnel from business and functional departments facilitate
the Board’s oversight of ESG-related issues. They have the responsibility
for prioritising and managing material ESG-related issues, monitoring and
evaluating the Group’s ESG performance, evaluating the development and
implementation of ESG-related strategies, policies and initiatives, ensuring
compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations, reviewing progress
towards ESG-related goals and targets, as well as preparing ESG reports. In
addition, they arrange meetings to discuss ESG-related issues and report to
the Board regularly.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and measures being
taken by the Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Year”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The management of the Group discusses, identifies and confirmed the
reporting scope based on the materiality principle and considers the core
business and main revenue source. The ESG Report follows the reporting
scope of the Group’s annual report and approved by the Board. The ESG
Report generally covers the Group’s ESG performance of the Hong Kong
headquarters and its major business segment including (i) CBM business; (ii)
comprehensive healthcare business; (iii) electronic components business; and
(iv) financial business, which includes both financial and wealth management
business. The financial business is newly included in the ESG Report under
the extension of the reporting scope during the Year.

(i) CBM Business

CBM is a type of high-quality natural gas extracted from coalbed. CBM
is a new type of energy with less pollution and high calorific value. The
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is estimated to have the world’s
third-largest CBM resources. CBM is an effective alternative energy
source for the PRC and the development of the CBM business plays an
important role in the national plan to become a low-carbon economy.
The 14th Five-Year Plan for Economic and Social Development of the
PRC (“14th Five-Year Plan”) continues the support the development of
industries related to new energy.

EXERREZBESEEAREEABIES R
o ZESRAIAKERRE R R ARSI RS
ZEME > BRME - EERARERNURER
B HekErERR ZEEREZRA
T WHEEFREZRRTHXBCEZEMEE - B
FRULER MR o UbSN - R B IRERH R ER

B HERERRE -

EBRBESFAZEEABRETREERER
HehERARBEEERMHEN - REFAEEESE
BRENERRE HEREAREREAEE &
ENFHAAREZRE - B REARRE - HE
R - @ REAEBEE  BERRBEZHIE
RE  BRETRE 4 RERBRERE
Ao RERE  HERERABENRBERZE
RER - ARRERE  HE8RER®RE UL
O REELRHARGRNREER  HERER

HEEE  YEHRRESHES
REHE

RE HERERRSEAR_T_—F+_H
=t HALEBFE(AEFE]) AAEBEZR
B HERERERY - BRREEE -

BEHE

AEEEEEREEZERAEREDE LT
o R MR WEEZOERREZRER
R RIE - Mg REAREEBBEALEFROR
LHE WKEERILE - BE LS RERRK
SRR EAREERBRBREBEEH IR
B g kEFARE  BROEEIES : ()58
BARERER : (WEFEHEL Rivems
BEESRERIVETEER) - SEBTD
RAEEREAREHERITMARSE LS RE

ARE o

() HRERFEH

REREERFERETHEERARE
R BRISRERERSIMERFEER - B
FEARKMBE([FE]DREARERE=K
RERFHER - KERATENERRE
R BERREREBLET BRREREER
MEEIPINEERAE - P EKERLEM
HERE+NERFRIEA2([+RER
B DB RIERESX 2 BE -

B H— =& | 1707 LIOdT TVNNNY

AN



B i E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

NN
No

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI HERERHKRS

The Group has developed the CBM business in the PRC since 2008.
The Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary called Canada Can-Elite Energy
Limited (“Can-Elite”) runs the CBM business in Anhui Province,
the PRC. The main business activities include CBM exploration,
development and production. During the Year, the CBM operation was
still in the exploration stage.

(ii) Comprehensive Healthcare Business
The Group established medical devices and epidemic-prevention
supplies and products business during 2020. The Group mainly sales
of meltblown fabrics, related equipment and raw materials. Four of the
production lines began trial production in early January 2021.

(iii) Electronic Components Business
The Group serves as a distributor of electronic components and is
not involved in production stage; therefore, the Group’s electronic
components business has a limited impact on the environment and
natural resources.

(iv) Financial Business
The operations of the Group’s financial business are office-based,
located in Hong Kong and PRC, including Shenzhen and Changsha.
Therefore, there is no significant impact on the environment and natural
resources in the business sector.

The ESG key performance indicator (“KPI”) data are gathered and included
business segments that are under the Group’s direct operational control. The
Group will continue to assess the major ESG aspects of different businesses
and to extend the scope of disclosure when and where applicable.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set
out in the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the Year, the Group has confirmed that it has established appropriate
and effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG
issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance with the
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices has been
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

During preparation for the ESG Report, the Group has applied the reporting
principles of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Re ort

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to diagnose material issues
during the Year, thereby adopting the confirmed material issues as the focus
for the preparation of the ESG Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed
and confirmed by the Board and management. Please refer to the section
headed “Stakeholder Engagement” for further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the calculation of
relevant data in the ESG Report, as well as the applicable assumptions were
disclosed. The KPIs are supplemented by explanatory notes to establish
benchmarks where feasible.

Consistency: The preparation approach of the ESG Report was substantially
consistent with the previous year, and explanations were provided regarding
data with changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

The ESG Report has undergone the internal review process of the Group and
was reviewed by the Board.

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from stakeholders. You
may provide your comments on the ESG Report or towards the Group’s
performance in respect of sustainability via email to info@gci.com.hk.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible enterprise, the Group attaches great importance to
communication with stakeholders and their feedback regarding its business
operation and ESG affairs, while proactively developing its business and
improving profitability, to balance the interests of all parties and foster
sustainable development. Stakeholder engagement plays an indispensable
role in the Group’s continuous improvement in sustainable development
performance. To fully understand, respond, and address the core concerns of
various stakeholders, the Group has been maintaining close communication
with key stakeholders, including but not limited to governments and
regulatory bodies, investors and shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, and community. The Group is dedicated to working with its
stakeholders to improve the Group’s ESG performance and create higher
value for community.

By using the diversified cooperation methods and communication channels
shown in the table below, the Group brings the expectation of its stakeholders
into its operation and ESG strategies.
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Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations Management’s response
& BERE e EIEE E e
Governments and > Compliance advisors > Compliance with relevant >  Uphold integrity and compliance
regulatory bodies >  ARER laws and regulations in operations
BURT M B2 E AR A > Legal advisors >  ETHEBNERER > REERREFAENER
> AR > Fulfilment of tax > Pay tax on time
obligation > BEEH
> BUIRBEE > Establish a comprehensive and
> Risk management effective internal control system
> REpER > BN REMA M ANEEIE R
Investors and > Annual general meetings > Investment return > The management has relevant
shareholders > REBEFKE >  RELEH experience and expertise to
REERKR > Financial reports > Compliance with relevant ensure sustainability in the
> RS laws and regulations businesses
> Announcements and >  ETHEBNERER > EREABHBELBRMERA
circulars > Corporate governance B BREB AR
> RERBH system > Publish information regularly
Company website > DEERGE through the Stock Exchange’s
NG > Corporate sustainability and the Company’s websites
> EAFEER > EBEE AT AR A A TE B
> Operating risks TIEER
management > Endeavour to improve internal
> RERRER control and risk management
> Information transparency > & D& AR B K E b B IR
>  EiUERE
> Business ethics
> REBRE
Employees > Performance evaluation > Labour rights > Establish contractual obligations
(= or appraisal > BTH#Em to protect labour rights
> ERGTERSREZ >  Career development >  HIEEHNEEMRES T#ER
> Employee handbook > BXRZE > Encourage employees to
> [EBFM > Remuneration and participate in continuous
> Training programme benefit educational and professional
> IR > FHERAREA training to enhance
> Regular meetings and > Health and safety competencies
communication > RBERZE > SBHEI2EBERBERIEXEE
> FEHEERZM >  Corporate culture AR =B
>  EXE > Establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system
> BUYRT - EERMABRF IO
Bige %
> Attach importance to
occupational health and safety
> ABEBEREMZE




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations Management’s response
& BRRE e EEEDRE
Customers > Customer service hotline > High quality products > Continuously provide high
=P and email and services quality products and services to
> BFFPRGHRLER >  BEEmMERE meet customer needs
> Company website > Timely delivery > FERMEEERERSANR
> NRIAEL > RERE BEP®X
> Financial reports > Reasonable price > Build an efficient and green
>  HHBRE > (BRE1E supply chain
> Regular customer > Customer privacy > BUSBRGgEHERE
meetings protection > Develop a comprehensive
> EHEPE: >  REEPLE quality assurance process and
> Customer benefit recall procedure
> EPH@m > HEEENEEREZRIZMEK
> Compliant operation (552
> AREE > Ensure contractual obligations
> Green supply chain are fulfilled
> efEs > MERETAHEE
Suppliers > Site visits > Stable supply and > Ensure contractual obligations
iR > RER5 demand are fulfilled
> Teleconference HFI=E > WRETAEHEE
> BHEEE > Maintaining a good > Develop supply chain
relationship with the management policy and
Company procedure
> HEARBRBREBE > HIEREEEROBREIES
> Corporate reputation > Maintain a steady and long-term
> {EEE collaborative relationship
> Fairand open tendering > {(RIFEANEKHNSERIE
> RPRREER > Strictly select suppliers
BRI AR
Community > Company website > Environmental protection > Pay attention to climate change
o > RAEHE > IRIRRE >  BEREEM
> ESG reports > Community involvement > Encourage employees to actively
> BRI -degkEamE > HE2E participate in charity events and
> Financial reports > Economic development voluntary services
> WS > KEER > SEETEBRZ2EZRZZPNE
> Media FERRTS
> K > Ensure sound financial results
> Charity events and business growth
> EEEY > HERRENFBREREMERLR
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group’s directors, management and staff in major functions are involved
in the preparation of the ESG Report. They have assisted the Group to
review its operations, identify key ESG issues, and assess the importance
of those relevant matters to its businesses and stakeholders. The Group has
compiled a materiality assessment survey in accordance with the identified
material ESG issues. Relevant departments, business units, and stakeholders
of the Group were invited to complete the survey. The Group evaluated and
prioritised the ESG topics, and compiled a materiality matrix based on the
results of survey. The results were reviewed and approved by the Board and
senior management.

The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG topics:

Materiality Matrix
High EEMIERE

El

Climate Change Mitigation

EERMFME

AEEESE EEENRTIZBEREHZHERFEE
RE - HERELARS - RESHBHAEERS
H2E  BRBRRE  HekEndE T
ZERAEEHEEBRRNEZEEN - A%
BREBECENENRE  HEREARERRE
ZUFAES 0 WRFEAEEMEBER - 2%E
URFHEZTKAL - AEEHRE HERE
REREITHAREASR - UIRBEAEERE
HUBENER - FHERCHEERRSRER
=R AL

ATHEEDAREERRE  HERERTEZ
e

Operational Compliance
BEAR

g Diversity, Equal Opportunities __and Adaptation Protection of Customer Privacy
§ and Anti-discrimination il R IB R AR o REEEHLE
—% ZILIE - FEHE MRBIR o o Health z;ﬁr;iSafety Risk Management and
§ . Development and Training @Az Internal Control
S Energy Conservation gRERY ] AR TR RN
£ EHRR
E Water C tion ‘ :
<E ater onsumpti Whistleblowing Mechanism
K AR . )
Eﬁ Remuneration and Benefit Product Quality and Safety Anti-Corruption
g% S ETER EREEELE ° ° RES
iﬁg Supply Chain Management ¢ ? ¢ ° Custogg%ais}f;ctlon
s =
g % HERER Wastewater Discharge ° - ‘/ =
g Community Investment FEKBERR * Air Emissions
Z HBRE . R
k) . . Greenhouse Gas
° Use of Packaging Material ("GHG”) Emissions
= Labour Standards ERABEME BERE (DRERE] ) ¥
HIRA . Disposal of Solid Waste
BRI E
LFW Level of Significance on Sustainable Development of the Group Hiﬁgh
E HARETRERROPLRE ®
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to protect the environment through the implementation
of control activities and monitoring measures in its business activities and
workplace. The Group is committed to promoting a green environment
by introducing environmentally friendly business practices, educating
the employees to raise their awareness of environmental protection and
complying with the relevant environmental laws and regulations.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with environmental related laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL TARGET

The Group’s commitment to environment friendly operations is one of
its core philosophies. The Group strongly emphasises environmental
consideration and has identified “Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation”
as one of the material ESG topics. To reduce the carbon footprint as well
as achieving sustainability in long term, the Group has set environmental
targets to manage its environmental impact, covering air emissions and GHG
emission control, waste reduction, energy efficiency, and water conservation
during the Year. In order to achieve these targets, the Group has implemented
different measures and initiatives which will be mentioned in the sections
headed “GHG Emissions”, “Disposal of Solid Waste”, “Energy Conservation”
and “Water Consumption”.

RIE -HERE $|§¢
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CHERERRE

The following table is the summary of the Group’s environmental targets: TER/AEEZREEEME
Business segments Environmental initiatives and targets
EBD R REERREE

Air emissions and GHG emission control

BER B SR E R B 4l

CBM business > Reduce the air emissions intensity gradually by 2026, using 2021 as the baseline year.

SI=ERE > EZZORF BRIBEER T —FHKTRE -

Comprehensive healthcare business > Reduce the total GHG emissions intensity by 5% by 2026, using 2021 as the baseline
year.

BEAEEER > EZTRINF BRRERBHNEER T —FRE5%

Waste reduction

TRERRLEE

Group-wide > Organise at least one activity annually to raise employees’ awareness of waste
reduction.

B{E%EE > BFEGES—EEPHARSEERERH

Comprehensive healthcare business > Develop a system to replace handwritten applications with electronic leave applications

and financial business in the next two years.

BEARERH R EBER > RERMERNFRE —EETREREER - URKFRHE °

Energy efficiency

RERMZ

Group-wide > Install motion sensors in offices and factories to enable automatic lighting control by
2026.

EE%E > RIZZRFRAERAZERTMZEEBRARES

Comprehensive healthcare business > Reduce the total electricity consumption intensity by 5% by 2026, using 2021 as the
baseline year.

BERAREER > HECZORTF RSEmER T —RES% -

Water conservation

EEFIN

Group-wide > Organise at least one activity annually to raise employees’ awareness of water
conservation.

BEKE > BFEBEL—EESMRSEEEKER -

Comprehensive healthcare business > Reduce the total water consumption intensity by 3% by 2026, using 2021 as the
baseline year.

BEARREER > HEITRORE BRKEEBR T FRE3%
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EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT

Air Emissions

The Group’s major sources of air emissions are originated from petrol and
diesel consumed by company vehicles. In response to the above-mentioned
source, the Group has actively taken measures to control air emissions. Such
measures will be mentioned in the section headed “GHG Emissions”.

During the Year, the performance of air emissions generated by vehicles is
summarised below:

RIE -HERE $|§¢

HHER

BER B

AEEZ T EERIFHRE A REBEREZ/UR
SO o S8 B RIR - AR ETE G REE f R

HIBESRBER - XSRS EDRER BN —&

iR o

RAEE - EWEL ZBERFFRRRMANT

Unit 2021 2020
Types of exhaust gas BRER By —B-—F —E-TF
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) REMINO,) kg AT 57.88 59.89
Sulphur oxides (SO,) &S0, kg AT 0.16 0.14
Particulate matter (PM) FERLY)(PM) ke AT 5.50 5.69
CBM is a type of natural gas, which is cleaner than other fossil fuels. CBM is B A —TERXAR » EREMAREE &2

colourless, smell-less, non-toxic and with high calorific value. CBM consists
mostly of methane, but may also contain trace amounts of ethane, propane,
butane, carbon dioxide and nitrogen, etc. The composition of CBM slightly
varies in different coal seams. During exploration, CBM is discharged from
coal seams through exhaust pipes. The Group uses some of the CBM for
gas equipment at the well site to avoid wastage, while the rest is emitted
through the combustion process in accordance with national requirements.
The Group ignites methane gas at the exit of the vents, the gas is transformed
into water vapour during the process. The amount of air pollutants emitted is
minimal.

GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions of the Group were generated from
petrol and diesel consumed by company vehicles and combustion of natural
gas at the well site (Scope 1), and purchased electricity (Scope 2).

In response to the above-mentioned source and the Group’s environmental
initiatives, the Group has established and implemented a series of measures
to strictly manage and control the use of its vehicles, including:

e Encourage its employee to use public transports during their business
trips;

*  Repair its vehicles regularly to maintain the vehicle efficiency and
minimise emissions; and

e Optimise the routes for vehicles to reduce emissions for necessary
travel.

FoRERRER  BR - ESRKAES - HEX
Eﬁ)‘zﬁi%ﬂf'k?‘f NRALEHNAL - Tk - —&1k
ix - AREF  EROERTRAREMHEESR
E%JJ%TEMFEEP RERCBEXEENKED
- ARBEHBORERARFSHARR
B ARRE Eﬁ%*ﬁ“eﬁzﬁ”l%%ﬁmbkaﬁ
TRBW - AEEREXEBLOREKER
WRIZ AR S RBE D ARAOK o Fﬁﬁf?)‘ﬁ(ﬁ’]?ﬁﬁﬂ%
BEMTEM -

BEREIEN
AEEREREBHRNEERRELAARE
AT RE R B0 U RSO A RIS IR A SRR
B (HBE—) RINBEE N (BE) -

HE BB R ANREZRRER - AEEDH
EX B — RFIER - ABRBEIERIEHI B
ZER - B
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In addition, the Group actively adopts measures to reduce energy
consumption, and relevant measures will be mentioned in the section headed
“Energy Conservation”.

During the Year, the total GHG emissions has increased by about 106.45%
from approximately 1,117.70 tCO,e in 2020 to approximately 2,307.52
tCO,e in 2021. This was mainly due to the increase in business activities,
especially the production lines of the comprehensive healthcare business
began operation in early January 2021 and the development and exploration
of CBM project resumed when coronavirus epidemic eases in the PRC during
the Year. The extension of the reporting scope in 2021 also contributed to
the increase in GHG emissions because the energy indirect GHG emissions
generated by the office operation in the financial business segment are also
included.

Summary of the Group’s GHG emissions performance:

BN - AR BTRAR RN HER D RETROBAE - AR
RAtE HEAS BRI ERKOREIR ] — 4 -

RAFE  BREABYRBER_T-TFY
1,117,700 & Lk & W IN4106.45% =2 —F
T—F4)2,307 52— EbmES o WIIEER
REBTEN  CEEERRBRREER CEE
BR-ZE-_—F— A LARBREE  AREER
BlEiEEmE  HERBE 2HERBFEKE - =
T FREHENEANEIREREHRE
BN BASmERR DD EEE SR ERRM
EAEREHRENBRREENA °

AEEREREBHFRRRME

Unit 2021 2020
Indicator’ B By =B —F —T T
Scope 1 - Direct GHG emissions ~ #3[E—— B R = RN tCO,eMi — A/t & 1,899.54 1,046.38
Scope 2 - Energy indirect GHG B — — g2 RRAIER =R 8 tCO, el —EfLiRE 8
emissions L 407.98 71.32
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1,2) REREEHHAE (HE— R tCO M —FLHER
BHE—) 2,307.52 1,117.70
Total GHG emission intensity’  BEREHHREERE’ tCO,e/thousand revenue?
W _EtRES
T o leas? 0.06 0.02

Note(s):

1. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and is based
on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the “Global
Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2015 (AR5), the
“Baseline Emission Factors of China’s Regional Power Grids for Emission Reduction
Projects in 2019” published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC,
Sustainability Report 2021 published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited and the HK
Electric Investments Sustainability Report 2021 published by the HK Electric.

2. During the Year, the Group’s total revenue was approximately HK$36,931,000 (2020:
HK$69,766,000). This data will also be used for calculating other intensity data in the
Report.

et

1. REREHNREEA_SLnREENTAZS - 2R
ETRAERRITERREREEKEEREZES
EMWORERBATS - CEGIHNREETE) -
B 2P OC I E IR LB REARE —
8= REBREBIERERES)  BTHEREE
LEMZEGBMAAERRFERE(ZT—2F)
(ARS)E ZBRTHREREE) - T EARFKMBE LR
FETIERQ019F R AR TR R IS EAHELLELY
HEF) - REEHARDTTENCQO2 ATHEER
HE) MRERENTIERNCEBENRE T = —
FAFEBRERS) -

2. RERFE - REEBZBKELH36,931,0008 T (=

TZTF 1 69,766,000/ 7T)  LLEUR IR T E R
R E M EE L -
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Wastewater Discharge

The presence of groundwater is used to maintain high pressure in the coalbed
so that CBM is stored in coalbed in the adsorbed state. CBM can be extracted
from the coalbed using hydraulic fracturing technology. CBM is released by
fracturing coal or rock layers by using water pressure. The process involves
the high-pressure injection of fracking fluid into coal or rock layers. Fracking
fluid is primarily composed of water and a small amount of quartz sand or
other proppants with anti-swelling effect. The purpose of using fracturing
fluid is to dredge the passage in the coalbed and increase the permeability
of the coalbed so that the CBM is desorbed from the coalbed and released
from the well to the ground. The fracturing fluid drawn from the well may
contain dissolved substances such as potassium, sodium and other salt
substances and will be stored in the reservoir first. Small grain of crystal will
be deposited at the bottom of the reservoir after evaporation. Besides, to
reduce the pressure in the coalbed, CBM extraction requires the removal of
groundwater, therefore, to allows gas to flow to the surface through the well as
mentioned. The product water may include contaminants, including elevated
levels of salinity, sodicity and trace elements such as barium and iron. The
Group continues to control and monitor the wastewater discharge to ensure
quality of wastewater discharged meets the national standards. During the
Year, the gas mining and production wells of the Group have discharged on
aggregate approximately 9,809.59m? (2020: 1,420.52 m®) of wastewater.

Disposal of Solid Waste

Hazardous wastes

Due to the Group’s business nature, no material hazardous waste was
generated by the Group during the Year. Although the Group did not generate
hazardous wastes during the Year, the Group has established guidelines in
governing the management and disposal of hazardous wastes. In case there is
any hazardous waste produced, the Group must engage a qualified chemical
waste collector to handle such waste, which complies with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

Non-hazardous wastes
The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s daily operations are
mainly general waste, office paper, and plastic waste.

As a responsible corporate, the Group values paper saving and regularly
monitor the effectiveness of policies implemented in relation to office paper.
A paperless office is promoted by encouraging its employees to distribute files
via electronic means to reduce paper consumption from photocopying, fax
and printing. For unavoidable paper photocopying and printing, the Group
encourages its employees to use double-sided printing instead of single-sided
printing and reuse single-sided paper whenever possible. Double-sided used
papers are gathered in a recycling box and collected by qualified recyclers
for their handling.

EEXBERR

EEREE R ERKERARESEEEN SR
AREE - FEERARMAREFETHNERE - EER
AJE K BRFM I E BRI - FI A KBS
REABERR  HmERLERHEER - B
BETARBRICBREETIAENERE - BRRK
WD EERKEBELENREY K EMAR
WIRIERM S EBE - BNEREBEEFHEE -
MAKEBLEER  FEKEMEEERRXHH
B EE - BFSENERNRITERERBEY
B iR AR EMEEYE - BEEAERR
SEATFHREKT - LELREBEREEBT
BRENE o thoh - AREEEFNES - &
BRHEREZMHMETK - LUEERIEEMEE
FHHFREME - ERKAIRERESEY - 8
FHEE - RERMETE(BPIWERE) AR - &
S BB I EDR REKBER + REMR BRI A EE K
FAEBRRERIZE - RAFE - REEBHRE
AT HBEREK499,809.59 . K (- T - T4 ¢
1,420.5237 773K ) ©
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Moreover, the procurement and disposal of office equipment and stationery
serve as another focus of the Group’s efforts in operating sustainably. The
Group encourages its employees to maximise every stationary lifespan (such as
plastic binding ring, paper clip, etc.) by searching opportunities to reuse and
refurbish them internally whenever feasible. The Group also avoids single-
use disposable items. For example, the Group provides reusable cups in the
pantry room. In addition, the Group purchases office equipment with energy
efficiency label. The employees’ awareness of waste management has been
increased through these implementations.

With the Group’s effective measures of raising employees’ awareness in
waste reduction, its total non-hazardous wastes have reduced by about
12.96% from approximately 4.09 tonnes in 2020 to approximately 3.56
tonnes in 2021.

Summary of the Group’s non-hazardous waste disposal performance is as
follow:

I REEAFELEN S —EZEH /KRB
FREERAERBREXA AEEZBESE
ATERATBNRAEREH XA BELERITKE
CHRERBXANERTD - ARETTES
EA—RMERm - BPIME - AREEFKRERE
HAERKTF - BN AREREAGRERKE
BREORAERE - BREERZFEE B1TH
BEMERNEBEMES -

BEEAEERDNARIERRESEERESR &
MEBEBEYMAEH _T_TF 2 H4.090E 7 4
12.96%% &~ —%5F 7 #3.560F o

AEEBEEVRERAMENT

Unit 2021 2020
Types of non-hazardous waste ~ EZEYEE By =B —F —EEF
Office paper E/NENE S Tonnes/tf 1.22 1.72
General waste — R EEY) TonnesH# 1.59 1.53
Plastic waste BRBREY) Tonneslif 0.75 0.84
Total non-hazardous wastes EEREYEE TonnesM 3.56 4.09
Total non-hazardous wastes BEBYHEERE Tonnes/thousand revenue
intensity W, F T 0.000096 0.000059
USE OF RESOURCES EREA

The Group has formulated Regulations on Energy Use Management (7K -
B AAERE A B IEIRTE)) for the production departments and offices of
CBM business to ensure that every employee understands the importance
of resource conservation and make full use of resources to maximise their
effectiveness and prevent wastage. The Group has also issued Notice on
Strengthening Office Environmental Sanitation and Electricity Management
KR I R EIRIFREE - AEEIEABEA)) to its employees working
in offices to increase their awareness of electricity, water and paper
conservation.
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Energy Conservation
The Group strives to minimise the environmental impacts resulted from its

operations by adopting appropriate measures. Energy policies, measures, and

practices have been developed to show the Group’s commitment on energy

efficiency. All employees are required to adopt such measures and practices

and assume responsibility for the Group’s overall energy efficiency.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Petrol and Diesel
Petrol and diesel are mainly consumed by company vehicles. The
Group has actively adopted measures to reduce the fuel consumption
from company vehicles. Such measures are mentioned in section head
“GHG Emissions”.

Natural Gas

CBM is a type of natural gas. Since the CBM business is still in
exploration stage, a small portion of CBM is used for gas equipment
on well site, while the rest is emitted through combustion process in
accordance with national requirements. The Group requires staff at well
site to turn off gas equipment when not in use and inspect gas pipelines
every one to two weeks to prevent gas leakage, and avoid wastage and
safety issues.

During the Year, the gas mining and production wells of the Group
have produced on aggregate approximately 884,900 m? (2020:
approximately 483,197 m?) of gas.

Electricity

The Group has established strict requirements regarding electricity
consumption at well site. The operation time of electrical equipment at
the well site is strictly controlled. All electrical equipment and electrical
wiring are regularly inspected and maintained in good condition in
order to maximise their energy efficiency. The Group also keeps the
record of inspection and maintenance. If any problem is found, it
should be repaired or replaced immediately.

RIR - HERERHRE

BRI REIR

AEBEBBRMEEES  BERDLEHRE
VR o ARBECHIERIRER - e ERIA
BUREE LA AL - REREBHARMNERE
ERER - WRAEENEBERYEAERT -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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Echoing the commitment and target set, the Group encourages
employees to establish energy-saving habits at different operation
locations. The Group has introduced various measures to achieve the
goal of electricity saving and efficient consumption, including:

e Adopt lighting control based on actual needs;

e Purchase equipment with high energy efficiency on the
replacement of old equipment;

e Encourage employees to turn off idling equipment, computers and
lightings when not in use or after working hours;

e Utilise natural lightings where possible;
e Apply optimal temperature setting of air-conditioning;
e Use solar streetlight in the well site;

e Change the lighting to Light Emitting Diode (“LED”) in offices and
factories; and

e Install solar panels to increase the use of renewable energy (“RE”).

During the Year, the total energy consumption increased by about
91.51% from approximately 5,250.10 MWh in 2020 to approximately
10,054.65 MWh in 2021. This is mainly due to the increase in business
activities, especially the production lines of the comprehensive
healthcare business began operation in early January 2021, and
the development and exploration of CBM project resumed when
coronavirus epidemic eases in the PRC during the Year. The extension
of the reporting scope also contributed to the increase in energy
consumption because the electricity consumed by the office operation
in the financial business segment is also included.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI HERERHKRS
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Summary of the Group’s energy consumption performance:

REBRERHERERTME -

Unit 2021 2020
Types of energy BERER B —E=—F —T_TF
Direct energy consumption EERERE MWhJK LB 9,361.55 5,145.93
— Petrol consumed by — R AIEH PR Th
company vehicles MWhJK EL 79.08 60.12
— Diesel consumed by — N AP SH
company vehicles MWhJK EL I 27.40 32.11
— Combustion of natural gas at ~ —AFHIZHVRARLEE
the well site MWhJE EL s 9,255.07 5,053.70
Indirect energy consumption IR IROH #E MWhJK FL B 693.10 104.17
— Purchased electricity —SNEE S MWhIKFLE; 693.10 104.17
Total energy consumption RFUHERE MWhIJK FL B 10,054.65 5,250.10
Total energy consumption REFHREERE MWh/thousand revenue
intensity KRR F s 0.27 0.08

Water Consumption

The water consumption of the Group is mainly used in the manufacturing
process of comprehensive healthcare business segment and the daily
operation of offices. The Group has always attached importance to the
efficient use of water resources and formulated different policies and systems
to regulate the water consumption of different business activities. The Group
has educated and encouraged all employees to develop the habit of water
conservation. The Group has been strengthening its water-saving promotion,
posting water-saving reminders, and guiding employees to use water
reasonably.

The following are some measures that the Group has implemented to
improve the utilisation efficiency of water resources:

e Place posters in toilets and pantries to encourage water conservation;

e Conduct inspection and maintenance on water tap, water pipelines,
pumps and valves regularly by the engineering department;

e Fix dripping taps promptly to avoid water leakage and wastage;

e Prohibit disposal of rubbish and debris to sewers to prevent blockage;
and

. Install flow restrictor in offices and factories.

During the Year, the total water consumption increased by about 97.5% from
approximately 600.00 m? in 2020 to approximately 1,185.00 m® in 2021. This
was mainly due to the increase in business activities, especially the production
lines of the comprehensive healthcare business began operation in early
January 2021 and the development and exploration of CBM project resumed
when coronavirus epidemic eases in the PRC in during the Year.
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Summary of the Group’s water consumption performance is as follow: REBFEAKRRBEDT
Unit 2021 2020

Indicator bifd By —B-—fF ZE-TF
Water consumption? FEKES m37 53K 1,185.00 600.00
Water consumption intensity BKEE m?/thousand revenue

SR T e 0.03 0.01
Note(s): Mt -
3. Water used during the exploration process of CBM was mainly groundwater, 3. EERMERRORKEZABRKNBRIEMT - ¥

injecting back to the coal or rock layers after extraction under the hydraulic fracturing
technology. Therefore, water used in the CBM segment is excluded in the data of water
consumption.

The water used by the Group is supplied by local governments. During the
Year, the Group did not have any issue in sourcing water.

Use of Packaging Materials

During the Year, the packaging materials used by the Group are mainly paper
boxes and plastic bags for product packaging, that are 0.09 tonnes and 0.99
tonne respectively. Plastic bags are used for meltblown fabrics packaging in
the comprehensive healthcare business with the intensity of 0.0019 tonnes
per tonne of meltblown fabrics produced.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Although the impact on the environment and natural resources during the
exploration stages of the CBM business is not significant, the Group has
established Environmental Protection Management Measures for China
Regional (FFEIRRIRFREEEIE)) and Management Requirements in
Well Site Construction Environment (($#& IR 55 TIRBHEIEENK)). The
Group has adopted preventive and remedial measures to minimise its impact
on the on ecology, surface water, noise and solid waste at every stage of its
operations.

To enhance working efficiency, the Group is committed to providing
employees a comfortable and green working environment. The Group is
dedicated to maintaining office order and environmental sanitation, and
keeping the offices and public areas clean and tidy. Once the Group has
found problems within the workplace, precautionary measures will be taken
to minimise the potential harm to employees.

CLIMATE CHANGE MITIGATION AND ADAPTATION

The Group recognises that human activities are contributing to climate
change which is one of the most urgent challenges facing the world today.
The Group strives to further strengthen its resilience against climate change
by identifying related challenges and developing strategies in line with the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate Related Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD”) and industry best practices. The Group has conducted climate
change assessment and performed meeting regularly to identify climate-
related issues that have a significant impact on the Group, in order to
formulate the ESG strategies and response to the impact of climate change on
its operations. Furthermore, the Group has included climate-related topics
in its enterprise risk management system in order to manage climate related
risks and opportunities more effectively.
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The following is a summary of the Group’s disclosures on climate change-
related risks and opportunities:

Transition Risks

The trend of transitioning to a low-carbon economy poses risks to the
Group’s businesses. More stringent climate policies, laws and regulations are
expected to be implemented to support decarbonisation goals. For example,
the ESG Reporting Guide published by the Stock Exchange has been
updated to require issuers to disclose significant climate-related impacts. As
a listed company in the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to increase
the climate-related information disclosures. Besides, the environmental
regulation and climate-related information disclosures has been tightened in
the PRC. Stricter environmental laws and regulations may expose enterprises
to higher risks of claims and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also be
impacted due to failure to meet the compliance requirements for climate
change. The Group’s related capital investment and compliance costs thus
increase. In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation
risks, the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging trends, policies
and regulations relevant to climate change and be prepared to alert the top
management where necessary to avoid cost increments, non-compliance
fines or reputational risks due to delayed response.

Moreover, investors’ awareness of integrating climate related risks into the
overall risk management is rapidly evolving. In light of investors’ growing
demand for information regarding a company’s management of climate
related issues, the Group has integrated climate change into its enterprise
risk management system. The Group also analyses market trends regularly
and respond as required. The Group is committed to maintaining a high
level of transparency regarding its climate risk management to build trust and
confidence among its investors through the publication of ESG reports.

Physical Risks

Climate change increases severity and frequency of extreme weather events
such as typhoons, intense precipitation, and flooding. Extreme weather
events could cause structural damage to buildings, increase the risk of power
shortages, disrupt supply chains, and interrupt business operations. Business
disruptions result in reduced revenue, as well as increased costs to repair
or restore damaged facilitates. Particularly, climate change is influential to
the Group’s CBM business. Since outdoor exploration and development are
required, an extreme weather events and high temperature could halt the
CBM exploration and development, reducing its production capacity.

To respond, the Group has incorporated business operational risks related
to extreme weather events into enterprise risk management system and
evaluate events that may suspend the Group’s operations. The Group has
also developed and regularly review the contingency plan, including extreme
weather scenarios that could halt its business operations. Guidelines with
specified work arrangement under potential environmental hazard and
corresponding circumstances, such as typhoons and rainstorms, are clearly
stated to ensure all employees know how to respond to the crisis or accident,
safeguarding their safety and avoiding incidents.
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Opportunities

Incorporating climate-change considerations into business can bring
opportunities to the Group. The Group may benefit from national policies on
carbon reduction and changes in customers’ preferences towards low-carbon
products and services.

As global warming become more and more serious, the public’s awareness
of climate change is gradually increasing, while all sectors of society are
actively responding to the national policies. CBM is a cleaner energy source
compared to other fossil fuel energy source. In response to the “14th Five-
Year Plan” promulgated by the PRC authorities emphasises the active
promotion of low-carbon and clean transformation to achieve the goal of
carbon peak and carbon neutrality, the Group does its part to increase its
development in accordance with the national policy.

In addition, higher temperatures lead to an increase in allergens and harmful
air pollutants, which are associated with many health problems. The Group
is planning on conducting research and development of related medical
devices and products, in order to meet the new prevailing demands and keep
pace with the market.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment Practices

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets for building
a sustainable business model for future development. Therefore, a
comprehensive talent management mechanism has been established to attract
and retain talents. The Group is devoted to creating a non-discriminatory,
equal, harmonious and safe workplace in order to build a relationship
of mutual respect with employees. The Group provides commensurate
remuneration, personal and career development training, as well as various
fringe benefits, which helps the Group to create a favourable condition
to attract, retain and reward talents. Employment policies are formally
documented in the Employment Agreement ({ {& f 1# # ) ) and the Staff
Code of Conduct (( 8 77 &5F8I)), covering compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare. The Group
periodically reviews existing policies and employment practices to ensure
continuous improvement of its employment standards and competitiveness
among the industry.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with employment-related laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Hong Kong Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, and the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China that would have a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 68 employees (2020: 43 employees)
that were all full-time employees, and the composition is shown below:

“E-—F+-_A=+—8  AEEHEH
EBE(ZZ-ZF :43%) - YARHET - HE4A

Number of  Number of
Employees Employees =~ Percentage Percentage
in 2021 in 2020 in 2021 in 2020
—B--f CZT-THF ZB--f ZTITH
NESAE ®ESEAH NESEIL NESEHL
By gender BRURIE D
Male EELia 40 26 58.82% 60.87%
Female gegis 28 17 41.18% 39.13%
By age group RERARE D
Under 30 years old 30 A T 5 5 7.35% 10.87%
30-50 years old 30E505% 43 33 63.24% 73.91%
Over 50 years old 508504 20 5 29.41% 15.22%
By geographical location RESVES D
The PRC F 40 13 58.82% 28.26%
Hong Kong BA 28 30 41.18% 71.74%
By employee category* RERERNE D
Executive Director WITES 2 N/A 2.94% N/A
Management EIEfE 12 N/A 17.65% N/A
Other Employees HiER 54 N/A 79.41% N/A
Note(s): Bt
4. Relevant figures have been disclosed from 2021 onwards. 4. HEBEBEA T —FEHEE -

Recruitment, Promotion, and Dismissal

Employees are recruited via a robust, transparent and fair recruitment process.
During the Year, the Group has recruited new employees through diversified
channels, including online recruitment, referral, job fair, etc. Job applicants
are assessed based on their suitability for the positions and potential to
fulfil the Group’s current and future needs, regardless of their race, religion,
colour, gender, physical or mental disability, age, place of origin, marital
status, and sexual orientation.

The Group offers promotion and development opportunities for outperforming
employees through an open and fair assessment system to explore their
capability and contribute the Group’s sustainable growth. Promotions are
subjected to annual performance review.

Besides, the Group does not tolerate the dismissal of employees under any
unreasonable basis. Any termination of employment contract would be based
on reasonable and lawful grounds. The Group strictly prohibits any kinds of
unfair or unreasonable dismissal.
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RIR - HERERHE

During the Year, the overall average monthly turnover rate® was
approximately 9.05%. The employee average monthly turnover rate by
gender, age group, and geographical location are shown below:

RAEE  BBIHEARKR Y AE.05% ° &
Rl FRENRRENEE D ZETFHEA
MARYRT

Employee
turnover rate
(%) in 2021

—E-FH

EERKE(%)
By gender BRI & D
Male St 8.78%
Female g 9.34%
By age group REWRERE D
Under 30 years old 305 A T 11.79%
30-50 years old 30E505% 11.39%
Over 50 years old 508504 0.68%
By geographical location REHVESR S
The PRC B 9.01%
Hong Kong B 8.34%
Note(s): Bt
5. The employee average monthly turnover rate is calculated by dividing the number 5. EEFHAEARKENEAEARKE(RE AREE

of the sum of monthly turnover rate, which is calculated by taking the number
of employees leaving employment during every month divided by the number of
employees at the end of the corresponding month, by 12.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
system that provides compensation to employees. The Group offers
competitive remuneration and benefits, which are determined by
referencing market benchmarks in order to attract high-calibre candidates.
The Group regularly reviews the remuneration policy to ensure its market
competitiveness. Employees are recognised and rewarded according to their
individual performances, working experience, respective responsibilities,
merits, qualifications and competences. The Group will conduct performance
appraisal and salary review regularly to determine any salary adjustments
and/or promotion opportunities.
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Basic remuneration packages of employees include salary, bonus and
various subsidies, such as overtime pay, meal allowance, telecommunication
allowance, housing subsidy, holiday allowance and marriage subsidy. All
employees are entitled to statutory holidays, including statutory festive
holiday, paid annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave and compassionate leave. The Group also signs and executes
labour contracts with all employees in the PRC in accordance with the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China. The Group pays
“five social insurance and one housing fund” for its employees in the PRC in
compliance with the laws and regulations, namely endowment insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund to ensure employees are
covered by social insurance.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group cares for the well-being of employees and recognises the
importance of work-life balance to the Group. Therefore, the Group develops
basic working hours and overtime system according to different business
needs, with the hope to enable employees to achieve work-life balance. The
Group has formulated policies in determining the working hours and rest
periods for employees, following local employment laws and regulations. The
employees working in the offices work five days a week, while employees
working at well site and factories work in shifts in accordance with the work
schedule established by the respective department head. Employee consent
must be obtained for any necessary overtime arrangement, and the employee
must be compensated in accordance with the laws and regulations to prevent
any forced overtime work.

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination

The Group recognises the value of a diverse and skilled workforce, and
is committed to creating and maintaining an inclusive and collaborative
workplace culture in which all can thrive. The Group is dedicated to
providing equal opportunity in all aspects of employment and maintaining
a workplace that is free from discrimination, physical or verbal harassment
against any individual on the basis of race, religion, colour, gender,
physical or mental disability, age, place of origin, marital status, and sexual
orientation.

The Group has zero tolerance to any workplace discrimination, harassment
or victimisation. Any employee who is intimidated, humiliated, bullied or
harassed may report to the employees’ representative, or file complaints
directly to the management representative. Besides, all recruitment process is
closely monitored under the Group’s human resources management scheme
to prevent any discrimination in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group also
prohibits any punitive measures, management practices and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, oppression, sexual harassment,
including inappropriate languages, postures and physical contact, against
its employees for any reason. The Group strives to ensure that complaints,
grievances and concerns, including whistleblowing, are dealt with promptly
and confidentially.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI HERERHKRS

During the Year, the Group did not identify any material non-compliance of
laws and regulations related to discrimination involving race, religion, colour,
gender, physical or mental disability, age, place of origin, marital status, and
sexual orientation.

Health and Safety

The Group adheres to the principle of “Safety First and Take Good
Precaution” and puts employees’ health and safety in the first place.
The Group has formulated the Management Requirements in Well Site
Construction Environment ((#& 53 35 TERIE #)E 1B 2 3K)) to strengthen
the safety management of CBM mining and to prevent fires, explosions,
personal injuries and deaths. The Group also formulated Safety Management
Regulations ((&Z & 4 E B IR E )), which sets strict safety requirements on
the layout of CBM field, ground equipment, electricity current testing, use of
vehicles and fire extinguishing system. Besides, the Group has implemented
a safety production responsibility system to clearly define the safety
responsibilities of different positions.

The Group carries out regular inspection and maintenance of critical
equipment, and keeps the maintenance and repair record. The Group also
assigns safety personnel to conduct random inspections at the well site. If
potential safety issues are identified, they will be dealt with immediately, and
contingency plans and solutions will be formulated.

In order to effectively prevent and deal with emergencies at various
construction sites, and to ensure the safety of on-site employees and
equipment, the Group has established the Emergency Response Plan for
Construction Site Safety KB LIR5% 2R EMEZIEE TIFFEZR)). Basic
principles include placing personal safety above all else, and minimising
the losses. In case of emergency, on-site staff must promptly report to the
emergency response team and carry out self-rescue immediately. Each
member of the emergency response team is always vigilant, coordinates all
communication channels, ensures adequate emergency vehicles standby, and
follows the instructions and arrangements made by the security and safety
department. After the incident, the emergency response team needs to submit
an investigation report to reflect the problem and suggest measures that can
be taken to avoid further similar incidents.

The Group believes that safety production training is the first step to achieve
“zero accident”. All the employees working at the well site need to attend
a 3-level of safety training before being assigned to their work duties. The
safety training content includes job-related safety guidelines, protective
measures, such as wearing work clothes and helmets, and all kinds of
practical operation training. Employees can only take up duties after they
have passed all the tests on safety production. Safety personnel will convey
safety knowledge to employees on an irregular basis to remind them of
the requirements and importance of safety at the construction site. Mining
personnel is required to undergo more rigorous safety production training.
Special operation personnel who work at key positions is required to obtain a
special operating permit.
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The Group provides its staff with a safe and hygienic working environment
that is in line with national regulations and necessary protective equipment.
Clear and visible warning signs, such as “Wear Helmet at all times”, “Wear
Protective Clothing at all times”, “No Fires in the Well”, “Beware of Electric
Shock”, and “No Entry”, are placed in CBM well site. All workers are
required to wear safety helmets for every entry to the site. The gas pipelines
are checked at least every two weeks by on-site personnel to avoid any gas
leakage. The Group also arranges annual physical examination for staff who
engages in high-risk works. In addition to the insurance required by the
local laws and regulations, the Group purchases accident insurance for staff.
Besides, the Group invites national fire services department to carry out fire
safety training for staff regularly, organises fire drills and regularly checks the
status of the fire extinguisher to ensure fire safety.

For the health and safety management of the offices, the Group has adopted
a comprehensive preventive approach to prevent the occurrence of illness
and injury. The Group provides employees with a healthy and safe working
environment. Working arrangement during typhoon and rainstorm has been
clearly specified by the Group to avoid any confusion which might lead to
safety issue. Fire extinguishers are strategically placed, fire exits are free from
obstruction, and first aid boxes are available at easily accessible locations in
the offices. The Group also prohibits smoking in the office areas.

During the Year, there was no significant incident of safety and work-related
injuries. At the same time, the Group had no work-related fatalities occurred
in the past three years including the Year.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with health and safety-related laws and regulations including but not limited
to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases, and the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Response to the COVID-19 pandemic and its Variant Virus

In response to the continuity of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
pandemic and the variant virus, the Group has taken various actions to
strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in the workplace to
ensure the health of its employees and workers. The Group has strengthened
the sanitation of its operations to ensure a healthy and safe working
environment, such as providing alcohol-based hand rub and surgical masks
to its employees, and applying stringent temperature screening on employees
and customers before entry into the workplace, to ensure a safe working
environment. The Group has also sent out guidelines to employees to advise
on the reporting measures in case of an outbreak of the coronavirus among
employees and related family members.
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Development and Training
A high-quality team is vital to the sustainable and long-term development

of the Group. Therefore, the Group has developed a long-term talent

traini

ng strategy that focuses on creating values and serving the needs of its

customers, its talents and the society. In order to strengthen employees” work-

related skills and improve operational efficiency, each business unit of the
Group has formulated its training programs and development opportunities to
its employees.

During the Year, the Group recorded 78.11%° of the trained employees and
an average of 12.907 training hours per employee. The percentage of trained

empl

oyees and the average training hours per employee, by gender and

employee category are shown below:

Percentage of
trained employees®
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Average
training hours
per employee

(hours) ™
BEEE 2T
BB (DB ©

Breakdown of
Trained Employee’

ZHl{ES R

By gender RIERIE D

Male S 85.00% 64.39% 13.47
Female g 68.12% 35.61% 12.07
By employee category RERERE S

Executive Director WITES 100.00% 1.52% 28.00
Management EIRE 100.00% 12.88% 22.43
Other Employees HitgS 73.86% 85.60% 11.83
Note(s): Hiat -

6. This percentage is calculated by dividing the total number of employees who took part 6. % B D IR R AREE 2 1| 2 8 B 8GR AARE

10.

in training during the Year by the total number of employees (including the employees
who have left) during the Year.

The average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing the total number
of training hours during the Year by the total number of employees (including the
employees who have left) during the Year.

The percentage of trained employees by category is calculated by dividing the number
of trained employees in the specified category during the Year by the number of
employees in the specified category during the Year.

The breakdown of trained employees by category is calculated by dividing the number
of trained employees in the specified category during the Year by the total number of
trained employees during the Year.

The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing the number of training
hours for employees in the specified category during the Year by the number of
employees in the specified category (including the employees who have left) during the
Year.
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The Group provides both internal and external training to staff in the PRC.
Internal training covers professional knowledge, industry information,
management skills, and other knowledge and information that are of interest
to the staff. Internal training is conducted in the form of lectures, seminars
or conference meetings. The staff is encouraged to express their opinions
after the training on various aspects such as the training content, format and
instructor, which form the basis for future improvement. External training
can be divided into (1) practical training, involving professional technical
knowledge, selling skills, management approach, leadership skills, and
corporate mission; (2) senior management training, including corporate
strategies and development; and (3) self-enhancement training, such as
professional technical certification. Technical staff, such as mining staff at
well site, are required to undergo rigorous safety production and knowledge
training, to ensure occupational safety.

The Group provides on-the-job training for employees in Hong Kong. The
human resources department and relevant department heads will introduce
the corporate culture, industry knowledge, and job responsibilities to new
employees. Directors and professional staff, such as chief financial officer,
finance manager, company secretary and accountant, regularly participate
in external training organised by professional organisations. The training
is conducted in the form of lectures. During the Year, training topics
include corporate governance, ethical conduct of accountants, merger and
acquisition, anti-money laundering, etc.

Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group respects human rights and safeguards the interests of all its
employees. Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by the laws and regulations. The Group
strictly complies with local laws to prohibit any child and forced labour
employment. The Group’s Human Resource Department is responsible
to monitor and ensure compliance with the latest and relevant laws and
regulations that prohibit child labour and forced labour. To combat against
illegal employment of child labour, underage workers and forced labour,
the Group requires all new employees to provide true and accurate personal
identification information. All personal information, including identity card
and bank accounts, will be strictly scrutinised by its recruiters. The Group
has established a refined recruitment process for checking candidates’
background and formal reporting procedures to handle any exceptional
cases. The Group also conducts self-audits and inspections on a regular
basis to prevent child labour and forced labour. The Group will conduct
investigations, punishment or dismissal of relevant employees immediately
when any non-compliance is being discovered. If necessary, the Group will
further improve the labour mechanism against illegal behaviours.
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BRI HERERHKRS

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with child and forced labour-related laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China that would have a significant impact on the Group. The
Group also avoids engaging suppliers with known records of using child
labour and forced labour in their operations.

SUSTAINABLE OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group understands the importance of supply chain management in
mitigating the indirect environmental and social risks and tries to engage
suppliers to have responsible acts to society and environment in the view of
green supply chain management. All suppliers are evaluated carefully and
are subjected to regular monitoring and assessment.

During the Year, the CBM business was in the exploration stage and large-
scale production has not yet commenced. Exploration work is outsourced to
contractors. For the comprehensive healthcare business, the Group procures
raw material such as polypropylene for production. While for the electronic
component business, the Group procures electronic components from
suppliers and sale to the customer directly. Suppliers of the financial business
are mainly the third-party service providers. The Group had a total of 28
suppliers and subcontractors during the Year. All the Group’s suppliers are
evaluated and engaged according to the Group’s standardised procurement
process, which is clearly stated in the Group’s Quality Control Procedure and
Purchasing Policy. The breakdown of the Group’s suppliers is as follows:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Re ort

In order to ensure that the Group's suppliers and subcontractors have met the
Group's requirements regarding quality as well as environmental and safety
standards, the Group has formulated procedures in selecting suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group maintains an internal list of qualified suppliers and
subcontractors. During the selection process, the Group does not only review
their basic information, but also considers a number of other factors such
as pricing, service quality, business reputation, and compliance to relevant
industrial laws, regulations and standards. Suppliers’ and subcontractors’
environmental and social performances are also considered as one of the
selection criteria for establishing long-term relationships. Assessments and
evaluations on supplier performance are carried out on a regular basis for its
suppliers and subcontractors, in which evaluation is performed annually in
form of questionnaires.

To promote environmentally preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, the Group communicates with suppliers frequently about the
availability in providing environmentally preferable products or services, and
products or services that meet certain green standard and specification. The
Group provides initiative of offering environmentally friendly products and
services by informing its suppliers that there will be higher score in bidding
for having such practice. The selection of suppliers and subcontractors
is determined by the overall score, regarding to the criteria mentioned,
assessment and evaluation on the supplier performance, and their green
practices.

Besides, the Group has formulated policies and procedures to ensure that
suppliers could compete in a fair and transparent way in the tender and
procurement process. The procedures would strictly monitor and prevent all
kinds of business bribery and conflict of interest. The Group also encourages
employees, suppliers, customers and other individuals related to the Group’s
business to report any abuse of power that violates laws and regulations. Any
violation of the law and regulations will be subject to disciplinary sanctions.
During the Year, the Group did not receive any report on any significant
violation in this respect.

Product Responsibility

The Group is determined to provide the highest quality of product and
service to its customers and to fulfill its responsibility in bringing customer
satisfaction. The Group actively safeguards the quality of the products
through a strict procurement procedure. Only CBM business has not yet
commenced production and sales during the Year.
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BRI HERERHKRS

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with any laws and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress, such laws and regulations include but are not limited to
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the
Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic
of China that would have a significant impact on the Group.

During the Year, the Group did not receive any cases of product or service-
related complaints, nor was it subjected to any product recalls for safety and
health reasons.

Product Quality and Safety

As a medical devices and epidemic-prevention supplies and products
manufacturer, the Group recognises the importance of achieving high product
quality standards. The Group has formulated a Quantity Control Procedures
((EEEFIIZFF)) that clearly states the quality control procedures for the
inventory and production process, ensuring the quality of raw materials
and finalised products meets the standard requirements. The Group also
formulated a Handling Procedures for Unqualified Products ((T~& 1% G B 18
12 ¥ )) to manage any potential recall issues and define the roles of related
personnel and departments during the recall procedures.

Protection of Customer Privacy

The Group has formulated policies and procedures for protecting sensitive
customer information, and is available in the Staff Code of Conduct € & T17
#SFA). All confidential data related to the Group’s business and customer
information including but not limited to, customer list, projects, price, sales
contracts are securely protected and only used for internal purposes. Any
leakage of confidential information to third parties is strictly prohibited.
Employees are subject to disciplinary punishment in case of violations.

Customer Satisfaction

Feedbacks from customers are welcomed as it is the key to enhancing the
Group's service. Procedures for handling feedbacks have been set up. Should
the Group receive any complaints, the Group will strive to act immediately to
resolve the issue with effective corrective actions. In addition, any complaints
received are discussed and reviewed by the management during regular
meetings to prevent re-occurrence.

IP Rights

The Group has established relevant guidelines to govern the information
technology (“IT”) management within the Group. Besides, the IT Department
is responsible for obtaining proper licenses for software, hardware and
information used by the Group in its business operation. Duplication or
downloading of information, software, and images from the internet must
be approved by relevant departments. Furthermore, the Group closely
monitor the infringement actions in the market and prevent any infringement
behaviour, such as counterfeit trademarks.
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Advertising and Labelling

Regarding the business segment in manufacturing and selling medical
devices and epidemic-prevention supplies and products, the Group ensures
that its advertising and labelling practices abide by applicable laws and
regulations. The Quality Department provides accurate product descriptions
and information that comply with the relevant local laws and regulations.
The Quantity Control Procedures (& & 2§12 /7 )) also states the quality
control procedures, ensuring the quality of finalised products meets the
standard requirements. Besides, any misrepresentation in marketing materials
or exaggeration of offerings is strictly prohibited by the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group values and upholds integrity, honesty, and fairness, and strives
to achieve high standards of ethics in its business operations. The Group has
established the Staff Code of Conduct (( & T77<FAI|)) and the Regulations
regarding Anti-Corruption and Staff Probity and Self-Discipline B R & &
LETRZBEIE)), to define appropriate measures in handling conflict
of interests, leakage of confidential information, and embezzlement of the
Group’s asset in one’s position. All employees are expected to perform
their duties with integrity, to act fairly and professionally, and to abstain
from involving in any bribery activities or activities that might exploit their
positions against the Group’s interests.

During the Year, there was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including but not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China, and the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group encourages its employees to report alleged malpractices or
misconduct through the existing complaint box and hotline. The management
will take immediate action to investigate the issue. The Group endeavours
to protect the whistleblower from common concerns such as potential
retaliation and is assured that their identity as a whistle-blower will be kept
confidential. The Group has adopted a zero-tolerance approach towards all
forms of corruption, including deception, bribery, forgery, extortion, fraud,
conspiracy, embezzlement, money laundering and collusion. Disciplinary
actions or even a straight dismissal will be taken against any kind of
misconduct or malpractice.
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Operational Compliance

The Group strongly emphasises on operational compliance and strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations in its business ethics. To
achieve the goals, the Group implements relevant policies and standards, and
revises them regularly. To ensure that all employees can perform their duties
with high ethical standards and professionalism, the Group has arranged
internal and external anti-corruption and corporate governance trainings
and encouraged employees to actively learn about the latest development
and future trends of global anti-money laundering and bribery legal liability.
External trainings are provided by the professional parties and associations.
During the Year, the Group provided 4 anti-corruption trainings in different
topics including insurance and securities, and all of the Group’s directors and
employees had received the anti-corruption trainings in various topics.

Community investment

The Group is committed to supporting the community by various means of
social participation and contribution as part of its strategic development.
The Group has formulated relevant guidelines and actively participated in
local community activities. The Group also encourages its staff to engage in
community participation during their works and spare time. Although the
Group has devoted its resources to maintain its business operation during
the pandemic, it still donated approximately HK$1,000 to children with
malignant tumours during the Year.

Besides, the Group focuses on providing education of environmental
protection to the local community. During the Year, the Group’s
representatives taught the farmers in the local community about the ability
of crop straws, forest wastes, edible fungus residues, livestock manures and
other farm materials in converting into combustible energy and generating
bio-natural gas. Meanwhile, farmers were taught not to burn crop straws and
other farm wastes improperly to avoid forest fire as well as the air and GHG
emissions. The Group had approximately 40 voluntary hours in total during
the Year.

Having most of the philanthropic activities suspended by the pandemic, the
Group will reallocate its resources to focus more on social activities and
repay the community in the future. The Group plans to give back to society
through more active participation in community programmes, which not only
benefit society but also nurture a good corporate culture.

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPlIs Section/
FEEE - BE - —MIFER | Description Declaration
BREMER A g L
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEAL : BB
General Disclosure Information on: Environmental
— = (@) the policies; and Protection
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | IR¥%E{R#&
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
EF&EE&%&EE%&%HEH C KR EHEEES  BEREEERVNELS
(@ BE: Kk )
(b) BTHETABEAZENHBERIIROINER -
KPI AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
RSB IR RALLI BER e SR AR R BB Management —
Air Emissions,
Wastewater
Discharge

BEREE —BER
HEDR ~ BEZRBER

KPI A1.2
RRRAEARIEIRAT .2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (8BE—) R RMEE (8E — ) )R EREHNE A E) R (WER) =

Emissions
Management —
GHG Emissions
FREERE

EMASESEN - BEREE) RABHER
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, | Emissions
RAREDURIRAL3 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Management —
FESGEREEYHE (UEAE) R(ERA) B E (WABES B - §18 | Disposal of
RIEETHE) ° Solid Waste
PEREIE — E5e
RV E
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, | Emissions
BIREDURIZAL4 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Management —
FraEREREYES (AAE) R(NER)EE(WASESEA - 818 | Disposal of
RFTH) © Solid Waste
PERE IR — E5E
RV E
KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Environmental
RSB IEFALS fiit PrET SLEVBEE B R R A ERE L B IRFT IR 28 Target,
Emissions
Management —

Air Emissions,
GHG Emissions
RIRERE - BE
EIE —EERE
B RERE
)i

KPI A1.6
FASAABUEIRATL6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
RALERIE A = R BEREEYN T - MM PTR] SRR B IS R AR5 L
B ARFTEREX Y 225K

Environmental
Target,
Emissions
Management —
Disposal of
Solid Waste
RIFEZ - BER
BIE - EBEY
BE
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R HEREA

wE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Section/

FEEE - BE - —MIFER | Description Declaration

BREMER A g L

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2 AR

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other | Use of

— AR ER raw materials. Resources
BRERER(BIEER  KREAMBRME) BB - BREM

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or | Use of

RS AE IR TEA2.1 oil) in total (kWh in “000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | Resources
per facility). — Energy

ERENNER R, IREEER(NE - Raloh) @768 AT E TR
HIREE(NAGESEN - ®IERMH) -

Conservation

BIRER — 84

BEIR
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | Use of
RS B TTA2.2 per facility). Resources
BRKEREE (WASES B - FERMEE) — Water

Consumption
BRER—KE
TR A

KPI A2.3
BRRIERIEIRA2.3

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

fRIL PR SV BERIE AR B AR S AR5 Lk B AR FTERER ) 22 5

Environmental
Target, Use

of Resources

— Energy
Conservation
RERR BR
2 — &4 IR

KPI A2.4
RS RUIEIRA2 4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

i 2USKEGE R KOR E R B A - ARPREI 8 K B R R AERE
LE B RATERERR P8R o

Use of
Resources

— Water
Consumption
BIRERA—KE
TR

KPI A2.5
BRI NIEIRAL2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

Sk mAT R BEMHnEE (A E) R(ER) BEERMIGE -

Use of
Resources — Use
of Packaging
Materials
BIREA — A
BN
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Section/
FEHE  EBME - —MRFER | Description Declaration
BREMER 2k g L
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
JBTHAS : BRERRARER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment | The
—RRIER and natural resources. Environment
MEBETABRERRAEREKERTEHNHE - and Natural
Resources
RIBNRRARER
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and | The
BASRIE BURIRAS.1 natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Environment
WAEBHEBERELRARERNEAFENCRNEEEHPZENTTH © | and Natural
Resources
RERRRER

Aspect A4:
[BEA4 :

Climate Change
Riz2L

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues

Climate Change

— MR which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Mitigation and
BRI EH DR R G HHTAEEFENEARIFEREENBR Adaptation
AR N B E SRR
L*K,fb
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, | Climate Change

BB IR IRAL1

and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

BRI HETAEEVENEAR BT LEHTE

Mitigation and
Adaptation
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R HEREA

wE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Section/
FEEE - BE - —MIFER | Description Declaration
BREMIER A g L
Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : ="
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
—R = (a) the policies; and and Labour
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | Practices
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, | {EF &% ITE#R
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
BERHFM N E - BIELE - THERE - BRY - TERE  Zk R
BIARE M FE LB
@ BHE: R
(b) BETHETABEAZENHBERIIROINER -
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- | Employment
RSB BUEIEB .1 time), age group and geographical region. Practices
RILR - EEER (I - 2REGER)  FRAEN ORI NESEE - | EFIED
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employment
RIS IE WIEIEB1.2 RITH -~ FidR Mt REI D EESRALLE - Practices
E{RIED
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
FEEB2 RERZE
General Disclosure Information on: Health and
— I EE (a) the policies; and Safety
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | 2R &% %
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BRRALZE2TERENMREREERBENREN
(@ BHE: R
(b) ETHETABEAZENHREERIIROINER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three | Health and
RAfR R AUE1EB2.1 years including the reporting year. Safety
BE=—F(BREERFE)SFRATTHHABRSLLE - RN Z 2
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and
RS A IE1EB2.2 ATEMmMBEROTIERR - Safety
REEZE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how | Health and
RASRAE AUIE1EB2.3 they are implemented and monitored. Safety
L PR ANV BB R (2 B B 2 248 DA ARRARATT REEEUTE o RENZE




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPlIs Section/
FEEE - BE - —MIFER | Description Declaration
BREMER 2k g L
Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEBS3 : BREEA

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging

Development

— AR ER duties at work. Description of training activities. and Training
BRARTHE 8 BT TIERE M MBI BERBUR - RS - R N a5
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. | Development

BABHAEAIE1RB3.1

senior management, middle management).

BRI REEER (NERERE  PRERE)BDNZIIEBEFIL °

and Training

R NIF

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and | Development
RASRAE WIS 1EB3.2 employee category. and Training
RUER R ERREE S T A ES TRAIEIREL BREKIE
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : o]
General Disclosure Information on: Labour
— AR ER (@) the policies; and Standards
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | 4 T8
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
B IEET RagHI% TH -
@ BE: Kk
(b) BEFHEHBITABERZEMEEERLBANEER o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and | Labour
FAIR B IE1EB4.1 forced labour. Standards —
MR B OB AR R E T REHIZT - Prevention
of Child and
Forced Labour
25 T AR —
EEAZELIR
ST
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Labour
RSB MUIETRB4.2 HMAEBIR B RIE B A IS P ERER R 2258 Standards —
Prevention
of Child and
Forced Labour
BT AERI—
TEpEAETLR
SR T
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R HEREA

wE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Section/

TEEHE - BEH —MRIKER | Description Declaration

BREMER A g L

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EEBS5 : HEEEn

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Supply Chain

— R EE BIRMHEEAIRE KT RRBUR Management

HERERE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
RIS AE WU TEBS.1 i RE|I D EREE - Management
R 12

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | Supply Chain

BB AE RUEIEB5.2 where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented | Management
and monitored. HrEgEER
W AR AEEEAED - MENTEREMNNHENEE - URERIE
BIEERTT R EEERTTE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along | Supply Chain

R G 4E IE1EB5.3 the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Management
R B | R B IR A RIE R S RBRAED - URMARENITRE | HEREE
FE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable | Supply Chain

BASR A8 WU IEB5.4 products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are | Management
implemented and monitored. HEEER

LA BROR (R PO B (R (2 2 FIRIREE fn S IRTS OB B - A RARRATTT M EESR
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R HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Section/
FEEE - BE - —MIFER | Description Declaration
BREMER 2k g L
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
FEEB6 : EmRE
General Disclosure Information on: Product
(@) the policies; and Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | Em=E1F
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
—RIKE AEAMRHERMREORERLZS - BE  BREILEEEN
N AERTTER -
@ HE: R
(b) BTHETABEAZENRB@ERIIROINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | Product
RASR 48 WU 1EB6. 1 health reasons. Responsibility
EEIEEXEMEHPRAL T REFEEAMARKNE S - — Customer
Satisfaction
EmEE—
EPmBE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they | Product
AR A8 I 1RB6.2 are dealt with. Responsibility
BEERADAE mn RIS IR BB LA KBS T70% » — Customer
Satisfaction
EmEAE—
EEmEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual | Product
FafR 48 IR IEB6.3 property rights. Responsibility —
T L e o o IR AR EE AR B AR B - Protection of IP
Rights
EmaEE—
R AR
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product
RSB IE1RB6.4 VS 242 RIE RERBIYIET o Responsibility —
Product Quality
and Safety
EmEE—
EmEERLE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they | Product
AR A& WIS 1RB6.5 are implemented and monitored. Responsibility
i EE ERHMRERARBE - ARBEERTRERTE - — Protection
of Customer
Privacy
EmEE—
EPRALRE
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R HEREA

wE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Section/
FEEE - BE - —MIFER | Description Declaration
BRERER RE 55,88
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

FEMEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

Anti-corruption

— AR ER (@ the policies; and k&5
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BRI - BR  HGFAOERER -
@ BE: &
(b) BEFHEHBITABERZEEREELBRIEER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against | Anti-
BARAE DURIEBY .1 the issuer or its employees during the Year and the outcomes of the cases. corruption —
RARFEHEITANEEEREWEFENETHRARMOEE RFDR4 | Whistleblowing
R Mechanism
RES—
AR
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how | Anti-
RS 4R E1EBY .2 they are implemented and monitored. corruption —
T g R e MR RIR - DA RABRARIT REER 5 0E o Whistleblowing
Mechanism
&S —
AR
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Anti-corruption
BIBAE RUEIEBY .3 HmES &8 TRENRESHF - — Operational
Compliance
RE=—
EEGH
Aspect B8: Community Investment
JETHEBS : HERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the | Community
—MAREE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into | Investment
consideration the communities’ interests. HEEE
B RSER T RETACEMELEFZENBRAEL GG EEL
= B EER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour | Community
AR 4 IE1EBS. 1 needs, health, culture, sport). Investment
HI BRI (A  BREE  BIEK - @2F k- 85) - HERgE
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community
FAfR 48 BUR1EBS.2 EEIHEMBAER(ING EIEH) - Investment
HERE




Report of the Directors

EERBEE

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the Year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on page 103.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the businesses of the Group, discussion and analysis of the
performance of the Group during the Year and the material factors underlying
its financial performance and financial position as well as the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is set out in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to
6 and pages 7 to 18 of this annual report and in note 4 and note 6(2) to
the consolidated financial statements. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the Year, as far as the Directors are aware, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the Group'’s business and operations.

Environmental policy

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from its
business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manage
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and
adopting green technologies, such as double-sided printing and copying,
setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance.

CEABERERERAR(EAT I REMEA
A AEEDESR(EERINEEDRER
EIWEENBEE T -_—F+-_A=+—81It
FRE(RFE]) 2 EEZREMHHRE -

EFREHK

ARBZETBEBAREER - EffE AR 2E
2EBHEN AP BREKMEE20 -

AEBERNAFEREBRICREDIELR 2 DTH
WA BRI

ES V&l

REBNARNFE 2 FEHNE103 B 2EFABER
KA °

EETEAREEE T —F+-_HA=1+—H
IFEEZRE -

E S 361

RBBEERAEPIMRSRE » AEEEKZ
FrPmeE  AEERAFE 2R REEENT
KB RGN 2 BERAR 2 77w " DM AR
SEEHOTERR K THARE  CHREAF
BFEIAZ6R[TFERE I RE7TAE18AE[EHEE
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E%E}iﬁii

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses to move towards adhering the 3Rs —
“Reduce”, “Recycle” and “Reuse” and enhance environmental sustainability.

Relationships with stakeholders

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. Competitive remuneration packages and a sound performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives are provided and implemented
to attract and motivate employees. In addition, to conform to the market
standard, the Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments. Moreover, the Group
understands the importance of maintaining good relationship with business
partners is vital to achieve its long-term goals. Thus, senior management of
the Group have kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them as and when appropriate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 107 and the movements
in the reserves of the Company during the Year are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Convertible notes

On 24 August 2018, the Company entered into the convertible notes
restructuring agreement with the noteholder, pursuant to which the
noteholder agreed to a consensual restructuring of its rights and obligations
under the existing convertible notes due 31 December 2018 in the
outstanding principal amount of HK$365,000,000 issued by the Company.
The new HK$365,000,000 2 per cent convertible notes due 31 December
2021 (the “Convertible Notes”) entitling the noteholder to convert up to
an aggregate of 2,281,250,000 shares were issued to the noteholder on 6
November 2018. Since the issue is made pursuant to restructuring, issuance
of the new convertible notes did not raise any new funds for the Company.
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On 30 September 2019, Century Gold Millennium International Holdings
Group Limited (“Century Gold”) as purchaser and New Alexander Limited
(“New Alexander”) as vendor entered into a transfer agreement dated 30
September 2019 (the “CN Transfer Agreement”) in relation to the transfer of
the Convertible Notes, pursuant to which Century Gold conditionally agreed
to acquire and New Alexander conditionally agreed to sell the Convertible
Notes issued by the Company in the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of HK$365,000,000, which are convertible into a total of 3,041,666,666 new
shares upon full conversion at the conversion price of HK$0.12 per shares,
at a total consideration of HK$310,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.102 per shares of the Company). Completion of the CN Transfer
Agreement took place on 1 April 2020.

On 30 June 2020, the Convertible Notes with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 were converted into 83,333,333 ordinary shares of the
Company. There were Convertible Notes with the principal amount of
HK$355,000,000 remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020. During the
Year, the Convertible Notes with the principal amount of HK$355,000,000
were converted into 2,958,333,333 ordinary shares at the conversion price
of HK$0.12 per share. The Group did not have any outstanding Convertible
Notes as at 31 December 2021.

Details of other movements in the Convertible Notes are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share options

Under the terms of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders on 11 November 2014 (the
“Adoption Date”), the Directors may, at their discretion, offer any eligible
participants (including any Directors) of the Company or of any of its
subsidiaries option(s) to subscribe for shares in the Company (the “Option(s)”)
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the Share Option Scheme. A
summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1)  Purpose
(@ To recognise and acknowledge the contributions which the
eligible participants have made or may make to the Group.

Report of the Directors

EERWES

RZZE—NFNLAE=Z1+H L EEEER
SEERAR([HESE]) EAEH) EBNew
Alexander Limited ([ New Alexander | ) ({E & &
FRINBEA-ZE-AFAAZTH ZEZHH
([TEREBEERR])  NAFHEERTRR
BB tESEERERENE - MNew
AlexanderB 51 RI & L& AR A AT TI ATR A
HMEFR012B TR A BMAES 2£3,041,666,666
BN ZAIRBRER(EREERSRER
365,000,000 7T )  # X {E /310,250,000 JT
(FBEROTBRARRAIRBHD0.102/87T) » ATRRE
BEEGHON S -_ZFMA—BTK -

R-Z-TFEA=1+H  A&%AE10,000,000
BT AR R B0 583,333,333 AN AR
% o N4 %8 5355,000,00078 T K A AR 2
R-B-_TF+ A=+ —BHRITE - RAFE
€ N&HEA355,000,00078 7T 2 AT AR IR IE
& EFR0.128 T EE#A2,958,333,333 A% % i@
e M—_B-_—F+=-_A=+—H X&EERE
M ARITE AT R -

AT R IR 2 B BB B H AR A IS TRER T
531 °

fEmE
REARBBRRAR-_Z—MOF+—A+—B (K
B E 2 R B ([RS8 )) 2 (&
R BEEAREIBRBEREBIFTAZ G EIF
AR ARSEEEAMBRARZEMNSERSHE
E(BREEMNES) X THBREABBEARRABRN
(B ]) - BBRUE 8 225 T ¢

m A&
@ RBEEFLEXAIEEAREELR
BlzAaBER2EE -

B H— =& | 1707 LIOdT TVNNNY

o
—_—



B i E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

oo
No

Report of the Directors

E%E}iﬁii

2)

3)

(b)  The Share Option Scheme will provide the eligible participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with a view
to achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the eligible participants to utilise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationship
with the eligible participants whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Eligible participants

(@) any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any invested entity of the Company
(“Invested Entity”); and

(b) any discretionary trust who discretionary objects include any
Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity;

and for the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, the Option may be
granted to any corporation wholly-owned by any person under (a)
above.

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
the Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue (or the shares of the subsidiary) as at
the Adoption Date, being 406,907,955 shares (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”).

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2016, an
ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the Scheme Mandate Limit so
that the Company would be allowed to grant options under the Share
Option Scheme for subscription up to a total of 578,765,179 shares,
representing 10% of the number of shares in issue as at 2 June 2016.
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“)

(5)

(6)

)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2017, an
ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the Scheme Mandate Limit so
that the Company would be allowed to grant options under the Share
Option Scheme for subscription up to a total of 479,079,342 shares,
representing 10% of the number of shares in issue as at 7 June 2017.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
for the time being of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such
number of shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the Options granted to an eligible participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any twelve-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

Subject to separate approval by the shareholders in general meeting
with the relevant participant and his associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)) abstaining from voting provided that the Company shall issue
a circular to shareholders before such approval is sought, the Company
may grant a participant options which would exceed this limit.

Option period
The period within which the shares must be taken up under the Option
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant option.

Minimum period for which the Option must be held before it can vest

The minimum period, if any, for which the Option must be held before
it can vest shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion.
The Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any minimum holding
period.

Payment on acceptance of the Option

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the Option offer. An offer must be accepted within 30 days from the
date of grant.

“)

()

(6)

)
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(8) Basis of determining the subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of the grant but shall not be less than the higher
of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the date of grant; and

(i) the average closing prices of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

(9) The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The life of the Share Option Scheme is 10 years commencing on the
Adoption Date and will expire on 10 November 2024.

During the Year and as at 31 December 2021, there was no outstanding
share option granted to the eligible participants. As at the date of this report,
the total number of shares available for issue upon exercise of share options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 47,907,934 ordinary shares,
being 10% of the number of shares in issue on 7 June 2017 and adjusted for
the effect of the share consolidation completed on 26 July 2018, representing
approximately 1.08% of the number of shares of the Company in issue.

Placing of new shares under general mandates

On 15 March 2021, the Group entered into a placing agreement with an
independent financial institution to raise fund of approximately HK$29.3
million by issuance of new shares under general mandate (i.e. the “March
Placing”). On 25 March 2021, a total of 149,691,195 ordinary shares were
issued and placed by the placing agent to not less than six placees which
were independent third parties.

On 22 October 2021, the Group entered into a placing agreement with an
independent financial institution to raise fund of approximately HK$81.8
million by issuance of new shares under general mandate (i.e. the “October
Placing”). On 17 November 2021, a total of 409,000,000 ordinary shares
were issued and placed by the placing agent to not less than six placees
which were independent third parties.

Further details in relation to the March Placing and the October Placing are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Capital
Structure — Placing under General Mandates” of this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material event after the reporting period.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors
Pan Jibiao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shao Yanxia

Non-executive director
Shiu Shu Ming (resigned with effect from 1 October 2021)

Independent non-executive directors

Lai Kin Keung

Yeung Chi Wai

Chan Yim Por Bonnie (resigned with effect from 1 April 2021)
Wong Man Hung Patrick (appointed with effect from 1 April 2021)

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but greater than one-third, shall retire from office. Details of the retiring
Directors shall be set out in the circular, among other things, for proposal for
re-election of retiring directors accompanying to the notice of annual general
meeting to be sent to be shareholders in due course.

Pursuant to article 104 of the articles of association of the Company, Mr.
Lai Kin Keung and Mr. Yeung Chi Wai will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All the Directors do not have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

As at 31 December 2021, Ms. Shao Yanxia were also directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
included Mr. Chan Chiu Shing, Mr. Lee Kin Fai, Mr. Fung Fai Dennis, Mr. Li
Jianhao, Mr. Lai Tsung Yu, Mr. Chen Ganghao, Mr. Lau Nam Fung, Henry,
Mr. Shi Long and Mr. Zhou Mingyi.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating policies on the remuneration of senior management of the
Group. Details of the emoluments of each Director and the five highest paid
individuals of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”)
that meets the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the Companies
Ordinance for the benefits of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions/
Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Report of the Directors of this
annual report and “Related Party Transactions” in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, there is no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director (including any person who at any time during the Year was
a Director) or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions/
Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Report of the Directors of this
annual report and “Related Party Transaction” in Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, there was not any contract of significance between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company
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(i) RAEDFARBZER
Approximate

percentage of
issued share

capital of
Name of Directors/ Number of the Company
chief executive of the Company Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 1)
HAELFE
BITRAZ
AATEE BRBED
FEITHAEHE EEME ZRRHAE (KizE1)
Pan Jibiao (Note 2) Through a controlled corporation 3,278,604,864 73.61%
(Note 2)
BREEZ(M2) BEREIEEE 3,278,604,864 73.61%
(B1at2)
Notes: Hrat

1. Based on 4,454,196,695 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31
December 2021.

2. These 3,278,604,864 ordinary shares of the Company held by Century Gold
Millennium International Holdings Group Limited (“Century Gold”), which is
wholly owned by Mr. Pan Jibiao. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Pan Jibiao is deemed
to be interested in these ordinary shares of the Company.
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(i) Long positions in shares of associated corporation (i) REBZERGZHE
Name of Director/ Name of Percentage of
chief executive associated Number of shareholding
of the Company corporation Nature of interest ordinary shares interest
EARQFE
TARES BITRAZ
FETHRAEHSR HRECEE B ERME EERHE BMOBEDL
Pan Jibiao Century Gold (Note)  Beneficial owner 1 100%
B e e (fa) BaEAA 1 100%
Note: Century Gold, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the it e EA—HNEBERARESTMRLZ
controlling shareholder of the Company. RA] - RARTZEBRBER -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and ﬂ?J:YFﬁﬁEﬁ IR ZEBE_—FF+—A=+—
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or CHEEERARNREETHRAERARRK

short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company ETEEH*EE?P/Z.(E?EE B85 RHIRIEDIZEXVED)
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the — Zi&fn « MHBAR MO KEEZEF - A IR A%
SFO) which (i) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be ~ B()IRIEFEHFLHTE 1%@']%3521'5‘5 TR ARZIRDIFR
entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) were required to be notified it 7 Z MRz S sA R © S IRIKIZAEST A
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. ARMEERR 7&5@?5&%2% SERA

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT FERFRAATRDREEKRG 2#EH
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF R#%#&
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the substantial % — T:—i-i— A=+—8 AQAEERE
shareholders of the Company (other than the Directors or chief executive of (BEERARD BT A BBRIN) AR BED

the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which jzjfgf‘ﬁﬁg{/]}qn %ﬁ*ﬁ?}%?ﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%%%xvgﬂ

[a)

% were n'o‘tified to the Company and the Stock Exchange. under the prov.isions FEORIDWIEX BHERNA T RESFT - ARE
a of PIVISIOHS 2 anc'J 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be kept in the  spsa R N FMR BB L b B S (S| E 336 16EBES >
o] register under section 336 of the SFO were as follows: RS RARTT

O

% Approximate
3 percentage of
é issued share
8 capital of
z Number of the Company
& Name of substantial Shareholders Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 1)
z YT
g BITRAZ
& BMABED
z TERREE BB EatE SERHBE (BaE1)
g

e Century Gold (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,278,604,864 73.61%
= e eE(f72) EmEB A 3,278,604,864 73.61%
=
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Notes:

1. Based on 4,454,196,695 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31 December
2021.

2. These 3,278,604,864 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Century Gold, which
is wholly owned by Mr. Pan Jibiao. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Pan Jibiao is deemed to
be interested in these ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company has not
been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company, which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES IN
THE COMPANY

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any listed
securities of the Company during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue during the Year attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was 60.15% of the Group’s total revenue, of which 19.46% was
made to the largest customer.

The aggregate purchase during the Year attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers was 48.80% of the Group’s total purchases, of which
19.98% was made from the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder
of the Company who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital has an interest in the suppliers or customers
disclosed above.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors as required under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group carried out the following connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions with the following connected persons,
namely:

(1) Mr. Pan Jibiao (“Mr. Pan”) and Ms. Shao Yanxia (“Ms. Shao”), both
being executive Directors;

(2)  Ms. Li Dan (“Ms. Li"), the spouse and hence an associate (within the
meaning under the Listing Rules) of Mr. Pan;

(3)  Mr. Fung Fai Dennis (“Mr. Fung”), a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company;

(4)  Mr. LiJianhao (“Mr. Li”), a director of a subsidiary of the Company;

(5)  Mr. Cheung Ka Chi Perry (“Mr. Cheung”), a director of a subsidiary of
the Company; and

(6) Mr. Lee Kin Fai (“Mr. Lee”), a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.
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The Group conducted the following connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions (other than those exempted from the annual reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) during the Year:

(@

Insurance Brokerage Agreement

On 10 November 2020, GCINT Wealth Management Limited (“GCINT
Wealth Management”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an insurance brokerage agreement with Ms. Li (“Insurance
Brokerage Agreement”) pursuant to which GCINT Wealth Management
provided the packaged insurance brokerage services to Ms. Li for a term
of 12 months commencing from 10 November 2020 and expiring on 9
November 2021.

Pursuant to the Insurance Brokerage Agreement, GCINT Wealth
Management shall assist Ms. Li in procuring insurance policies to
be taken out with third party insurer(s) by the provision of packaged
insurance brokerage services and the provision of such insurance
brokerage services shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the
standard client agreement of GCINT Wealth Management as amended
or modified from time to time. The premium to be made by Ms. Li
under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement comprises (i) the premium
payable to third party insurers as set out in the insurance policies; and
(ii) the commission paid by the third party insurers to GCINT Wealth
Management.

The transactions with Ms. Li under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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(b)

The insurance brokerage income under the Insurance Brokerage
Agreement

According to the relevant insurance policies entered into among
GCINT Wealth Management, the third-party insurer and Ms. Li on
10 November 2020 and 22 December 2020, Ms. Li applied for two
insurance policies and each of them has a term of 5 years. Based on
the Insurance Brokerage Agreement, Ms. Li will pay the third party
insurer a premium in accordance with the rates set out in the relevant
fee schedule, while GCINT Wealth Management is remunerated for
its brokerage service by way of the commission paid by the third party
insurer based on the agreed commission rates and payment schedule.
According to the terms of the signed insurance policies taken out with
the third party insurer, the aggregate commission to be received by
GCINT Wealth Management from the third party insurer under the
Insurance Brokerage Agreement was approximately HK$3,269,000
during the Year.

For details in relation to the Insurance Brokerage Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 24 May 2021.

Provision of IPO Loans

During the Year, GCINT (HK) Limited (“GCINT (HK)"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in its ordinary and usual
course of business, have granted a number of loans for the purpose
of acquiring securities in the initial public offerings on the Stock
Exchange (“IPO Loans”) to Mr. Pan, Ms. Li, Ms. Shao, Mr. Fung, Mr.
Li, Mr. Cheung and Mr. Lee (collectively, “Connected Clients”) which
constituted connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the IPO Loans are set out as follows:
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Mr. Pan and Ms. Li BEERFL L

Amount of

interest

received from

Principal Principal Mr. Pan and

amount of amount of Ms. Li (on an

loan granted to loan granted to aggregated

Date of loan Duration of loan Mr. Pan Ms. Li basis)

EBEERETLZLT

BRFBEEN BFE=z+H WEHFIE S5

EXAH ERHER BRAELHE BRETHE (REHERE)

(Approximately (Approximately (Approximately

HK$’000) HK$’000) HK$)

(#9TF#r) (#9F#T) (#%r)

21/05/2021 6 days 7,883 78,834 39,914
—ZE-—FAAF-+—H 6H

08/06/2021 7 days 7,863 - 4,901
—E-—FANH 7H

10/06/2021 7 days 5,963 6,295 7,882
—E-—FxXA+H 78

23/06/2021 6 days 5,400 5,400 5,770
—E-—FXA=Z+=H 6H

25/06/2021 7 days 7,763 5176 8,065
- —FXA=+HAH 78

30/06/2021 7 days 4,845 4,845 6,040
—E-—FXA=1+H 7H

07/07/2021 7 days 4,945 - 3,082
—E-—F+AtH 7H

07/07/2021 8 days 6,223 6,223 8,866
—E-—%FtHtHR 8H

17/08/2021 6 days 5,409 5,409 5,779
—E-—FN\A++tH 6H
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Ms. Shao Bzt
Principal
amount of Amount of
loan granted to interest received
Date of loan Duration of loan Ms. Shao from Ms. Shao
BFEWLZLH & AR Z2 + UK ER Y
EXEH EFHIR EXRELHE FE£%E
(Approximately (Approximately
HK$000) HK$)
(#)FE7T) (#8T)
21/05/2021 6 days 8,584 5,475
—E-—FRAZ+—H 6H
08/06/2021 7 days 6,640 4,393
—E—FXANHA 7H
10/06/2021 7 days 283 187
—FXA+H 7H
11/06/2021 12 days 45 35
—E-—FRAT—H 12H
25/06/2021 7 days 8,454 6,452
—ZE-—FXA=-+HH 7H
30/06/2021 7 days 1,790 1,184
—E-—FXA=1+H 7H
07/07/2021 7 days 5,385 4,110
—E-—F+tA+H 78
07/07/2021 8 days 938 710
S s = 8H
Other Connected Clients HupaEs s
Principal Amount of
Name of Connected Client Duration of amount of interest
Date of loan (Note 2) loan loan granted received
BEEFEE ERENER WER #9 FIL2,
EXAH (Ktzt2) EFHR PN x|
(Approximately (Approximately
HK$’000) HK$)
(#)FE7T) (#8r)
21/05/2021 Mr. Li 6 days 8,321 4,377
—E_—fAA=-+—H FREKE 6H
21/05/2021 Mr. Lee 6 days 8,321 4,377
—EZ—FAA=+—H FREEE A 6H
08/06/2021 Mr. Fung 7 days 6,640 4,139
= AV DAY =] BAE 7H
08/06/2021 Mr. Cheung 7 days 6,850 4,598
—ET-—FAN\H R AE 7H
For details in relation to the provision of IPO Loans to the Connected ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁkgﬁ}%{%é,}zﬂ&ﬁ& EE

Clients, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 30 November

2021.
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(c) Financing Services Agreement

GCINT (HK) and GCINT Asset Management Limited (“GCINT AM”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
financing services agreements with Mr. Pan, Ms. Li and Ms. Shao on
22 November 2021 (the “Financing Services Agreements”), pursuant
to which GCINT (HK) agrees to provide, among other, IPO financing
services to each of Mr. Pan, Ms. Li and Ms. Shao upon their request and/
or GCINT AM in the capacity of the investment manager of each of Mr.
Pan, Ms. Li and Ms. Shao for a term commencing from 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2024 subject to the terms and conditions contained
herein.

For details in respect of the Financing Services Agreement, please refer
to the Company’s circular dated 30 November 2021.

During the Year, related party transactions in note 40(A) to the
consolidated financial statements fell under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, related party transactions in relation to the key
management personnel compensation who are Directors or chief
executive of the Company in note 40(C) to the consolidated financial
statements fell under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” (as the case may be) and they were
fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the then
prevailing Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the Year except the deviations set out in the
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

(9]
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AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited (“Confucius”) was appointed as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 26 June 2020 to fill the casual
vacancy following the retirement of HLM CPA Limited upon the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 June 2020. Save as
disclosed above, there were no other changes in the auditor of the Company
during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2021 were audited by Confucius and have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Confucius will retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Confucius as the auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pan Jibiao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

R BUEm

REEREAMEBAERAR(RE])ERE
RARBZHE BT -TFA-+TRARL
R NEMEREFIMARARN_Z_TF
NAZTRABRTZARRRRBFRGERK
RIER 2R ZER « R EXATIREEIN - AQF]
REENN B E = F AL EE A E

ARBBE_Z_ZER_FT_—F+_H
=t HUEFESAUBRRAREER 1B
HEZZESEM -

REENEERFBFAE LRE  UHFEER
REEREME - ARABREEBRRBFAE L
REABREBREE AR R RREED -

KEEER
TRERITEARE
BAER

B —E-—_F=A=+HH



Independent Auditor’s Report

BYRBERES

AAN-CHINA

Confucius

RREBER TN FBH AR

International CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Golden Century
International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 223, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

BBEF A TRE1815 B AE1501-08%
Rooms 1501-08,15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,
181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
% Tel: (852) 3103 6980
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been prepared assuming that the Group will continue as
a going concern. We draw attention to note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicated that the Group incurred a net loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$61,960,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021, and as at the same date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$157,442,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
As explained in the consolidated financial statements, these consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Our audit
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter

MREITER

Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE B NAHRARENERETER

Valuation and impairment assessment of intangible assets

R EEZIGERBEFE

As set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has HK$76,560,000 of intangible assets (related to
production sharing contract) on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021.

Management is required to carry out impairment assessment,
which is judgemental and based on a number of assumptions.

Recoverable amount of the intangible assets is based on
forecasting and discounting future cash flows, which are
inherently judgemental.

The conclusion of the impairment assessment was based on
a value-in-use model that required significant management
estimation with respect to the discount rate and the underlying
projected cash flows.

WMEREMERERMTIOME R E_—F+=_A=+—
H'W EEBERGEVBUIRBSEREE(SRERIKE
[@)76,560,00078 7T °
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MER G EmiZEREERRASGE - EREARZEAP L
BERBBRSREFAEL ERMEET -

Our audit procedures included, among others:

-~ detailed testing of directors’ impairment assessment for
the intangible assets;

- reviewing the discounted cash flow models and assessing
the principles and the model adopted;

- critically assessing the Group’s key assumptions for its
cash flow projections, with reference to internally and
externally derived sources and taking into account the
Group's historical forecasting accuracy; and

—  evaluating the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

We found the assumptions made by management and
external valuer in arriving at the valuation and impairment
assessment of the intangible assets to be reasonable based on
available evidence. We found the disclosures in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements to be appropriate.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZBMRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liabilities to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ZE_UI‘? HERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yip Yuen Nga

Practising Certificate Number: P05908
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
rEBRmEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

2021 2020
—E=—f —ECEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FAT
Revenue Uz
Contracts with customers BEAH 36,235 69,755
Interest income FE WA 696 11
Total revenue B ES 7 36,931 69,766
Cost of sales SHE A (14,745) (64,615)
Gross profit E7 22,186 5,151
Other income Heblg A 8 7,447 3,457
Other gains and losses E s & EiE 9 40,681 72,412
Administrative expenses ITHRAY (69,522) (63,081)
Amortisation of production sharing contract 7D A A [Fl 2 2k 19 4,754) (5,035)
Gain on bargain purchase A EWE RS = 6,474
Impairment loss on production sharing Emp KA R mERE
contract 19 (5,342) (11,376)
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - HEEkREZRERR
equipment 17 (1,670) (1,946)
(Loss) profit from operations REXEB (BR)EF (10,974) 6,056
Finance costs & A 10 (53,838) (70,794)
Loss before tax BREiATEE 11 (64,812) (64,738)
Income tax FRrigti 14(a) 2,383 111
Loss for the year FEBE (62,429) (64,627)
Attributable to: JFEAh
Owners of the Company Vi/NEIE 2PN (61,960) (64,369)
Non-controlling interests FEIE I S (469) (258)
(62,429) (64,627)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) EARREE (GBI 16 (3.71) (8.00)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEm R EMZEBRARRE

—FF A= —HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 = F =

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FBT
Loss for the year FEBR (62,429) (64,627)
Other comprehensive expense Hitt2HEFX
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HEAEH DR Em 2 HE
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREEINRIFELE 2 E W ERR
operations (5,288) (6,577)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FEHM2EAX - NRAEBH
net of income tax (5,288) (6,577)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FEXHEHBXEE (67,717) (71,204)
Attributable to: JEfE
Owners of the Company KABEEA A (67,248) (70,946)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR R (469) (258)
(67,717) (71,204)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PHRRR

At 31 December 2021 R —ZE - —F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—B—fF —TEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FAT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - SR LRE 17 108,895 109,118
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 18 23,399 34,916
Intangible assets mEE 19 77,560 84,966
Goodwill Bk 26 - 308
Deposits bireca 23 3,072 2,259
212,926 231,567
Current assets REBEE
Inventory 7E8 21 255 785
Financial assets at fair value through BAHEGABRC eREE
profit or loss 22 2,318 4,458
Trade and other receivables B 5 K HAn el IR 23 34,068 79,250
Cash and bank balances e MiRTTER 25 106,379 34,411
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEEZES 24 10,286 11,437
153,306 130,341
Current liabilities REBAEE
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company REREIFRA B 2 ER 30 107,510 -
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party A BT T 2 B 30 70,477 -
Other borrowing, unsecured HAbER - EmEH 27 12,138 11,749
Trade and other payables B 5 K H MR 28 95,391 113,917
Bonds &% 29 9,999 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 9,455 9,995
Tax payables JERTTRIE 14(c) 5,491 5,450
Contract liabilities aHAaE 287 278
Convertible notes — liabilities portion MR RE - B EHS 31 = 311,945
Convertible notes — embedded derivatives — AJ#AEZE - NEPTET A 31 = 46,234
310,748 499,568
Net current liabilities RBREFE (157,442) (369,227)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABERE 55,484 (137,660)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

At 31 December 2021 R —ZE ——#F+_—HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Miat FHET FAT
Non-current liabilities FEREEME
Other payables H b e 1~ 50 E 28 - 17,799
Bonds &% 29 = 9,996
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 15,004 24,087
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company A BKBIER AR ER 30 - 107,655
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEEE 14(d) 15,728 17,691
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party KB REITET T 2§ 30 = 68,220
30,732 245,448
Net assets (liabilities) EEEBBFE 24,752 (383,108)
Capital and reserves BERR#E
Share capital f& 7 35 2,551,588 2,075,632
Reserves HE (2,521,178) (2,453,891)
Equity (capital deficiency) attributable to RRRGEE NEL S (EREA)
owners of the Company 30,410 (378,259)
Non-controlling interests Bl (5,658) (4,849)
Total equity (capital deficiency) RERAE(EREA) 24,752 (383,108)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 223 were approved

and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Pan Jibiao
BK
DIRECTOR
E3

HRFI03EE223B AV BRELEZTHN
FZRA-+RHAEREETIE X h
THEZRERFE

— e — —

—_—=—

Shao Yanxia
AREhE
DIRECTOR
E



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FRRRE ALY
Special Non- Total equity/
Share capital Exchange Accumulated controlling (capital
capital reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests  deficiency)
RHER ERAE/
A e EXRfRE  RHER M OEBRRER  (BREA)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THL THL THL THL THL THL THL
(note 42(a))  (note 42(b))
(Hizt422)  (B15#42())

At 1 January 2020 RZE=ZF—-f—H 2,060,115 579,799 149,691  (3,112,435) (322,830) (4,904) (327,734)
Loss for the year FEEE - - - (64,369) (64,369) (258) (64,627)
Other comprehensive FEEMRERX

expense for the year - - (6,577) - (6,577) - (6,577)
Total comprehensive FREIERXER

expenses for the year - - (6,577) (64,369) (70,946) (258) (71,204)

Issue of shares upon exercise 17{F RRIEF R T

of warrants e fn 4,962 - - - 4,962 - 4,962
Conversion of convertible  EARIRRZIE ARH

notes into shares 10,555 - - - 10,555 - 10,555
Capital injection of subsidiary H{EARITE - - - - - 313 313

At 31 December 2020 and R -ZE-ZTF

1 January 2021 TZA=+-BRK
—Z-_-%-A-H 2,075,632 579,799 143,114 (3,176,804) (378,259) (4,849) (383,108)
Loss for the year FEER - - - (61,960) (61,960) (469) (62,429)
Other comprehensive FEEMZERX
expense for the year - - (5,288) - (5,288) - (5,288)
Total comprehensive FREPARAXEE
expenses for the year - - (5,288) (61,960) (67,248) (469) (67,717)
Issue of shares upon REERETRG
placement 109,504 - - - 109,504 - 109,504
Conversion of convertible B RTARZIR B
notes into shares 366,452 - - - 366,452 - 366,452 >
Acquisition of G e £ g
non-controlling interest (Hf34) :_:
(note 34) - - - (39) (39) (340) (379) g
3
At 31 December 2021 R-B=—fF =
+ZA=+—H 2,551,588 579,799 137,826 (3,238,803) 30,410 (5,658) 24,752 W
I
5
7
5
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mzt TR FET
Operating activities xR
Loss before tax FrEATES 18 (64,812) (64,738)
Adjustments for: TEH AT -
Interest income MEHA 8 (10) (45)
Finance costs RUERA 10 53,838 70,794
Dividend income & 2N 8 (28) -
Gain on fair value change of convertible AMERE-ASTETAZ
notes — embedded derivatives NHEEE) 2 W 9 (34,383) (61,599)
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERA AT ABRZ SRl
at fair value through profit or loss BEZ BB 9 814 3,223
Net loss on revaluation on financial assets ~ E{HIEZ AT EFT AB@m 2 & @l
at fair value through profit or loss BE ERFE 9 19 28
Depreciation of property, M HERRBINE
plant and equipment 17 14,690 8,959
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 18 11,852 7,724
Amortisation of production sharing contract ~ E 7 k& [Fl 2 # 5 19 4,754 5,035
Impairment loss on production sharing EmaKa Rz mESE
contract 19 5,342 11,376
Impairment loss on property, WE - W RE 2 RIERE
plant and equipment 17 1,670 1,946
Impairment loss on goodwill R E &1 9 308 -
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWZE - R REREH
plant and equipment (M) 18 9 (53) 5
Write-back of inventory mEFE 9 ) -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  ##8%73 - %28 &% 9 166 176
Gain on bargain purchase BEWE 2 Y = (6,474)
Loss (gain) on derecognition of a subsidiary ~ #% - &R —FEIE A T2
E518 (et ) 9 16 (1
Operating cash flow before movements SEEe BRI KEREnE
in working capital (5,826) (23,591)
Decrease (increase) in inventory FERAEMm) 523 (785)
Increase in contract liabilities ARBEEM - 278
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 K E A FEUCRIER A (38 50)
receivables 41,276 (73,767)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 R E b o (g ) k>
payables (39,619) 72,005
Cash used in operations REXBHAZR/E (3,646) (25,860)
Income tax paid EIPTISH (159) (113)
Interest received BEUFILE 10 45
Net cash used in operating activities REXBRBDAZREFHE (3,795) (25,928)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii
—F+ A=+ —HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &,

=—F—

— =

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mzt TR FET
Investing activities REXE
Decrease (increase) in restricted bank PR HIRITAEERR D (35 0)
balances 2,901 (3,175)
Decrease (increase) in cash held on behalf K& F#EE 2B A (EM)
of clients 1,151 (11,399)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EHEIRIRITIEFRUR D - 120
Decrease in cash balance in a pledged EERRECRSPZHSEH
margin account b = 1
Dividend received [EEGES) 28 -
Payment of rental deposit HERSR (3) (4,068)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB ¥)3 - #2828 (12,978) (43,382)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - s MRBSFHE
plant and equipment 53 1
Purchase of financial assets at fair value EERNTE ABR2E
through profit or loss EiE (50,155) (5,434)
Purchase of additional interest in a FEE M E QR 2 FEME S
subsidiary (380) -
Net cash inflow from acquisition WEMBAREEZEDRA
of subsidiaries JFER = 4,515
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEZAFEFTABZE 2 CRVE
fair value through profit or loss EFTSEIE 51,462 8,850
Net cash used in investing activities REXRBRAZESTFE (7,921) (53,971)
Financing activities e
Principal elements of lease payment HENRZ AT (9,961) (5,770)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon MTERRIERREITIRG TS
exercise of warrants I8 = 4,962
Proceeds from borrowings &R PRISFIE 20,000 -
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company KB BB ER N R 2 ER - 87,500
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party KBRS 2 E5R - 60,676
Interest paid BAFE (5,210) (5,511)
Repayment of bonds BRES = (5,000)
Proceeds from issue of new shares under RIEAL S B ITHR D R AT 8 308
placement 109,504 -
Repayment of borrowings BEER (20,000) (25,000)
Net cash generated from financing activities BIEXKEL R FE 94,333 111,857
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B¢ KIR&E(ETE B 1 INFE 82,617 31,958
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUIzHEe MR HEER
of year 31,236 10,388
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNERE R BB 2 & (7,799) (11,110)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZAGRAELEHEER 25 106,054 31,236
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ~ BE&RIRSESEBR LB :
equivalents:
Cash and bank balances Re RIRI TR 25 106,379 34,411
Less: Restricted bank balances B IR BRITAE R 25 (325) (3,175)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FrzBe RIReEEER 106,054 31,236

B H— =& | 1707 LIOdT TVNNNY

109



B i E AR 2 F | GOLDEN CENTURY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

&

&

110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and the principal place of business of the Company is
45th Floor, Tower 1, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Century Gold Millennium International
Holdings Group Limited (the “Ultimate Holding Company”), which is
a private limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Pan Jibiao (the “Ultimate Controlling
Party”).

The principal activities of the Group are coalbed methane gas
exploration and exploitation, sale of electronic components, financial
business, wealth management, comprehensive healthcare and
proprietary investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
In addition, the functional currencies of certain group entities that
operate outside Hong Kong are determined based on the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the group entities operate.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of these amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —RER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKAS 16

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021!

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018
2020*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
4 Effective date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all these
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in-use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$61,960,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021, and as at the same date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$157,442,000.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due in the foreseeable future, after taking into
consideration of the followings:

(i)  As at 31 December 2021, the Company has drawn down
loans of HK$97,500,000 and undrawn loan facilities of
HK$102,500,000 granted by the Ultimate Holding Company
with interest payable of HK$10,010,000, which are provided
on a subordinated basis. The Ultimate Holding Company will
not demand the Company for repayment of such loans nor
cancel the undrawn loan facilities until all other liabilities of
the Group have been satisfied;

(i) For the loans provided to the Company in the principal
amount of RMB54,000,000 (approximately HK$66,255,000)
and interest payable of RMB3,441,000 (approximately
HK$4,222,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Ultimate Controlling Party will not demand for repayment
until all other liabilities of the Group have been satisfied;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(iii) In addition to the above, the Ultimate Controlling Company
and the Ultimate Holding Party have also undertaken to
provide adequate funds to enable the Group to meet in full
its financial obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable
future;

(iv) The Group will also seek additional financing including
but not limited to open offer, placing of the new shares and
issuance of bonds;

(v)  The directors of the Company will continue to implement
measures aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including close monitoring of general
administrative expenses and operating costs.

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review
of the cash flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months
from the date of this report taking into account impact of the
above measures, the directors of the Company believe that the
Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months from the date of this report
and, accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amount, to provide for future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities to current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’” proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9]

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

e lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ - H=1—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group'’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date, that is the date when the
Group obtains control, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F——

3.

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating unit)
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which the
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the transaction
with the other parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses
resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of other
parties” interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which the
group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets), the
Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses until it
resells those assets to a third party.

The operation under the production sharing contract as referred to
in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements is accounted
for as a joint operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the statement of consolidated financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
statement of consolidated financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g

(h)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss for the year in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for the
year in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the mandatory provident fund scheme/state-managed
pension scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident
fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payments arrangements

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs which
are directly attributable to researching and analysing existing
exploration data; conducting geological studies; exploratory
drilling and sampling; examining and testing extraction and
treatment methods and compiling pre-feasibility and feasibility
studies. Exploration and evaluation expenditure also includes the
costs incurred in acquiring mining rights, the entry premiums paid
to gain access to areas of interest and amounts payable to third
parties to acquire interests in existing projects.

During the initial stage of a project, exploration and evaluation
costs are capitalised as incurred. Expenditure on a project after it
has reached a stage at which there is a high degree of confidence
in its viability is capitalised and transferred to development assets
if the project proceeds. If a project does not prove viable, all
irrecoverable costs associated with the project are expensed in the
profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply for the year in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings,
plant and equipment, furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles
and leasehold improvements held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. Details are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 2-4 years or over the terms of

the lease, if higher

Furniture and fixtures 5to 10 years
5to 10 years
3 to 10 years

Motor vehicles
Plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings and structures under
construction, which is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
costs during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use. No depreciation
is provided in respect of construction in progress until it is
substantially completed and ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Intangible assets

(n)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

The following intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised
from the date it is available for use and its estimated remaining
useful life is as follows:

— Production sharing contract 16.9 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs to completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
time deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and are within three months to maturity
at acquisition. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, bank overdrafts and bank loans, if any, which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of an enterprise’s
cash managements are also included as component of cash and
cash equivalents.

3.

ETESHBER(E)

(p)

(q)

BERIREE
HAEERBERMMARERSEE
(TwmBERIEERT)  BAKEA
BRBBEZEL  LARZAEEDREE
HATSeflat - BB HS THERR -

A RABAEENRR R THBERE -
HRARBENERRNEBARBEN
BREEMFRENREGS o HER
A ERREENRESRETHE
Bim - IRBHEEREEAZFREN
ERE(HREENSHEENTERE
R) e

Tl B A A B B 0 35 TSP R 1R A
@IEHB AT B E =77 W@ - BIEYRIA
WRSEE  HABBRRES AR
B WRER] FEMETE A B R WERIR A
TE -

BRIFEAM 2R 2 FTBEIEIR R - B R
HEREN S T ARBER B S EAR]
FEfE BN ARZEEIERRE
B o BRIFBEM R 2 AT REMEARIE -
BAARFRFRIETAKENEEH
AR 2 BEERE - TRIERAR

& o

RERRELEEER
ReMReFEBBIERITHEALTE
Be - RITREMEREE 2 BBFX
KA G BAERNERR S 2 EHRRE
BRE  MZEREZEEEDRRR
1K - REBARS=EARNIES - stiRa
Ren8RMz  AREFEELANK
EERSEE—HN 2 RITBEX RIRTT
Ex(A)  MIARE MR SEER
Bz—#n -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of the parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

®

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHEERE)
(0 Financial instruments (Continued) O E@MIEE)
Financial assets (Continued) CHEEE)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TR T

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F——

3.

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and other
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHEEE)
(0  Financial instruments (Continued) t S@WMIAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EHEERE(E)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk
of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 30 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, have granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on
the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments;
. Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises the
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount with
the exception of trade and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to accumulated losses/retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including other borrowing, bonds, promissory
notes and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCl”), unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability
is recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in OCI
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they
are transferred to accumulated losses/retained earnings upon
derecognition of the financial liability.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of
the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a fixed
amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments are equity instruments. The proceeds received from
the exercise of warrants, net of direct issue costs, are recognised in
share capital.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible notes containing debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the debt and derivative components in proportion
to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
derivative component are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included in
the carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

If the notes are converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative
and debt components are transferred to share capital as
consideration for the shares issued. If the notes are redeemed, any
difference between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of
both components is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in
its entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are
not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial
liability with substantially different terms as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. A substantial modification of the terms of
an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 per cent.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised for the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
for the year of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(@ Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets

The Group tests at least annually whether assets that have
definite useful lives have suffered any impairment. Other assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

The estimated recoverable amounts of construction in progress,
plant and equipment in coalbed methane segment (note 17) at the
end of the reporting period has been arrived at on the basis of an
independent professional valuation carried out by an independent
firm of professional qualified valuers using cost approach and
market approach valuation methodology, which involves the cash-
generating units that have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations.

As at 31 December 2021, impairment losses of HK$1,670,000
(2020: HK$1,946,000) in respect of these construction in progress,
plant and equipment have been recognised. Details of the
impairment are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b)  Provision for ECL for trade receivables

(©

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime ECL to be incurred, which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement. The Group regularly
monitors and reviews assumptions related to the calculation of
ECL. The above estimation techniques and key assumptions have
not changed significantly in 2021.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast general economic conditions. If the financial condition
of the customers or the forecast economic conditions were to
deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.

Useful life and amortisation of intangible asset — production
sharing contract (“PSC”)

The PSC is amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining
contract terms of 16.9 years to 31 March 2038. Management
determines the estimated useful lives and basis for amortisation
for the PSC taking into account factors including but not limited
to, contractual terms of respective contracts, the expected usage
of the assets by the Group based on past experience, technical
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service
of the assets. The estimation of the useful life and the basis for
amortisation is a matter of judgement based on the experience
of the Group. Management reviews the estimated useful life and
the basis for amortisation of intangible asset annually, and if
expectations are significantly different from previous estimates of
useful economic life, the basis and rates of amortisation for future
periods will be adjusted accordingly.

Had a different amortisation rate been used to calculate the
amortisation of the PSC, the Group’s result of operations and
financial position could be materially different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Estimate for resources and/or reserves of coalbed methane
(“CBM”) under the PSC

Reserves are estimates of the amount of CBM that can be
economically and legally extracted from the designated contract
areas under the PSC (note 19). In order to make an estimate for the
reserves, estimates and assumptions are required about a range of
geological, technical and economic factors, including quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production costs,
transportation costs, commodity demand and commodity prices.

Estimating the quantity and/or grade of reserves requires
information on the size, shape and depth of the coalbeds or fields,
which has to be determined by analysing geological data such as
drilling samples. This process may require complex and difficult
geological judgements and calculations to interpret the data.

The Group estimates its commercial reserves and resources
based on information compiled by appropriately qualified
persons relating to the geological and technical data on the size,
depth, shape and grade of the hydrocarbon body and suitable
production techniques and recovery rates. Commercial reserves
are determined using estimates of CBM in place, recovery factors
and future commodity prices, the latter having an impact on the
total amount of recoverable reserves and the proportion of the
gross reserves under the terms of the PSC. Future development
costs are estimated using assumptions as to the number of wells
required to produce the commercial reserves, the cost of such
wells and associated production facilities, and other capital costs.
The carrying amount of intangible assets relating to the PSC at
31 December 2021 is disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

4.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Estimate for resources and/or reserves of coalbed methane
(“CBM”) under the PSC (Continued)

As the economic assumptions used to estimate resources and/
or reserves may change from period to period, and because
additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations, the estimates of reserves may change from period
to period. Changes in reported reserves may affect the Group’s
financial results and financial position in a number of ways,
including the following:

the carrying value of intangible asset relating to the PSC may
be affected due to changes in estimated future cash flows;

depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss may change as
such charges are determined by reference to the units of
production basis or the estimated useful economic lives of
the assets;

provisions for decommissioning site restoration and
environmental provisions may change where changes in
estimated reserves affect expectations about the timing or
cost of these activities; and

the carrying value of deferred tax liabilities may change as
a result of changes in the asset carrying values as discussed
above.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

®

Impairment of intangible asset — PSC

The estimated recoverable amount of the PSC (note 19) at the
end of the reporting period has been arrived at on the basis
of an independent professional valuation carried out by an
independent firm of professional qualified valuers using income
approach valuation methodology, which involves the value-
in-use calculations with reference to the technical assessment
reports issued by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. and
the latest internal reserve assessment. Neither the valuer nor
technical adviser is connected with the Group, while both have
the appropriate qualifications and relevant experience in the
industry. The Group has used estimated future cash flows and
profit forecasts expected to be generated from the PSC as a cash-
generating unit and a risk-adjusted discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The Group’s CBM business under the
PSC is currently at its early stage of development. The cash flow
and profit forecast projections involve significant judgement and
estimates on the accuracy of the assumptions for the projections
and estimates of, including but not limited to, government policies,
growth rate, the extent of the future market competition, market
demand, and cost structure of CBM products that the Group will
achieve during the forecast period.

Had different parameters and discount rates been used to
determine the estimated recoverable amount of the intangible asset,
the Group's results of operations and financial position could be
materially different.

Exploration and evaluation expenditures

The application of the Group’s accounting policy for the
exploration and evaluation expenditure requires judgement to
determine whether future economic benefits are likely, from either
exploitation or sale, or whether activities have not reached a
stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of
reserves. The determination of reserves and resources is itself an
estimation process that involves varying degrees of uncertainty
depending on how the resources are classified. These estimates
will be directly impacted when the Group defers exploration and
evaluation expenditure. The deferral policy requires management
to make certain estimates and assumptions about future events
and circumstances, in particular, whether an economically viable
extraction operation can be established. Any such estimates and
assumptions may change as new information becomes available.
If, after expenditure is capitalised, information becomes available
suggesting that the recovery of the expenditure is unlikely, the
relevant capitalised amount will be written off in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year when the new information
becomes available.

4.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical accounting judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@

(b)

(©

Functional currency

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and making
management decisions in Hong Kong, that is, raising finance in
Hong Kong dollars and has significant degree of autonomy from
its foreign subsidiaries in the way its business is managed. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong dollars.

Fair value of embedded derivatives portion of convertible notes
The fair value of the embedded derivatives portion of the
convertible notes that are not traded in active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group estimates the fair value
of the embedded derivatives portion of the convertible notes based
on an independent professional valuation using the binomial
lattice model which requires various sources of information and
assumptions. The convertible notes was fully converted during
the year 2021. The carrying amount of the embedded derivatives
portion of the convertible notes as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$46,234,000. Further details are disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The directors of the Company have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on the assumption that the Group will be able
to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable future, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, about the future outcome of events
or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The directors
consider that, after taking into account of all major events or
conditions, which may give rise to business risks, that individually
or collectively may cast significant doubt upon the going concern
assumption as set out in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a going
concern.

5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the

Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may

adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements for
(i) a subsidiary registered under the Insurance Ordinance (Chapter 41
of the laws of Hong Kong, the “10”) which are subject to the relevant
minimum capital requirement; and (ii) two subsidiaries which are
regulated entities under the SFO and subject to the relevant minimum
paid-up share capital and minimum liquid capital requirements under
the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Chapter 571N
of the laws of Hong Kong, the “SF(FR)R”). The management closely
monitors, on a daily basis, the capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the relevant requirements under the SF(FR)R and 10.

The Group has no other material exposure to capital requirements
externally imposed with regard to the Group other than described
above.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows:
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2021 2020

—E-—F —ECEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH&T FET

Convertible notes IE:dibe=ti - 358,179
Contract liabilities BHBE 287 278
Bonds &% 9,999 9,996
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company KEREZERAT 2 ER 107,510 107,655
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party KB BRI EITT 2 B 70,477 68,220
Other borrowing EMEK 12,138 11,749
Lease liabilities HEAE 24,459 34,082
Less: Cash and bank balances B RE RIRITHERR (106,379) (34,411)
Total net debt FEIRARE 118,491 555,748
Total equity (capital deficiency) R (A RE#) 24,752 (383,108)
Total capital FER=FIN 143,243 172,640
Gearing ratio BELE 82.72% 321.91%
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(M

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. LEMIH
Categories of financial instruments (1 EmMIEEH
2021 2020
—E-—F ke kS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost RN B2 @MEE 140,124 114,938
Financial assets at fair value through profit R AFEFABRZZ SEREE
or loss 2,318 4,458
142,442 119,396
Financial liabilities cRBeE
Bonds B 9,999 9,996
Convertible notes — liability portion, ARREE - AaEHy
unsecured kS - 311,945
Convertible notes — embedded derivatives, — AJHAEZE - REHTETE -
unsecured I = 46,234
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company RERBLIERARZER 107,510 107,655
Loan from Ultimate Controlling Party A BRI 2 B 70,477 68,220
Contract liabilities arats 287 278
Lease liabilities HEAR 24,459 34,082
Other financial liabilities Hibemas 85,936 129,046
298,668 707,456
Financial risk management objectives and policies 2 REREEEEREE

(2)

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, trade receivables, deposits, other
receivables, cash and bank balances, other borrowings, bonds,
convertible notes, trade payables, other payables, borrowings, loan
from Ultimate Holding Company, loan from Ultimate Controlling
Party, lease liabilities and amounts due to non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(@

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transaction relates. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States
dollars (“US$”). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB
must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. As
HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group does not expect any
significant currency risk of US$ position.

Overall, the Group monitors its currency exposure closely
and would consider hedging significant currency exposure
should the need arise.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk from changes
in the Company’s own share price to the extent that the
Company’s own equity instruments underlie the fair values
of financial derivatives of the Group. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Group is exposed to this risk through
the conversion rights attached to the convertible notes issued
by the Company as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, the Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities (note 22).
The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity instruments operating in securities and brokerage
industry sectors quoted in the Stock Exchange.

The Group has not hedged its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities. The Group’s securities
investments that are listed on the Stock Exchange are valued
at the quoted market prices at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Other price risk (Continued)
If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% higher/lower (2020: 10% higher/lower):

e post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2021
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$232,000
(2020: decrease/increase by approximately
HK$446,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
investments in listed equity securities.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to lease liabilities.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the bank balances due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rates for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to fair value interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
bank deposits had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s loss for the

if the interest rates on

year would decrease/increase by approximately HK$972,000
(2020: HK$344,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of each class of recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team to compile credit and risk management
policies, to approve credit limits and to determine any
debt recovery action on those delinquent receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model based on provision matrix
or credit impaired. Details of the accounting policy for
impairment of trade receivables has been disclosed in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial
condition of trade receivables and, where appropriate, credit
guarantee insurance cover is purchased.

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics and
the days past due to measure ECL. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the expected credit losses rate for customers
of sales of goods is minimal, given there is no history of
significant defaults from customers and insignificant impact
from forward-looking estimates. The assessed ECL for trade
receivables are not material.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, including deposits
and other receivables, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position.

Impairment losses on other financial assets at amortised
cost are presented as impairment losses, net of reversal
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d)

(e

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 44% (2020: 45%) and 60% (2020: 98%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively. As at
31 December 2021, no provision for expected credit loss
on the trade receivable has been made as these debtors
has no recent history of default and a substantial portion
of the carrying amount is subsequently settled, thus the
management of the Group does not expect any significant
loss from these debtors.

Bank balances and cash in broker accounts are placed
in various authorised institutions and the directors of the
Company consider the credit risk for such institutions is
minimal.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance
with Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the
“SF(FR)R”), as required. In the management of the liquidity
risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SMIAE)
(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (2 2REREEEERBEE
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) MEMEEE(E)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRFVNAEEFTESREE
maturities at the year end date of the Group’s non-derivative RTESRBENFEB ZF
financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which AHREHE - FHe OB EBE T
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including RENENRRRSRE(BIEFNA
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if &R =S ()7 2 R 2 wAE
floating, based on rates prevailing at the date of the reporting A2 FRGFHE 2 BT AKRE
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to SEAWHERNR 2 &F BB
pay: i
201 200
Z8=-F TBoEE

More than More than

Weight Total Within -~ More than 2 years Weight Total Within -~ More than 2 years

average  contractual Tyear  1yearbut but less average  contractual Tyear — 1yearbut but less

Carrying interest  undiscounted or on less than than Carrying interest  undiscounted oron less than than

amount e cashflow demand 2 years 5 years amount e cashflow demand 2 years 5 years

nE  ANEER 1543, 0L 254 E g AHEER 1ERE 18 E 2ELE

BEE  THiE RERELH REX  EFR2F  EFESE BEE  TONE RERS4% BER  ETRE ETRSE

HKS 000 % HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS000 %o HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$O00  HKS'O00

TER % TER TER TER TR AL % T T TR i

Loan from Ultimate Holding - RERAERAT 2 &5

Company 107,510 148% 107510 107510 - - 07655 148% 112,019 99,666 12353 -

Loan from Utimate RESEEHHZER
Controlling Party 70477 12% 70477 70477 = - 68,220 12.0% 68,220 68,220 - -
Other borrowings Efefet 12,138 - 12,138 12,138 - - 11,749 - 11,749 11,749 - -
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMERFUE 73,798 - 73,798 73,798 - - 117,007 - 117,007 99,498 17,799 -
Bonds % 9,999 7.0% 10441 10441 - - 9996 7.0% 11,145 704 10441 -

Convertible notes including  TTHRESE (AFEAS
embedded derivatives) f4TR) - N/A - - - - 358,179 2.0% 372,300 372,300 - -
Lease liabilities HERR 459 7%-15% 29,208 12,429 11,355 5224 34082 8%-15% 43,108 14,045 12,110 16,953
Coniract liahlities ahaE 2%7 - 27 287 - - 278 - 278 278 - -
298,668 303,859 267,080 11,555 5204 707,436 736116 666,460 52,703 16953
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

®

Oil and gas price risk

Apart from the financial instruments disclosed above, the
Group's activities expose it to market risk relating to oil and
gas price risk.

The Group is engaged in a wide range of gas related
activities. The global oil and gas market is affected by
international political, economic and global demands for
and supply of oil and gas. A decrease in the world prices of
crude oil and gas could adversely affect the Group’s financial
position. The Group has not used any derivative instruments
to hedge against potential price fluctuations of crude oil and
refined products. Management will consider hedging oil and
gas exposure should the need arise.

(3) Fair value measurement

(@

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B8R FE2MR ERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FE T FE T
2021 —E-—F
Financial assets SREE
— Financial assets at fair value ~ —IZAF{EzHAEBZRZ
through profit or loss CRUBE(Hit22)
(note 22) - 2,318 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

6.

SRMIAE)

3) DFEFEGE)

(@

BRIt EEG R A FEG

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring EFXEFCHEERTHEEZ
basis (Continued) DFE(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ENE E24% 3R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
2020 —ECEF
Financial assets SREE
— Financial assets at fair value ~ —IZAF{EzHAEBZZ
through profit or loss RLEE (Hit22)
(note 22) 4,458 - -
Financial liabilities ==L
— Convertible notes — — AR EE —
embedded derivatives, NEPTETE -
unsecured AR
(note 31) (Bft31) - - 46,234

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Information about Level 1 fair value measurements
The fair value of equity securities classified as Level 1 was
determined by quoted price in active market.

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of the current unlisted financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (note 22a) was estimated by the
directors of the Company with reference to quoted market
price provided by the financial institution managing the
funds.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

3)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(@

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of conversion option embedded in convertible
notes is determined using binomial lattice model and
the significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is credit spread. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the credit spread. As at 31 December
2020, the credit spread used in the valuation is 18.58%, and
it is estimated that with all other variables held constant, an
increase/decrease of 10% in the credit spread would have
increased/decreased the Group’s loss by approximately
HK$4,700,100/HK$4,863,900.

’

The movements during the year in the balances of the
Level 3 fair value measurement for the conversion option
embedded in convertible notes are disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements. Fair value loss/gain on
conversion option embedded in convertible notes is charged/
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Of the
total gains or losses for the year in the profit or loss, fair value
gain of approximately HK$61,599,000 in 2020 was related
to conversion option embedded in convertible notes for the
reporting period.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair values of trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, other borrowing and trade and other payables
approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term
maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The carrying amounts of loan receivables which carry fixed
interest rates approximates their fair value.

The fair values of the liability component of convertible notes
and bonds are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@

(b)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are coalbed methane gas
exploration and exploitation in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), sale of electronic components, financial business,
wealth management, comprehensive healthcare and proprietary
investment.

An analysis of the amount of revenue from each category of
principal activities during the year is set out below:

Wk & 2 R E

(@)

Wz

AREZ TEXBER/NPEARKNE
(ThEDRERERBREMAR EF
THHE  SREYE VEERE BF
REEFEMBERE -

AEEERERH RN 2 WA 2D
EZIT -

2021 2020
—B-—F —E_EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Sale of electronic components BFTMHHEE 1,772 7,035
Financial business EaES
— Consultancy and referral income — B R A 15,817 719
— Brokerage commission income T PN 2,981 79
— Interest income from IPO financing —BHRARAEEREZ
MEWA 696 11
— Management fee income —EIRBWRA 26 -
Wealth management EER
— Commission income from insurance — R 2Bl
brokerage 5,151 1,523
Comprehensive healthcare BREAREE
— Sales of meltblown fabrics and related — B RIE DA R AERE R
equipment and raw material R 10,488 60,399
36,931 69,766

Segment information

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are organised
by business lines, in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management, who are also the executive directors of the
Company, for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessments. The Group has identified the following six reportable
segments.

(b)

ARERIRDEEREES %50
BREBRRNE S - pEITAERE
RABRRBFEAAER 2 HSTTH
ERAB(TAREENTER) N2
BEMAA B REBEDHEEATA
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WERSE®RE(E)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEERE)
-~ Electronic components - BFEMH
—  Coalbed methane - EER

(i)

Financial business (i.e. securities brokerage, money lending,
consultancy and referral service)

Wealth management

Proprietary investment (i.e. securities trading)
Comprehensive healthcare

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and

allocating resources to segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and

(i)

TEEM(EAFEL  WE - &
A R e S AR %)

MEEE

TEEE BERAE

A D BERR IR D ERE DR
BERME  ARBZESTHE
BABRBEATERERSER

liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the ERNBENZEE  BERSA
following bases: &
Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets, and DEEEBESEEIGECESR

current assets attributable to the segments with the exception
of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
and other payables attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by the segments
and the expenses incurred by the segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to the segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment
result”. Segment result includes the operating profit generated
by the segment and finance costs directly attributable to
the segment, without allocation of head office or corporate
administration costs. Income tax is not allocated to reportable
segment.
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7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 December 2021

and 2020 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2021

Industrial sector

7. WERDEHRE(E)

(b)

DTRER(E)

() PHFHE BEREEE)
RBE_ZT_—FR_Z_TF
T_A=1T—HALFE ok
BEREFEDBERAMER TA
‘il SITRERAEZAEE

/\*EﬁﬁJrZZDT

HE-B-—F+-H=+—8
=

Financial sector

ey SR
Electronic Coalbed - Comprehensive Financial Wealth ~ Proprietary
components methane  healthcare business management investment Total
2734 RER BEARE SREH HEE BERE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TEL TET T TEL
Recognised at a point in time R EERRER 1,772 = 10,488 18,399 o = 30,659
Recognised over time Fﬁ_ Tﬁﬁgwu - - - 425 5,151 = 5,576
Recognised from othersource B EMRRHED - - - 696 - - 696
Reportable segment revenue from  REMREF 225
external customers PRk 1,772 - 10,488 19,520 5,151 - 36,931
Reportable segment resuts 128584 015 43,83 (692) 4497 128 046 @166
Amortisation of production sharing  ERSHAR 2 &
contract - 4,754 - - - - 4,754
Depreciation on propery, plant 1%~ BERFEZ7E
and equipment - 9,873 2,306 04 1 - 12,254
Depreciation on right-of-use assets [FFEEE & 29 - - 1,754 - - 1983
Gain on disposal o property, plant - €% + BER
and equipment R s - - - - - (53) (53)
Gain on fair value change of AARZE-RE
convertible notes - embedded  fTET A AT
derivatives L3Pk = (34,383) - - - - (34,383)
Impairmentloss on production ~ ERAKAFZAEEE
sharing contract - 5,342 - - - - 5,342
Impairment loss on property, 1% - BB RH(EL
plant and equipment WEER - 1,670 - - - - 1,670
Imputed interest on TEREE LTS
convertible notes - 48,388 - - - - 48,388
Imputed interest on lease liabiliies 58 7 HEFIS 14 2 - 128 - - 162
IPO loan interest expenses EIVNGE: %%‘J BRI = = = 382 = = 382
Loss on disposal of financial assets (& ATFERT AR
atfair value through profitor loss 7 $BEE 2 il = = = - - 814 814
Net loss on revaluation of Bt ERTEIARS
financial assets at fair value LEREEI BRI
through profit or loss - - 19 - - - 19
Other income AfBIA ) (26) (18) (575) 6) (28) (657)
Wite-off of property, plant LEHERE e
and equipment - 141 - - 25 - 166
Write-back of inventory mARE ) - - = - - )
Reportable segment assets UERAEEE 722 159,125 32,081 55,695 3,187 43,875 294,685
Additions to non-current segment  AEEFFHIFEEL
assets during the year HE - 7,712 4993 98 - - 12,803
Reportablesegment abities T2 HAEEME @%) G199 (1513) (077 (1,174 N )
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WERSE®RE(E)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEERE)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () ZEXE BEREBEE)
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEHF+-H=+—8H
ILFE
Industrial sector Financial sector
e SRR
Electronic Coalbed - Comprehensive Financial Wealth ~ Proprietary
components methane  healthcare business  management  investment Total

TYRF BER  BAARE  GEER WAER  AmRE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TL Ter  TAn  Tar  TaL T A

Recognised atapointintime A\ —[EREEET 7,035 - 60,399 747 - - 66,181
Recognised over time HEEERET - - - 51 1523 - 1,574
Recognised from other source B EMRRER - - - n - - n
Reportable segment revenue from  REAREF 2725
external customers iUt 7,035 - 60,399 809 153 - 69,766
Reportable segment results BES ViEcE (733) (27,152) 619 (5,131) 1,038 (4,258) (35,617)
Amortisation of production ExpiAR B
sharing contract - 5,035 - - - - 5,035
Depreciation on property, Nx - BERREE
plant and equipment - 7490 3 4 16 - 7533
Depreciation on right-of-use assets REEEE & 294 575 - 1,091 - - 1,960
Gainon fair value changeof ~ FTAREE-ME(TE
o convertible notes - embedded  TAZATEEE
= derivatives S - (61,599) - - - - (61,599)
z Impairmentloss on production ~ ERAKAFZAEEE
5 sharing contract - 11,376 - - - - 11,376
% Impairment loss on property, plant - 1%~ #& Rk (&2
2 and equipment HEER - 1,946 - - - - 1946
z Imputed interest on convertible ~ TAKER 2 EEF|E
3 notes - 51478 - - - - 51,478
= Imputed interest on lease liabilies T & &2 B EF|E 2 64 - 149 - - 238
z IPO loan interest expenses BRAFEEERNNERR - - - 69 - - 69
% Interest on borrowings fBHZAIE - - - - - 981 981
z Loss on disposal of financial assets - (HERAFER A BEZ
E atfair value through profitor loss ~ £BEE 7Bl - - - - - 3,176 3,176
z Netloss on revaluation of EfERTETABRL
= financial assets a far value SHERBETE
& through profit or loss - - - - - 2 2
z Other income 40N (172 (69) (13) (354 - - (608)
g Wite-off of property, plant EHERE LY
S and equipment - 2 - - 37 - 39
= Gain on derecognition of - ENERE bE
& asubsidiary (1) - - - - - 1)
r
*
= Reportable segment assets 2RHBEE 663 179,578 90,838 25,455 3,480 10,102 310,116
Additions to non-current segment  AEEFRBNEEEZ
b assets during the year #E - 14,397 18,554 324 208 - 33,483
Reportable segment iabilities ~~ TT2HHEEHE (2,838 (388,999) (69,798) (14,732) (1,948) - (498,314)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WERIEHREE)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) HEERE)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (i) TEHHBEWR  HAGEE -
loss, assets and liabilities EEROEZYE
2021 2020
—s-—5F TECTHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue &=
Reportable segment and consolidated A2 NiFE W
revenue 36,931 69,766
Profit or loss R e
Reportable segment results AI2MOEEE (41,662) (35,617)
Other income HablUr A 6,790 2,849
Other gains and losses Hfblhes & E51E 7,235 20,529
Unallocated head office and corporate ROTLAEMEE R ¥R
expenses (37,175) (52,499)
Consolidated loss before tax IR =Y E (64,812) (64,738)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A 2o tEEE 294,685 310,116
Unallocated head office and corporate RO ER R PEEE
assets 71,547 51,792
Consolidated total assets GEBESE 366,232 361,908
Liabilities =V
Reportable segment liabilities 2Ry EaE 102,428 498,314
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE 15,728 17,691
Tax payables e 18 5,491 5,450
Unallocated head office and corporate RofemERRE¥EE
liabilities 217,833 223,561
Consolidated total liabilities e BaREeEE 341,480 745,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. BWa@RoE®RE(E)
(b) Segment information (Continued) b) DEERE)
(iii) Geographical information (i) HEEZEH
In presenting geographical information, revenue is based 25 E R - Y z5 TR AN
on the geographical location of the external customers. KEEZMIBAEZRY - HEIE
Specified non-current assets, which represent property, plant mENEE (BN % - #a3 NakiE -
and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets and BEAE  FRAEEENURER
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, are based TEFABEZEREE)IRE
on the geographical location of assets. BEMETHET -
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB FE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
2021 —E-—F
Revenue Yz 20,079 16,852 36,931
Specified non-current assets BEERBEE 33,351 179,575 212,926
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB a3 #ET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FHET
2020 —EoEE
Revenue Yoz 8,648 61,118 69,766
Specified non-current assets BTEIEREEE 44,448 187,119 231,567
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WERIEHREE)
(b) Segment information (Continued) b) DEERE)
(iv) Information about major customers (ivy BEEEEEZEFZEZH
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to DRMEREE K 10% A £z
10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below: EIREFPKEHIIT -
2021 2020
—B-—& —E B4
Revenue Revenue
& lhE
Percentage Percentage
HK$’000 of revenue HK$’000 of revenue
FET WKaastt AT WmasHt
Customer A2 B2 7,187 19.46% - -
Customer B! BE 5,338 14.45% N/AZE A N/AZ 3 A
Customer C2 EFR2 4,770 12.92% - -
Customer D! z2RT - - 27,842 40%
Customer E* S N/ARER  N/ATER 16,705 24%
Customer F' wP) - - 15,214 22%

! Revenue from sale of meltblown fabrics and related equipment

and raw materials in comprehensive healthcare business. The

corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total

revenue of the Group in 2020.

? Consultancy and referral income in financial business.

’ Revenue from sale of meltblown fabrics and related equipment

and raw material in comprehensive healthcare business. The

corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total

revenue of the Group in 2021.

Save and except for the above, no other single customers
contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both

2021 and 2020.

HE BB AR ER 2 EEMIA
NAARARR M R R R Z Hak o R
—TTF - AERE LA
EEBKEE10%A L ©

SREBLASMEREA -

HEBBEAMREER 2 BABEM
RABERERREME 2 s o B
ZEZ—F - BERETEGE
EEBUEE10%MA L ©

B EaiEsN R_B-—FER—

T

TE BEHEGBE-FPHG

AREBIWZE10%3 A F o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

8.

OTHER INCOME 8. HAKA
2021 2020
25 ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT

Bank interest income HRITALEUA 10 45

Dividend income =X ON 28 -

Interest income from refundable rental deposit REHERS 2 FBHA 939 319

Sundry income FETAUA 51 872

Rental income FAsUA 3,125 1,230

Management fee income EREWA 660 220

Government subsidy (note (i) BUTHERE (a2 a) - 771

Referral income WA 2,634 -

7,447 3,457

Note: HiaE -

(i)  The government subsidies of HK$771,000 were granted from the Employment ()  RIZZZZF - BERBUTHEL771,0008 LKA
Support Scheme and Subsidy Scheme of the Securities Industry under the Anti- BERFRTREBANZ EREESE T 2R
epidemic Fund of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative MEIFTERBHFEEYE -

Region in 2020.
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. RftlmRkEHE
2021 2020
—EBZ—F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Gain on fair value change of convertible notes - AJHREE - AE/TAETEZ
embedded derivatives NEEEE 2 WS 34,383 61,599
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value HERATEFTAERZ 2/
through profit or loss BECEE (814) (3,223)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEYIE - WIS RERE 2 W
plant and equipment (E18) 53 (5)
Net foreign exchange gain i 5 W S48 7,559 14,244
Net loss on revaluation of financial assets BERATEABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TRIEEEREE (19) (28)

Write-back of inventory OEFE 9 -

(Loss) gain on derecognition of a subsidiary B E AR 2 (BE) W (16) 1

Write-off of property, plant and equipment M - S NRE (166) (176)

Impairment loss on goodwill R EE1E (308) -

40,681 72,412




10.

11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ - H=1—HIFEF

FINANCE COSTS

10. BERA

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Imputed interest on bonds BEF 2 EEF R 703 802
Imputed interest on convertible notes ABRREREZHERN S 48,388 51,478
Imputed interest on lease liabilities HEBBZEENE 4,300 2,728
Interest on borrowings B2 FLE 65 1,742
Interest on loan from Ultimate Holding Company 3 B &4 42 A T 2 B A E - 10,108
Interest on IPO financing BRAFAEEREZFE 382 69
Interest on loan from Ultimate Controlling Party R B AT 2 BT S - 3,867
53,838 70,794

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax is arrived at after charging (crediting):

11. BBATEE

BRI A B R TR (REA) A T B IBATS -

2021 2020
s ZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
(@) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (a) EIRAN(BFEESME)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHMRER 29,483 26,153
Contributions to defined contribution REHFURKETEI 2 HRK
retirement plans 1,411 1,202
Total staff costs BT A#BE 30,894 27,355
(b) Other items (b) HAfbER
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRT BN &
— Audit services — Bz ARTES 750 680
— Non-audit services —EERRY 100 219
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR 2 FERA 10,708 64,227
Depreciation of property, plant and M HWERRBIE
equipment 14,690 8,959
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEEZITE 11,852 7,724
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEMZE - B NREZ
plant and equipment (M) 18 (53) 5
Lease payments for short-term lease not WARFAEE & BFES
included in the measurement of lease ZEERE 2 HERK
liabilities 793 2,443
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS 12. EERTRARHE
(@ Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ ESRITHEAIME
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments disclosed pursuant to RIEEE R AHRBIE383(1) &R & QA
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (REEENHER)ROIE2E D WE
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ZEERTREZMNT

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2021 —E-—F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
7= RIK
we REYAR BBEA TEIMR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TRR TR TR

Executive directors YiTES
Pan Jibiao (Chairman and BER(EERITEHAET)

Chief Executive Officer) = 720 = 18 738
Shao Yanxia Apei = = 1,110 = 18 1,128
Non-Executive director FUTES
Shiu Shu Ming A

(resigned with effective from (BHFR-—E-—F

1 October 2021) +A—H43) 270 - - = 270

Independent non-executive directors B ¥HTES

Lai Kin Keung Ryt 240 - - - 240
Yeung Chi Wai BER 240 = = - 240
Wong Man Hung, Patrick Ek
(appointed on 1 April 2021) (R=FE=——FmA—H
BE(F) 180 = - - 180
Chan Yim Por Bonnie BRAR
(resigned with effective from (BHR-—F=—F
1 April 2021) BR—H45) 25 = = = 25
955 1,830 - 36 2,821
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e M ERRME

Ft-A=+—HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F——

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 12. EERITHARME(Z)
(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) @ EERTBRARME(E)
2020 —EF-FF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2y RIK
e  REWAE ez HE 578 s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT FHT TEL TEL
Executive directors HiTEE
Pan Jibiao (Chairman and BIEN(LERTHAER)
Chief Executive Officer) - 720 - 18 738
Shao Yanxia AR E
(appointed on 6 April 2020) (R_FE_FF
1A AEZE) - 817 - 14 831
Lo Tsz Fung Philip ERZE
(resigned on 1 July 2020) (R=E-F
+hA— Eé;/f) - 360 - 9 369
Tam Tak Wah BEE
(resigned on 4 May 2020) (R-E_FF
TAMBET) - 310 - 9 319
Cheng Wai Keung e
(resigned on 6 April 2020) (R-E_FF
PIA N AFHE) - 92 - 5 97
Chief executive THEAR
Lyu Guoping aET
(resigned on 1 September 2020) (R-F=FF
NA—BET) - 1,022 - 14 1,036
Non-Executive director FBTES
Shiu Shu Ming R
(appointed on 18 March 2020) (R=-F=F
ZATVHEZE) 284 - - - 284
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Lai Kin Keung Ryt
(appointed on 6 April 2020) (R_FE_FF
LA AEZE) 177 - - - 177
Chan Yim Por Bonnie BRAIR 100 - - - 100
Yeung Chi Wai B z
(appointed on 6 April 2020) (R-E_FF )CZ>
LA~ HEZ(T) 177 - - - 177 2
Chan Tsz Kit R 2
(resigned on 6 April 2020) (R=ZE-F 5
ZIA N HEHE) 25 - - - 25 S
Wang Li T 1
(resigned on 6 April 2020) (R-B_FF i
FAAEHE) 25 - - - 25 !
&
788 3,321 - 69 4,178
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F——

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 12. EERTHAZMES(EZ)
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(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (@ EERITBESEMS(E)
Notes: et -
(i) None of the directors or chief executive waived any emoluments during () REBEE_Z_—FR-_ZT_ZTF+_

the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. =+—H Jtiﬁ *E%H§$Yﬁﬂl Z'ﬂé
WEEAHE -

(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their (ii) L’ilﬁﬂﬁ§$%iigﬁﬁ¥ﬁ%m&§
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company TR FR T CEEFT =4
and the Group during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. BIEFERARR RAEEEREBEM

e BR% -

(iii) ~ The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(iv)  The chief executive’s emoluments shown above were mainly for his

iy FIBUERTESHESEIZATHRS
REBEZZ - —FR=ZZT-FTF+=A
=+ —BULFEBIANAREE 2B -

(iv) L?Uﬁﬂli@’%@ﬂiigfﬁ?ﬁ%’\&i

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company FER-ZF-_TF+_A=+—H
and the Group during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. %;E%HZK NE RAEEEREBHE
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EBRIKEFR
Except for those disclosed above, none of the directors received or B ESCIRERE SN - RAEE - HimE
will receive any retirement benefits during the year (2020: Nil). FEWE S A WEMERBRARER(ZF
“EFEE) -
(c) Directors’ termination benefits (0 EBKRILZEERN
None of the directors received or will receive any termination RAFRE - BHEEF D WEES A W E
benefits during the year (2020: Nil). M IERERMN(ZTTF : &) -
(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available d PRERESREMOE=ZAFIZMAHR
directors’ services &
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did REBE-T-—F+-A=1+—HI*F
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available [ - ARRI B EERE SRS M AT
directors’ services (2020: Nil). ME=ZFAXNRE(ZZ_ZF : §) -
(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings () FRANES ZEZZHINEEREA
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporates and HERAZEANER EERRH
connected entities with such directors L3RR 5 HER
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there are no loan, RBE—ZT-—F+_HA=t+—HItF
quasi-loan and other dealing arrangement in favour of the B BENESE  SESEHER R
directors, or controlled body corporates and connected entities of FEERAXEANER  EEFIH
such directors (2020: Nil). MWRSGLH (T -TF &) -
() Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or @ EBEERRS  REREYNDPERE

contracts

Save as those disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Report of the Directors of this annual report and “Related Party
Transactions” in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements,
no significant transaction, arrangement and contract in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2020: Nil).

&
ﬁfﬂiﬁ#&%?%#&ifﬁﬁL 25,/ T8
R 5 |~ kiR A BB @R M40
TF%L 25 IFMREESN - WEABAR
AEBMARBNER/EFR—TTAARHA
EENETERIRZAEEAEGR
AN R SN AN AL B R AR R
BARD RN ZT_FF
) o

AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 13.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
one director (2020: two directors and the chief executive), details of
whose emoluments are set out in note 12 above. The emoluments of the
remaining four individuals (2020: two individuals) are as follows:

REHMAL

AEEAEERUKGSHFMALTHE —LE
B(ZZ_ZF  WUEERTBER) &
FZF B EXPE124REE - ST (=
ToF M)A ZHBAT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind e R REMEDNE 5,512 4,430
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 20 -
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRETEIBER 84 71
5,616 4,501
Number of individuals
AE
2021 2020
—s-—F TECTHE
Emoluments bands FrEiEE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z21,000,000/8 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 821,500,000 7T 2 -
4 2

There was no arrangement under which any of these individuals
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

REE2-_FTE-_—FR-_T-_FTF+ A
=+—HLFE  BEAFZIEALHESL
RERET NS 2 25 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &,

14. INCOME TAX

(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

—FF A= —HIFE

14. FiE8t

REFRBEBRT ZFIENE

represents:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Current tax
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B EATSRE 142 134
Hong Kong Profits Tax - -
142 134

Deferred tax

Current year (2,525) (245)
Income tax credit (2,383) (111)

(i) Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
a flat rate of 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax
has been made as the Group has no assessable profit derived
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2021

and 2020.

BEFSHMAT  GEKE
[E & 52 & 2,000,000 JT & & F
1512 8.25% B ERHH - MHEB
2,000,000 7T 2 i M) 1512 16.5%
TREGT - THAFESHRARS
BRZEBER Y 2 BEER
16.5%2 — T EHH - BRAKE
BREBE-_T—FRZT_TF
+ZA=+—BULEFEIERAR
BBZERTRA - B EEHR
BAENEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

14. INCOME TAX (Continued)

(@ (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Canada Can-Elite
Energy Limited (“Can-Elite”), incorporated under the laws
of British Columbia, Canada, is subject to Income Tax Act
(Canada) at a rate of 28% (2020: 28%).

Pursuant to the tax treaty agreement between the PRC
government and the government of Canada for the avoidance
of double taxation and the prevention of fiscal evasion with
respect to taxes on income, tax payable in the PRC on profits,
income or gains arising in the PRC shall be deducted from
any Canadian tax payable in respect of such profits, income
or gains. No provision for Canadian tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profits under the Canada tax act
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%).

14. FABHL(E)

(@ (&)

(ii)

(iii)

ARARZ2EWMBREINERE
BERAERAR([HEER]D T
BRENEARBIF ML TEER
AR Z A A ZRESTINER
ST ER28% Z ME(— 2 - F
5 28% ) BUNPTISTL

R IR A B BT B N & RS 2 [
MEWABB2THIBEMI LB
i o0 B B AR KB LE AR R 2 X
g E - NPBESLRERER
2w Ao WA SRR e 2
g A nE RAEME
A WA ER B2 B
MIEBFRMGR - AR AEEREE
TR —FRZTEZFFFR
=+ —HIEFEREMNERTE
W FERBORF - I EET R N
ERMIE -

RHREZHE AT EREPHEE
MM ERIS%( - T - FF
25%) 4T °
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14. INCOME TAX (Continued) 14. FiEH(4E)
(b) Income tax credit for the years can be reconciled to the loss before (b) FEMEHERAEGABRRERAZ
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: BB AIEIRERRNT ¢
2021 2020
:E:—ﬂi — ; = fﬁ
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
Loss before tax MR 75t A ES 1R (64,812) (64,738)
Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated M AERBZZERIE 68
at the rates applicable in the jurisdictions AEER ZEANEAE
concerned (12,734) (15,040)
Tax effect of income not taxable of BARMIA 2 B2
tax purpose (5,803) (10,317)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A ¥ F 2 2 Firg 522
purpose 12,677 15,836
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences KR A] F0E IF Z= 78 2 B 75
not recognised ga 216 4,651
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERREERB 2 HFTE 3,691 4,858
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BAERIARBERZ BIAEE
recognised (430) (99)
Income tax credit FriS i % (2,383) (111)
(c) Current tax on the consolidated statement of financial position: () PEFEMBIRKRZ ANETIA :
2021 2020
S TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B PRET 4,400 4,360
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBFIEH 1,091 1,090
5,491 5,450
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14. INCOME TAX (Continued)

(d) The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

14. FABHL(E)

(d)

RERE SRR ER ZEERE(E
E)BERD  UWRERBZE_T—F
;r=EZEF+-_A=+—HIFEZ
ZET

Fair value
adjustments Fair value
on financial  adjustments
assets at on PSC
fairvalue  arising from  Accelerated
through  the business tax
profitor loss  combination  depreciation Total
HEATE
FABEZ EBAHEIR
LREE HERIRE
itz Blisid InEBIR
NMERE  ATVERE il a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TEL TAL TEL
At 1 January 2020 R-E-TF—F—H (3,857) 20,573 - 16,716
Acquisition of subsidiary W B AR - - 8 8
Credit to consolidated statement of REEERIRETEA
profit or loss (note 14(a)) (H5#14(a) 3,857 (4,101 (1) (245)
Exchange adjustment [ X % - 1,212 - 1,212
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZF+-A=1+—H - 17,684 7 17,691
Credit to consolidated statement of RiraBERETIA
profit or loss (note 14(a)) (Bizt14() - (2,525) - (2,525)
Exchange adjustment [ 5 % - 562 - 562
At 31 December 2021 R-Z-—%+-A=1+—H - 15,721 7 15,728
(e) Deferred tax assets not recognised (e) KRERELEHREEE

Deferred tax assets of the Group amounting to HK$25,831,000
(2020: HK$22,044,000), arising from unused tax losses have not
been recognised in the consolidated financial statements due to
the uncertainty as to their future utilisation. The unused tax losses

have no expiry date.

REE ZIRERIEE E A25,831,00078
FT(ZZZFF 22,044,000/ 7T)
TERERTENRFRSEEA - A
KBEEES VSRR T ERRB ARG
BIEMEE - KB ARKEBILETIH
E| o
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15.

16.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2021, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of reporting period (2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

(@

(b)

Basic loss per share
Calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

15. RE

KRB —FUERNIEZRNGRE - 8
ERPRETEZDRNEARE(ZFTZ

T
16. K

(@)

) -
B8
BREFER

RARIEA ARIESRERBEIIRE
THBERTE -

2021 2020
—BZ—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Loss for calculation of basic loss per share ;T E&KREXEEZEE
Loss for the year attributable to owners of REERRNEREE AEGEE
the Company (61,960) (64,369)
2021 2020
s TECTE
Number of shares RDBE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A+ —=F=+—H 7 E#@ERK
at 31 December AN 2 1,669,822,168 804,905,645
Diluted loss per share b) EBER#BHER

No adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the conversion of
convertible notes (2020: the conversion of convertible notes and
exercise of warrants) would result in decrease in loss per share.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss
per share.

FEEE—E - FRETF A+
A=+—HIMEFE 2 GREEE
BRTEELFAE  BRQTREE
B(ZZZZF : HRATBRBREERT
FRIRER) HEREFRERRLD - B
It FREEEIEESREAREIER
ﬁo



17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

17. W2 - WEBRRE

Construction Plant and Furniture Motor Leasehold
in progress equipment and fixtures vehicles  improvements Total
EEIR  HERRE  HARRE B AENEEE L)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL TEL TEL THL THL
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 R-2-TE-F-A 30,433 96,883 2419 4,504 828 137,067
Exchange adjustment ERAE 2,816 6,804 90 126 - 9,926
Addition through acquisition ~ EBWERBAAFE
of a subsidiary - - 121 - - 121
Additions "E 14,388 18,474 1,473 670 8,377 43,382
Transfer A (492) 49 - - - -
Impairment HiE (1,946) - - - - (1,946)
Written off i - (128) (1,119) - (705) (1,952)
Disposals & - - 7 (115) - (122
At31 December 2020 and RZZ-ZF+-A=1-8
1 January 2021 kZ2--%-A-H 47,199 122,615 2,977 5,185 8,500 186,476
Exchange adjustment ERRE 1,196 4,632 41 70 - 5,939
Additions nE 7,639 5,054 285 - - 12,978
Transfer B (27,334) 27,334 - - - -
Impairment mE (1,670) - - - - (1,670)
Written off s - (322) (538) - - (860)
Disposals HE - - - (532) - (532)
At 31 December 2021 RoB-—#+-A=+-H 27,030 159,313 2,765 4723 8,500 202,331
Accumulated depreciation ZAERAE
and impairment
At1 January 2020 R=F-F£-F-A - 59,703 2331 3,126 828 65,988
Exchange adjustment EREE - 411 47 63 - 4,221
Addition through acquisition ~ EBWERBA AFE
of a subsidiary - - 82 - - 82
Written off s - (67) (1,004 - (705) (1,776)
Charge for the year EExi - 7,295 200 417 1,047 8,959
Disposals HE - - (6) (110) - (116)
At31 December 2020 and RZE-EF+-A=+-H
1 January 2021 kZZ2--£-j-H - 71,042 1,650 3,496 1,170 77,358
Exchange adjustment AR - 2,553 2 39 - 2,614
Written off s - (209) (485) - - (694)
Charge for the year EEXH - 11,861 397 338 2,094 14,690
Disposals e - - - (532) - (532)
At 31 December 2021 RZF_—F+t-A=1-R - 85,247 1,584 3,341 3,264 93,436
Carrying amounts fRE(E
At 31 December 2021 W-B-—#+-A=+-H 27,030 74,066 1,181 1,382 5236 108,895
At31 December 2020 RZB-ZF+-A=+-H 47,199 51,573 1,327 1,689 7,330 109,118
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. Y% - WEEREE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the directors conducted a BE_T_—F+_A=+—HIFE L
review of the Group’s construction in progress and plant and equipment ERFAHASE 7 FR T2 R K&
during the year. The recoverable amounts of construction in progress WETEE - R-_T_—F+ A=+ —
are lower than the carrying amounts as at 31 December 2021 which B fE2ITE ol RENEEmE
is carried at valuation based on both cost approach and market MAREETRE Y 8B REMRETEE
approach carried out by an independent qualified valuer, Peak Vision PR R BUAK AE R W35 A P15 2 (R B 5]
Appraisals Limited. Market Approach considers the price recently paid IR MSEEE T ROARBUEESN 2B
for similar assets, with adjustment made to the indicated market price 1% WHERTHEEL T HE - UMEH
to reflect condition and utility of the assets valued relative to the market K5 R G E L EERRALBE - mE
comparative and cost approach generally furnishes the most reliable YEEH_FHSAELBRER 2B
indication of value of assets without a known used market comparable, RAEBBRERAZECEEBEET © M
both approaches must be considered as one or more approaches may B AARRAS RSB AERNY
be applicable to value the subject assets. In some situations, elements of BONEEETHEZLDE - HEETERLT
both approaches may be combined to reach an opinion of value. EE EME A BRIBES  WEREE
Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately HK$1,670,000 has At EREE—_T—_—F+—_A=+—H
been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December LI E 2 B m R R EE 841,670,000
2021 (2020: HK$1,946,000). AIL(ZFZFF 1 1,946,000/87T) °
None of property, plant and equipment was pledged as security for RIBE-_—FR_ B _FTF+_A=+—
borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. B BEYR - R RREEAAREES
AR AR -
18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EREEE
Leased
properties
for own use
EPERi=e/ES
HK$/000
T
Cost D%
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZT-ZF—H—H 2,554
Additions NE 40,685
Exchange adjustment T 3 5 8 258
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZT_TFF+_A=+—AK
—F-—%—H—H 43,497
Additions NE 282
Exchange adjustment [ 4, 5 B 155
At 31 December 2021 N-_E-_—F—H—H 43,934
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE
At 1 January 2020 R-_ZT-_FF—-H—H 756
Charge for the year FEXH 7,724
Exchange adjustment T 3 5 2 101
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZZEF+_A=+—HK
—E-—%—H—H 8,581
Charge for the year FELH 11,852
Exchange adjustment [ 5, 55 B 102
At 31 December 2021 N-_E-_—F—H—H 20,535
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2021 RZZE_—F+=A=+—H 23,399
At 1 January 2021 N-_E-_—F—H—H 34,916
For both years, the Group lease various offices for its operation in Hong RWEFE » NEBREEMHEREEHE
Kong anJPRC. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years EETHAE - sIUWHEES N RETEFH
to 4 years. 2EFERAEE o



19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Ft-A=+—HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F——

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEEE
Production
sharing
contract Trading
“PSC”) right Total
ERAKER
TEm
AHEERD) BESE BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET
Cost RS
At 1 January 2020 WoE-TE— H = 3,689,030 - 3,689,030
Addition through acquisition of a FRWEBNEARRE
subsidiary - 1,000 1,000
Exchange adjustment M 3, FH 230,209 - 230,209
At 31 December 2020 and 73’\_2_2¢+ A=+—8Kk
1 January 2021 —E-—#—f—H 3,919,239 1,000 3,920,239
Exchange adjustment bE 5 A% 129,647 - 129,647
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 4,048,886 1,000 4,049,886
Accumulated amortisation and R B RRE
impairment
At 1 January 2020 A—T-—ZTFE—f—H 3,594,279 - 3,594,279
Charge for the year FEXZH 5,035 - 5,035
Impairment loss BEEE 11,376 - 11,376
Exchange adjustment bE AR 224,583 - 224,583
At 31 December 2020 and RZZE-ZEF+-A=+—HK
1 January 2021 —z-—F—fA—H 3,835,273 - 3,835,273
Charge for the year FEXH 4,754 - 4,754
Impairment loss VERET R 5,342 - 5,342
Exchange adjustment PE 5 A 126,957 - 126,957
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—F+=A=+—H 3,972,326 - 3,972,326
Carrying amount SREIE
At 31 December 2021 R-_E-_—H+_-_A=+—H 76,560 1,000 77,560
At 31 December 2020 —ECTHE+-H=+—H 83,966 1,000 84,966
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Through the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Merit First Investments
Limited on 26 November 2008, the Group has obtained the interest in a coalbed
methane PSC which was entered into between Can-Elite, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and China United Coalbed Methane Corporation
Limited (“China United”) on 8 November 2007. The interests of China United
and Can-Elite under the PSC are in the proportion of 30% and 70% respectively,
or in proportion to their participating interests in the development costs.

On 21 March 2008, the PSC was approved by the Ministry of Commerce of
the PRC in respect of (i) the execution and implementation of the PSC; (ii) the
terms of the PSC; and (iii) 70:30 profit sharing ratio between Can-Elite and China
United. Beijing Z&D Law Firm, the legal adviser of the Company as to the PRC
laws at that time, advised that China United and Can-Elite had obtained all
relevant approvals in relation to the execution and implementation of the PSC.

Can-Elite and China United entered into five modification agreements including
but not limited to the amendments of contracted area, the number of wells to be
drilled by Can-Elite and extension of exploration period on 18 February 2009,
29 August 2013, 23 December 2015, 21 August 2017 and 10 August 2020
(the “Fifth Modification Agreement”). All other terms of the PSC shall remain
unchanged.

Pursuant to the Fifth Modification Agreement, the exploration period applied to
Area A (part of Luling Block with an area of 23.686 square kilometres that has its
proven reserves submitted) shall begin from the date of commencement of the
implementation of the contract, to the date of filing to the relevant authorities
under the Chinese Government for the Overall Development Program. Further,
the exploration period of Area B (primary part of Su’nan Block with an area
of 401.942 square kilometres, with the proven reserve yet to be submitted)
has been extended for two more years, from the original expiry date (being 31
March 2020) to 31 March 2022. During the extended exploration period, at
least 17 wells are required to be completed in Area B with the performance of
relevant exploration works such as fracturing, drainage and extraction. In order
to complete the above exploration works, Can-Elite is required to utilise at a
minimum of RMB35,000,000 equivalent in US dollars towards Area B as the
expected minimum exploration expenditure amount.

The PSC provides a term of thirty consecutive years commencing on 1 April
2008, with a production period of not more than twenty consecutive years
commencing on a date determined by the joint management committee which
is set up by Can-Elite and China United, pursuant to the PSC, to oversee the
operations in the contract area.

Can-Elite and China United shall reimburse the costs incurred during the
development and production periods in the proportion of 70% and 30%
respectively, or in proportion to their participating interests of each coalbed
methane field. Upon extraction of the coalbed methane and liquid hydrocarbons,
the coalbed methane and liquid hydrocarbons products shall be sold by China
United and the proceeds will be deposited into a joint bank account opened
by Can-Elite and China United, and the profits will be distributed between the
parties in the proportion of their participating interests in the development costs,
or any other marketing approaches and procedures to be agreed upon between
Can-Elite and China United.

19. B EE(Z

(@)

BBN_FENF+ A TANRKEELER
AERAR 2z 2 HEHE  AEBEDIRISART
ZEMBARREERETFHRERARAL
AEA([FE DR _FZLF+—ANBRILZ
RERERDKARZELR - P REELIR
REE D KA R AT GBI B B30% K
70% @ HWFEBRFEMARME 2 S HBgn
Lot -

RZZZNE=ZA-_+—B EfRSKARED
OB RERERDKAR © (NERDKE
[l Z 650 ¢ Raiin) BB BE IR B TR B 2 70:300 F1)
DELEEPERBEBRBMX - ARAEH
ZHRBDEEBRE I R RERMEBASH
TEREEERCHBITRERERDKAR
HSAHEMRRI -

RERRAFBRR_TTNF_A+N\R =
T—=fN\A=Z+NB ZF—HF+=A
—+=8 - ZF—+tFNAZF+—BEZ=FT=
ZENATBUERRET BRI L RDE
Bl - BEETRMETSNE - HEER
S THERZRABERERMIES - ERDOK
BRZ ARG BT -

RIBERLRETHE AR (DREIERHEN
EEERRBS  @mEA23.686FHANE)EA
RSN A RMABHITE Bigs - EEHE
BEREARATEBNERIBPIEROBSHA
1E e 1o - BE (FHERFARENER R E
ZHH - AEA401.9NRFHFRE) Z#HFEHE
ERZWE  ARAMIHA-_Z-_T4=H
=+ —-REREZZE-_—_FE=A=t+—H - -R
ERZEEHAR - BRAZTRZEBHEAED
TEOH  WETBREERSHBSMERES -
BT K BRI - HEERTHBRLE
Z= AREE35,000,000 T EENET  EAE
TEHNSEREHRER -

EmAKERFHAE ST/ \FNA—Bi
BE=TF AEHTEEEE_+F  mE
BRRATHRBEROKNARNIE £EE
ReNBZEECMAEEZEGMEEZA
Hpest -

B BEIR N P R 70% [ 30% 2 LIl - 3R
BREXENSRERB IS ERRRLDIE
DRFEAEREEMAMEEZ KA - RIZRUR
BREBERZCAME  RERMBELEES
MERBETEHE - WHASFRFARE
BERR MR 2B ARITERES - BREES
P BERAFE 2 R SR EGERE
TERE 2 KM TS EREF# DT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(Continued)

For all assistance to be provided by China United, administrative fees in the sum
of US$30,000 and US$50,000 were payable by Can-Elite to China United during
the exploration period and the development and production period, respectively,
as agreed by Can-Elite and China United with reference to the administrative fees
payable by other foreign investors to China United in other production sharing
contracts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the administrative fees
payable by Can-Elite are comparable to those payable by other foreign investors
to China United in other production sharing contracts.

The PSC is amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining contract terms of
16.9 years (2020: 17.9 years) of the PSC.

Impairment test

The recoverable amount of the PSC attributable to the Group has been
determined based on value-in-use calculations in accordance with HKAS 36.
The valuation was carried out by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, an independent
firm of professional valuers not connected with the Group. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the carrying amount of intangible assets has been allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit.

For impairment assessment purposes, cash flow projections are prepared on the
following assumptions:

19. BEEE(E)

Wit ¢

(@)

(b)

(&)
(%)

BRI ARME - REALREPE
KoEPBERLMIINTIREERNEMERD K
ARZEMTEERRERED B BRI
R FE RAEEBRREEIRS TR 2T
% F3 430,0003 7T 250,000 7T ° AR AEH
RA - BEEREMNZITHERELMINGR
BENEMERDKERATENPH 2 EBE
% °

EmHPKARRSBT16.9F (=T -4 1179
F) 2 BRBR AR GER S -

HERE

AEERGEERARERIAINELERES
BEFTERE3eTIREMREEETE - ARBE
Tyeh SR SR N SR BRI 2 B HE AT
BRUOTEBRATMET - sURERRAT 5 - 8P
AEZERER S REERIReEEEML -

SEMERETE - REREM YR TIIRE
L

2021 2020

—B-—F —EEF

Period of cash flow projections & TR BRI EAR 16 yearsF 17 yearsF
Discount rate (pre-tax) PR = (Fign) 23.64% 22.56%
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  Impairment test (Continued)

The calculation is based on the pre-tax cash flow projections of the financial
budgets approved by management, which have duly reflected risks specific to
the PSC, assuming that all key information provided by management, which
includes reserve quantity, feasibility of business plan, and exploitation method,
are appropriate and feasible. The cash flow projections are based on budget
sales, expected gross margins and expected capital expenditure determined
based on management’s experience and expectations of market developments in
the coalbed methane industry in the PRC. The coalbed methane (“CBM”) reserve
quantity used in the valuation of the PSC as at 31 December 2021 is based
on the reports, including the technical reports issued by Netherland, Sewell &
Associates, Inc. on 2 March 2011 and 31 October 2008, the technical reports
prepared by an integrated geoscience and engineering consulting company on
23 March 2015 and the reserve evaluation report prepared in respect of the
reserves located in Luling Block, being part of the contract area, which had been
approved by the Office for Oil and Gas Profession of the Mineral Resources
and Reserves Assessment Centre of the Ministry of Land and Resources of the
PRC and was duly filed with the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC on
4 June 2014 after the compliance review. The completion of the approval and
filing procedure signified that the risk assessment stage of Luling Block in the
contract area has come to an end, and the PSC work will proceed to the design
and development stage. Due to the further delay in the implementation and
the scaledown of the business plan for the exploration and exploitation of the
CBM and the continuous low level of domestic natural gas price in the PRC, the
carrying amount of the PSC exceeds its estimated recoverable amount and an
impairment loss of HK$5,342,000 (2020: HK$11,376,000) has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2021.

(c)  The trading rights are retained for stock trading and stockbroking activities
carried out by GCINT (HK) Limited. The trading rights are considered to have
indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net cash flows of
the Group indefinitely, and are not amortised. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

19. B EE(Z

Hiaz - (&)

(b)

(©

AAERIFR(E)

ILIEFTE A BB RTR 2% 2 TR HIRIR L
EEEEREE RRERDKE RETERRE
ZHRBEHNE  UREHBTEEREZ 2
FTEER(RERE - EBTERTH RERS
R)BRERAT c BeREINEEEE -8
HMEFERBHEEAFL AEE  MEHEESE
RIESRERE 2 CREREPEEERMS
BRZBHAMET - HEEROKNERANR=Z
——F+ A=+ BrEENERZEE
FEBR]HEHEDRESZHRES

B FENetherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.JA —
T——F=A-BR-_ZFENF+A=1+—H
B 2 HTHRE - 2B —RSREaERER
IRBEHATN-_E—RAF=-A-t+=AFE%
ZRHREARANEANZ EEILD E SRR
B EABPEE L+ ERIEELREETHEP
DABRAREENLNEES LR - EHPEH
E+ERPERERERN T —UF AN
BERFUERZHETERS - TREMR
BEREFZANERAZEEERDEERTE
RENE - AT ABE R R A ANFI B o R E—
IR E i R AR B R IR R B R AT BILA &
FEBEAXARBREFEENEKRT ERD
RAERZETERREGBFATKESRE - HE
REBEE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—RALFEZH
AR IR PR EFES5,342,000/8 7T (=
=T 1 11,376,000/87T) ©

REERBESERRES (BB ARAFME
THBRERERBERELED - AREHARS
HAERAH AR REREFHEELE
Bl ARG AAEEREY  BWEBE -
ZEZ HREGRE KR LR AT R AN TR
EITRERR ©
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RMBLARZIRE
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries of the Group. THREINEEEMBEAR 2 ER - REEH
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. BRSN - FTET A Z IR B R sm A

Proportion of ownership interest

REEZASL
Issued and
Place of Group's Held Held  paid up capital/
incorporation/ effective by the by a registered  Principal
Name of the Company operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
BRTR
MR FEH ARE —ZMERF BERE,
AR BB g ERES BB #E HAMELR  TEXE
Ace Elect Investments ~ Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
Limited and provision
of consultancy
services
PEKERRAT Eit BT REERRRHER
AR5
Alpha Guidance Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Inactive
Limited
ERSUCNiNG] &t BT BEBEY
Barraza Company Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Provision of
Limited secretarial services
Barraza Company e 28T REMERS
Limited
Canada Can-Elite Canada/PRC 100% - 100% CAD10,000  Coalbed methane gas
Energy Limited exploration and
development and
exploitation
MEREERER NEX/HE 10,000MEAT  #F - FER
BRAT FRRER
Cosmos Guard British Virgin 100% 100% - US$T  Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI")/
Hong Kong
HFBRAT] HBEMRES 1T REER
([REERR
B8/ &8
Ever Double BVI/ Hong Kong 100% 100% - US$T  Investment holding
Investments Limited
Ever Double EREARES/ 15T REER

Investments Limited BB
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. RKBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

BAEEZAIL
Issued and
Place of Group's Held Held  paid up capital/
incorporation/ effective by the by a registered  Principal
Name of the Company  operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
BEITR
i AV FEE ARE —XMERF BRRE/
NEEHE BE B BEER BA ekl HMEER FEEHR
Fortune Spring BVI 100% 100% - US$T  Investment holding
International Limited
BRERARLF REHERRES 1= REER
GCINT Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100%  HK$21,000,000  Securities brokerage
LRERESFERAR B 21,000,000 EFHEL
GCINT (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100%  HK$43,000,000  Securities brokerage
cRERER(EE) FR 43,000,000/ 87C  EHLEL
BRATE
GCINT Asset Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$6,500,000  Asset management
Management
Limited
SREREEEE 0 6,500,000 EEERE
BRATE
GCINT Wealth Hong Kong 100% - 100%  HK$4,300,000  Insurance brokerage
Management
Limited
S REERMEERE &t 4,300,000 87T RBREL
BRATE
Giant Front Limited BVI 100% - 100% US$T  Investment holding
SAHI AR AR RBRRARES €T REER
Goal Reach Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
Investments Limited
HHREBRAT EE BT REEKR
International Standard ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$1  Inactive
Resources Financial
Service Limited
BREERERRS EE BT BEBED
BRATE
Magic Chance BVI 100% 100% - US$T  Securities trading
Investments Limited
Magic Chance REERRES 1%t #BHFEE

Investments Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

20. RMBLARZRE(E)

BEEZADL
Issued and
Place of Group's Held Held  paid up capital/
incorporation/ effective by the by a registered  Principal
Name of the Company  operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
BEITR
i AV F&EE A2F —ZMELE BRRE/
NEEHE R BEER okl BE HMEER FEEHR
Merit First Investments ~ BVI 100% - 100% US$T  Investment holding
Limited
ERREBRAA EREMRES €T KREER
Nation Rich BVI 100% 100% - US$T  Investment holding
Investments Limited
BERRERRAT EBERRES 1ET REER
New Smart Credit Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$1  Provision of financing
Service Limited services
SEHEEMBAERAR BE BT RERERS
New Smart Holdings Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Provision of
Limited corporate services
B EEERLA BB 2B REGCERY
Powerful Sky BVI 100% - 100% US$T  Investment holding
Investments Limited
HREEBRAT EBERRES 1ET REEKR
Profit Giant BVI 100% 100% - US$1  Investment holding
Investments Limited
Profit Giant RERBRES XL RERK
Investments Limited
Smart Class Investments Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
Limited
BEHEEBRATA &k VBT REER
Strong Way Hong Kong 60% - 60%  HK$5,200,000 Electronic
International Limited components
trading
SHRERBRAF 0 5,200,000 EBFEHES
U-Cyber (Nominees) Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Inactive
Limited
U-Cyber (Nominees) &% 28T BEBEH

Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. RKBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

BAEEZAIL
Issued and
Place of Group's Held Held  paid up capital/
incorporation/ effective by the by a registered  Principal
Name of the Company  operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
BEITR
HEMRL, FEE ARE —XMERF grRE
NEEHE BE B BEER BA ekl HMER FEXK
U-Cyber Investment Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$2  Inactive
(Nominees) Limited
U-Cyber Investment e 28T EEEE
(Nominees) Limited
Wisedeal Investments ~ BVI 100% 100% - US$1  Investment holding
Limited
Wisedeal Investments SR 4 R AL S %71 REER
Limited
Szl (i) PRC 100% - 100%  HK$5,000,000  Provision of
REERHN consultancy and
AR AR (note i) referral services
EPH(R) th 5,000,000/87C  FEfRRR MR RS
REEEEN
BRANR (M7t
AIMEAEZEEREM  PRC 100% - 100%  RMB10,000,000  Provision of
BRDE (note i) technology
services for CBM
development and
utilisation
ANHAERRRM  F ARE  REHEERFENA
BR AR (L) 10,000,0007c  SEEIAVEITIR
BEREERE PRC 100% - 100%  RMB30,000,000  Provision of
BRAT] (note i) consultancy and
referral services
BRBERE i ARY  REERREERRS
BR AR (i) 30,000,0007C
RERREER(ZE) PRC 100% - 100%  HK$10,000,000 Coalbed methane gas
BBR2AF](note iii) exploration and
development and
exploitation
REEREER(ZE) + 10,000,00087T  &# - F#ER
BRAR (A L) FEREESR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

20. RMBLARZRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

REEEES
Issued and
Place of Group's Held Held  paid up capital/
incorporation/ effective by the by a registered  Principal
Name of the Company operation interest Company subsidiary capital  activities
ERITR
Al TEE EnR —FEHEAR BERE,
DRER e BRER e B8 HMEL FEEK
PRERKREZNR PRC 99% - 99%  RMB4,950,000  Provision of
CRIDBR AR consultancy and
(note iv) referral services
SREERKRETER Hr AR R R EERTS
CRIDBR AR 4,950,0007C
(Hiztiv)
WRBERRHME  PRC 100% - 100%  RMB20,000,000  Sales of meltblown
BREMEAF (note v) fabrics and related
equipment and raw
material
WREERRHME F ARE  HEREMRIAH
BREFDR(H7EY) 20,000,0007T  RERRHE
RAOMHGHERAEE  PRC 99% - 99%  RMB9,900,000  Provision of
BB AR (note vi) consultancy
services
ROMHAGHRAER ARY  REHERRS
BRAR(Hiztvi) 9,900,0007%
CIEREEN PRC 100% - 100% RMB500,000  Provision of
CrREEZE)RRAR consultancy
(note v) services
EREREEN i ARY  REHERRS
CrREEZE)RRAR 500,0007T
(Hiztv)
Notes: Mat -
(i)  These companies are limited liability companies (Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau () ZERRBARFERIZEREEAR(EER
legal person sole investment) established in the PRC. EANBE) -
(i) The company is a limited liability company established in the PRC (solely (i)  FHATANRRBERKY 2 BREEATHNGEE

invested by a legal person of a foreign invested enterprise).

(i) The company is a limited liability company (solely invested by a foreign legal (iii)
person) established in the PRC.

(iv)  The company is a limited liability company established in the PRC.

(iv)

TEEANBE)

ZATRPNPEKT 2 BREERT (INEEA

BE) -

FZARRRPERIZBREAERT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21.

22.

20. RIYBARZRE(E)

Notes: (Continued) Mzt - (4)

(v)  The company is a limited liability company (non-natural person investment or (v)  ZARRRPEKRZERBEEAFGEERA
holding corporation sole investment) established in the PRC. RESIERATBE) ©

(vi)  The company is a limited liability company (invested by or controlled by natural (vi) FZARBRPERZZBREETAR(BAAR
person) established in the PRC. B eldl) o

(vii)  The Group had no subsidiaries which have material non-controlling interests for Vi) BEZZE=--—FER-T-_TF+=-A=1+—H
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. IFFE - AEBEYSER EAI RS 2 M

BAE -

(viii) As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unpaid portion of registered capital (ii) RZE-—F+-A=+—0  KXEEHZM
totaling RMB2,050,000 (2020: RMB2,050,000) for injection into & & Bl X BARR ARG D& ARY2,050,0007T(=F
wABHECFEY) AR A, totaling HK$8,000,000 (2020: HK$8,000,000) for ZZ4  ARKE2,050,0007T) 7 A BB
injection into E 3 AEREE R (Z#) AR A A, totaling RMB2,880,000 (2020: BFEACORY) BRAF - & $£8,000,0007 7T
RMB2,880,000) for injection into )& JIITh B 2= 8£J& £ fir B FR 2 7] and totaling (ZZ=Z4 : 8,000,000/8 7T ) HEEEREE R
RMB20,000,000 (2020: RMB20,000,000) for injection into #RITEZERIR T (ZB)BRAR - AFEARE2,880,0007T(=
BRELAF, totaling RMB9,900,000 for injection into K MEABHANERE Z_TF : AR¥2,880,0007T)F MRYITA
IR 28] and totaling RMB500,000 for injection into ©151% & #:#(REEZ)E ERREMARAR - & H ARHK20,000,000
[CYNCIN T(ZZT =T F : AR%20,000,0007T) F A

MEFRERNMEEREEAT  aHARE
9,900,0007CE AR M EAG A AE R AR AT
& ARBE500,00070F AR E EH (5
BEZ)BRAF
INVENTORIES 21. 78
2021 2020
25 ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Meltblown fabrics related raw material FRNE A AR A R AR 255 785

No inventories of the Group were carried at net realisable value at the
end of both reporting years.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

RMEREFER  AEEREFERAE
RFEIIR -

22. BAFEFAEBZZEREE

OR LOSS
2021 2020
—B—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
Current RE
Unlisted investment fund in the Cayman Islands ~ A2 EZIFLHIREES
(note (a)) (Ki5t@) 2,318 -
Listed shares in Hong Kong (note (b)) REB LWz B’ (f5E@) = 4,458

Notes:

()

(b)

The fair values of the unlisted fund was measured with reference to the quoted
market price provided by the financial institution managing the funds.

The fair value of the listed shares are determined by reference to their respective
quoted market prices available on the relevant exchange at the end of the
reporting period.

FEETEEZATENZEERESZ SRK
WAt 2 S RETE -

EABRBZAFEDZEELANRERRE
HER SRS T REET



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. B5 R EMEBURKIR

2021 2020
—E——F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Trade receivables from: THEEZE S EWFIE
Electronic components B 14,643 14,870
Financial business SRR
— Consultancy and referral service — B R AR T
— Referral services —HBRS 3,202 118
— Securities brokerage — R4
— Broker ] - 122
- Management fee receivables —EWERE 9 -
Wealth management =g 347 1,425
Comprehensive healthcare U= 5,742 59,501
23,943 76,036
Less: Impairment allowance (note (a)) B ORERE (i) (14,472) (14,472)
9,471 61,564
Financial business SRR
— Securities brokerage — B
— Cash client (note (c)) —BeRP(Hitc) 11,011 2,053
20,482 63,617
Other receivables H bl s 9,178 8,172
Deposits and prepayments &E RIERFIE 7,480 9,720
16,658 17,892
37,140 81,509
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EREHRENITE
Non-current asset EmRBEE 3,072 2,259
Current asset mEEE 34,068 79,250
Total @t 37,140 81,509
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mEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(c)

Impairment allowance

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables which were
individually determined to be impaired amounted to HK$14,472,000 (2020:
HK$14,472,000). The individually impaired receivables related to customers that
are in financial difficulties and management assessed that it is highly unlikely
that the receivables can be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral
over the trade receivable balances.

23. EFREHMEBBWRIEE

(@)

EERE

R-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—8 £x&E@B2
BZEBFECENECARE  ©8A
14,472,000/ 70 (= =L 4 : 14,472,00075
7T) © BRI ERY g R B RRE 2 5P
106 - BB EEHFHE M ERGIE G A i gL
JEWRE o REEN B E H KT IBERITE
AR -

Ageing analysis of trade receivables (b) EZEWRFRZRE DT
The ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade receivables of the Group, REEZ B ZRKFIAEHE(REZAHEEN
based on the dates of the invoices and net of impairment allowance, is as WRERE) 2 BRE DTN T
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—f —T-BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FET
0-45 days 0ZE45K 3,714 61,104
46-90 days 46E 90K 637 180
91-365 days 91E365K 5,120 280
Over 365 days HBiB365K 14,472 14,472
23,943 76,036
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERHE (14,472) (14,472)
9,471 61,564
For trade receivables from cash clients, it normally takes two days to settle after © HBeBFPEACZEBEIREBENRELRZS

trade date of securities transactions. These outstanding unsettled trades due from
clients are reported as trade receivables from clients.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the Group’s business, therefore, no
ageing analysis is disclosed.

ZRHARMABE - ZEHABEZERE
FERSHRFIREPEEZ BIRE SR

ARBEERR  EXNAEEZEBILE K
e D AT I A OREESME(E - Bt WEKER
BT o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d

Trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of approximately HK$983,000
(2020: approximately HK$460,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default and a substantial portion of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security over these customers. The
ageing analysis of the trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is as
follows:

23. BEZREMBYRRIAGE)
Wi - (#)
W) BEEENRRE RS R ER

R-ZT-——F+-A=+—0  EZEWHE
#7983,000/8 7T ( —ZF = F4F : £7460,000/67T)
BEBEMARE - ZSERUGRIBS RS ER
HEmENDB2BYRRE  MALD REERE
BETEE - AEEVERZERFHAIM
EIRRIERIER - BEEEMRREZEHE
WK ERR B DTN ¢

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZT-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FHT

0-45 days 0%45H 637 180
46-90 days 46Z90H 346 280
983 460

24. CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS

The Group maintains separate trust accounts with licensed banks to

hold clients’” monies arising from its normal course of business. The

Group has classified the clients’ monies as cash held on behalf of

customers under current assets and recognised the corresponding

accounts payable to respective clients as stipulated under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). The Group is not
allowed to use the clients” monies to settle its own obligations under the

SFO.

24. REFHEZRE

REBRFRRITRE ERBELRP - A5
BERBEGBIETELZEPHIA - REE
BREFMAEGO([EHFRPERD )28
E o ARERBEFPORBENERRBEET
REPHKAZHS  UERENBEEFZ
HERP - RIFESFMAEED - AEET
SPREPRARBITEESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 = F =

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

—FF A= —HIFE

25. BERBITEE

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Cash at banks and on hand (note (i) SRITFERNFERE (W) 106,379 34,411
Less: Restricted bank balances (note (ii)) o PR HISRIT A SR (I A Gi)) (325) (3,175)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated meReRBRPZRENRE

statement of cash flows %£EIER 106,054 31,236

Notes:

Hisz -

(i) The cash at banks and on hand included the fixed deposit of HK$120,000 with (i)
maturity of less than 3 months. They carry interest at market rate 0.15% per

annum.

(ii)

Among the bank balances of the Group, approximately HK$325,000

(ii)

(RMB265,500) was restrained from dealing due to the civil actions taken by the

PRC claimant for the default in payment of an outstanding recruitment fee to a

headhunting company and the Company was defeated. The Company appealed

pending hearing at 31 December 202

(iii)

1.

Bank balances carry interest ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2020: from 0.01% to

(iii)

0.3%) per annum. Short-term bank deposits amounting to HK$120,000 (2020:
HK$120,000) carry fixed interest rate of 0.55% (2020: 0.55%) per annum.

BAIFEREFERSBER=EARIHZIE
[& 7E 77 50 120,000 JL 1% 11 5 F F| L 0.15% 7+
B

ARFEREABRBRANEEARZBESR
ARz REFD - BZ AR REF - R
RNEBRITEBTD - 43250008 T (ARE
265,5007T) REZ FRG o RAFERE £
FOHE_Z--—F+ A=+ BINESHE
Ferfl o

BITHERIEN T0.01%E0.3%(ZF_FF : /Y
F0.01%Z£0.3%) 2 FHEH S o RERITFR
120,000 (= ZF=FF : 120,000/7T)
W EFEFEFE0.55%( —FE=F4F 1 0.55%) &
B o

T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{2 —F - —4 1+ _-HA=+—HIFF/F

GOODWILL 26. BE
2021 2020
—s-—F TECTE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
Opening net book amount HYIBREDFE 308 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeRE B A /) - 308
Impairment IE (308) -
Closing net book amount HIRAREFE - 308
Cost XA 308 308
Accumulated impairment ZERE (308) —
Net book amount BREDVFE - 308

The relevant goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of cash
generating unit (“CGU”), which represent the lowest level within
the Group at which the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, and not larger than an operating segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the higher
of the fair values less costs to sell and value in use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates not exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the
countries in which CGU operated.

The goodwill was fully impaired in the year ended 31 December 2021.

OTHER BORROWING, UNSECURED

Other borrowing, relating to the CBM business under the PSC (note 19)
and payable to an independent third party, is unsecured, interest free
and with no fixed repayment terms. The movements in other borrowing
during the year are as follows:

27.

EREESREEERSELEN((RLE
EB{Y BRI - BEEL BRI N HER
BT AR B (TR AR E R E
B LERERR—EUEE S -

ReEL BN JRESETIRE S FER
HERALEREEAETRREET © &
S B EAEREEEMILEN R F RN
BENBARSRERR - BERFHH
HERSRBPMRANMGHERETEEB
ReELBAREMERRNERTHIER
% o

ZEBERBE_T_—F+=-A=1+—8
I FETRRE

HAbfE = - KA
BHERDKAR(ME19)E T ZEERE
BRENT— 2B E =77 2 K E R A E
B 2R REREEERY - HMEFRRA
FEZESHMT

2021 2020

—B-—fF —TEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

At 1 January R—HA—H 11,749 11,059
Exchange adjustment EE 3¢ 2 389 690
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 12,138 11,749
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. ESNRHMENFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
Trade payables for: THEEZ BB ENFIA
Electronic components BFEMH 429 819
Wealth management EER 55 196
Financial business DRI
— Securities brokerage — A4
— Clearing house —REE 10,905 107
Comprehensive healthcare P YN =5 - 54,770
11,389 55,892
Financial business TR
— Securities brokerage —BEHEL
— Cash clients (note (a)) —BEEFE(Wita@) 9,344 11,433
— Margin client —REBEEP 525 -
Total trade payables 5 RIS 21,258 67,325
Other payables (note (c)) E Ay E A (Bt () 35,423 33,318
Amounts due to non-controlling interests of JE A~ — FeIBfT B8 A R FE AR A i
a subsidiary | 17,168 16,697
Accrued expenses FERTRISL 21,542 14,376
Total other payables and accruals HAbERIERIERTE AE%E 74,133 64,391
Total trade payables, other payables and accruals B S EFIE « HALEFRIE K
FEst B R 95,391 131,716
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EREBHREBIITG
Non-current liabilities FERHEE - 17,799
Current liabilities mENBE 95,391 113,917
Total =t 95,391 131,716




Notes:

()

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME

Ft-A=+—HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —F——

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) . BERHEMENREGE)
iz
Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the monies received @ ENEFELEPZESRBERNEERE
from and repayable to brokerage clients in respect of the trust and separate TRMERDBEFEWNRREFPEEZIET
bank balances received and held for clients in the course of the conduct of the RBURITESRERREEE TELEEP 2K
Group’s regulated activities. I8 o
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not ARREERR  ERNAEEZEBNE - R
give additional value in view of the nature of the Group’s business; therefore, no e i I S KRR SMEE ¢ Bt - WEREER
ageing analysis is disclosed. BT o
The ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade payables of the Group, by AEEZESENFEHBGREZAE) 2k
based on the dates of the invoices, is as follows: Wt
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —ER-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Current — within 1 month Eﬂ%ﬁ —fEAR 11,083 55,229
More than 1 month but within 3 months —(ERETBB=MEA 285 432
More than 3 months but within 6 months =EAENBERNEA 1 59
More than 6 months tiﬁ/\flﬂ 20 172
11,389 55,892
Other payables included approximately RMB3,148,000 (equivalent to (0 HtENZREBEEMNPBEEREAZIER

approximately HK$3,882,000) of engineering fees payable to creditors in the
PRC, approximately RMB3,809,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,673,000)
of amount payable to China United and approximately RMB9,990,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$12,257,000) of amount payable for the
purchase of meltblown production lines for the production of meltblown
materials in comprehensive healthcare business.

#) AR #3,148,000 7T (#HE 7 49 3,882,0007%
J0) ~ FERTAREFIEL AR 3,809,000 (FEE
R #)4,673,00078 7T ) M gt A E B K2R 74
ZEBAMERERELEESENTREBOAR
#9,990,0007T (FHE 7 4712,257,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

29. BONDS 29. &%
Unlisted Unlisted
bond bond
(“Bond I11”7) (“Bond 1V”) Total
FEMES ELETES
(T&Hl) [&#1v]) Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAET
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Hiit(a) (H1zEb))
1 January 2020 RZZT-_ZF—-HA—H 9,990 4,976 14,966
Interest charge MERX 707 95 802
Less: Interest paid B EARALE (701) 71 (772)
Repayment B - (5,000) (5,000)
At 31 December 2020 and R-E-THF
1 January 2021 +-A=+—8K
—E-_—F—H—H 9,996 - 9,996
Interest charge FEMAX 703 - 703
Less: Interest paid A BAAFLE (700) - (700)
At 31 December 2021 R-_T——4F
+=-A=+—-H 9,999 - 9,999
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HREHREBNSTE
At 31 December 2021 R —F
+=A=+—H
Current liabilities MENBE 9,999 - 9,999
At 31 December 2020 R -TF
+=-—A=+—8
Non-current liabilities FEREEE 9,996 - 9,996
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29. BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

()

In August and November 2016, Bond IIl with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$11,000,000 were issued to individual subscribers with an interest rate of 7%
per annum payable semi-annually.

Bond Il will mature and be redeemed by the Company on the third anniversary
of the date of issue correspondingly.

In March 2019, the maturity date of Bond Ill with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$10,000,000 was extended from the third anniversary in August 2019 to
the sixth anniversary of the date of issue in August 2022.

Imputed interest expenses on Bond Il with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 was calculated using effective interest method with an effective
interest rate of 7.04% (2020: 7.04%) per annum after extension.

In February 2017, Bond IV with an aggregate principal amount of HK$5,000,000
was issued to a subscriber through a placing agent with interest rate of 6% per
annum payable semi-annually.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, thee principal amount of
HK$5,000,000 was fully paid. There was no balance of Bond IV outstanding as
at 31 December 2020.

Imputed interest expenses on Bond IV were calculated using effective interest
method with an average effective interest rate of 10.44% per annum for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

30. LOAN FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY AND
ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The loan is unsecured, and non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand (2020: unsecured, and interest bearing and not repayable

within one year).

29. B (#E)

(@)

RZT—R"ENART—A ERZEERIR
BB A AT A S 85 A11,000,0008 T 2 EFH
e REMR7ERE - WASEFI -

BFNERETAREFFEBFR R RbA
RAEEE -

RZZE—NF=F ' A& EFE 410,000,000
TZEHRNZ BB ABETHRRTEZEF
(RZT—NENRA)EREEITH B EN
BEMRZZE-__FEN\A)-

AR£%64510,000,0007%8 T 2 EHINZEEF L
FX DRERERABRFREABREN X
7.04B(ZE=F4F : 7.04F)5E -

RZT—tF=h  EEBRERERARBEA
BT 4858 55,000,000/ L2 BHIV @ 14
FReE:HE - WAGEFEL -

REBE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=1+—HItEFE &K
©%85,000,0008 LEBHEZ c RZTZTF
+ZA=+—A ' BHRIVIERIFHE -

R-TE-TF+-_A=+—8 " BEFIVZHE
F B RABEFREAFGBEREF R
104455 ©

30 REZRERRARKRKEFTZ

B

ZEEFRREER  RERAREREE

—E-THF

DR AR RBAN—F

AEE)
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 6 November 2018, the Company issued convertible notes with
principal amount of HK$365,000,000 (“Convertible Notes”) to New
Alexander Limited (“New Alexander”), which is an independent third
party of the Group.

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Notes was HK$0.16
(subject to adjustments at any time during the period, commencing
from the issue date), the Convertible Notes bear interest at coupon rate
of 2% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on 30 June and
31 December in each year, and will mature on 31 December 2021.
The holder of the Convertible Notes shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes into
ordinary shares of the Company, at any time between the date of issue
of the Convertible Notes and 31 December 2021.

The conversion price of Convertible Notes was adjusted to HK$0.14 on
17 August 2019 and to HK$0.12 on 1 October 2019 upon completion
of rights issue and bonus issue of warrants.

The Convertible Notes contain two components, liability and embedded
derivatives. The liability component is classified as non-current
liabilities and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The embedded derivatives component is classified as non-
current liabilities and carried at fair value. The effective interest rate of
the liability component for the Convertible Notes is 19.39% per annum.

The fair value of the embedded derivatives portion of the convertible
notes that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation
techniques. The Group estimates the fair value of the embedded
derivatives portion based on an independent professional valuation
using the binomial lattice model, which requires various sources
of information and assumptions. The inputs to this model are taken
from observable markets, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing the fair value.

31.
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TRERRE

RZZE—N\F+—AXB  AQEEELEE
2 Y83 % =77 New Alexander Limited([ New
Alexander |) #4778 ¢ %8 /3365,000,0007% 7T
Z AR R ([ AT IR R ) -

AMBRRE 2 S RBRER016/ET (N E
THHEG 2 R ANERRE THE)
HMERERESREFAEHNE  BFF
REBFRAA=ZTARTZA=1+—RBEHK
XNEER-_FE-_—F+-_A=1+—HE
Hi o AIRIRRIBER B AB R I RRERE
TZBEBRE—F - —F+-_A=+—HILH
fAl - BERF S AT R BB 2 2 AP IR D A
SEABRAREEB -

FRSERCHLAR B2 BT TAT FI SR AR e EE 12+ PTRAR
ZE s HIRECR - Z-AENA+LER
—E-NAF+A—ARRARE014B TR
0.1277T °

AgEREaEEmERD - BRERAETT
ETH - BEMSIFRBELFERDEE X
ERERFM R RIZHEHKXATIE - NETT
ETAFDHERERIERBAE  WIRATFE
JIfE - AR BREEROZERENXS
19.39[2

A SERERT IS EE Z ATBRERME -
HANSPTETRRD 2 R HETMERMBET
AR o ANEEREA A A ERAE
TZBILEEGMEGRTASTELARD
ZnVE  BERATERATRER LR
#® o WRA 2B ABBTIREAIBEMS -
WTEERGABEE - ARNEERTERT
EEH—ERRE 2 HIE -
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

On 30 September 2019, the Ultimate Holding Company and New
Alexander entered into the Convertible Notes Transfer Agreement,
pursuant to which the Ultimate Holding Company conditionally
agreed to acquire and the New Alexander conditionally agreed to
sell the convertible notes issued by the Company and held by the
New Alexander in the aggregate outstanding principal amount of
HK$365,000,000, which are convertible into a total of 3,041,666,666
new shares upon full conversion at the conversion price of HK$0.12 per
share, at a total consideration of HK$310,250,000.

The Convertible Notes with an aggregate outstanding principal amount
of HK$105,000,000 and HK$260,000,000 were transferred to the
Ultimate Holding Company on 12 November 2019 and 1 April 2020
respectively.

On 30 June 2020, Convertible Notes with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 were converted into 83,333,333 ordinary shares.
Convertible Notes with the principal amount of HK$355,000,000
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

On 9 June 2021, the Convertible Notes with the principal amount of
HK$115,000,000 were converted into 958,333,333 ordinary shares.

On 23 December 2021, the Convertible Notes with the principal
amount of HK$150,000,000 were converted into 1,250,000,000
ordinary shares.

On 30 December 2021, the Convertible Notes with the principal
amount of HK$90,000,000 were converted into 750,000,000 ordinary

shares.

There was no outstanding Convertible Notes as at 31 December 2021.

31. TERRRE(E)

RZZE—NFNA=+H  &LZERAFE
New Alexanders] 37 7] #2 I8 2= 88 i 17723 -
Bt RERERARBKEREWE -
New Alexander& {14 [F & & A Q& AT 2
77 X BiNew Alexanderts A I A 1% 5 B (B &
[}%0.1278 TR BA H£3,041,666,666/%
TRz TR RR(AREELACRER
365,000,000/ 7C) * 418 /4310,250,000
PETT

KIEE AR £ # % 5 105,000,000 78 7T &
260,000,000/ TTH AR RIZ 2 2 B =
T—NF+— H+ EI&_E_ SEPYH—
HiZE TR

RZEZTFNA=TH
10,000,000 7 7T /) A] # % 2 & & @
A 83,333,333 IR ¥ & J PN /
355,000,000 7T 2 7] #2A% S 45 A
FHZA=+—HBHKRITHE -

585
.

RZFEZ—FXANLB X228
115,000,000 8 st K Al # g IR & &

958,333,333/ L @AY ©

—EZ—F+zZA=+=80"
150,000,000 7 7T & 7] #2 fx 2=
1,250,000,000/% % 8@ A% o

N
S BEEBRR

RZEBEZ—F+=-A=+H K255
90,000,000 & JT B 7] 2 i R IE # 0 &
750,000,000/% 3@ % -

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—8 T&EHX
ITIFER RS ZEE o
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Ft—A=+—HIFFE

The movements of the embedded derivatives portion (at fair value) and
the liability portion (at amortised cost) of the Convertible Notes are as

. BB RE(E)

ABREREZAS
SIfE) RBESS

PTETAE
<&¢%1ﬁﬁm§w§>2“

7 (EAFE

follows: W
Convertible Notes due on 31 December 2021 RZBZ-—F+ZA=+—-HEHPzTH
RE
Embedded
derivatives Liability
portion portion Total
RELTE
TEHS BEDS #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT THET FET
Carrying amount of convertible notes RN-_E-TF—H—H
(with principal amount of AR 2 REE (R
HK$365,000,000) as at 1 January 2020 %Ejéj365 000,000/&7T) 110,348 268,607 378,955
Imputed interest charged to consolidated SRERRTREZ
statement of profit or loss fE LR - 51,478 51,478
Decrease in fair value credited to (\?T\/\?EI SERPEIAZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss NEER LD (61,599) - (61,599)
Conversion of convertible notes (with EMA MR ER (N2 A
principal amount of HK$10,000,000) 10,000,000/ 7T) (2,515) (8,040) (10,555)
Interest paid on convertible notes BEBABRSEEZ BN
converted A E - (100) (100)
Carrying amount of convertible notes N_ZE_TF+_A=+—H
(with principal amount of &_7 Y =Lz
HK$355,000,000) as at 31 December BREEZEAE(RSES
2020 and 1 January 2021 355,000,000/ 7T) 46,234 311,945 358,179
Imputed interest charged to consolidated ~ R4R&IBaREP ZH 2 EH
statement of profit or loss T B - 48,388 48,388
Decrease in fair value credited to SERWMERPAAZAF
consolidated statement of profit or loss B (34,383) - (34,383)
Conversion of convertible notes (with BRI R ER (RN A
principal amount of HK$355,000,000) 355,000,000/ 7T) (11,851) (354,601) (366,452)
Interest paid on convertible notes EEMAIBREEREE MR
converted - (5,732) (5,732)

Carrying amount of convertible notes

ABRRE REE
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LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the

32. HEEE

TRENAEEHEABZ GG OEH

group’s lease liabilities: B :
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
Present Present
value of value of
the lease Total lease the lease Total lease
payments payments payments payments
HEANFRBRE HEMNFEHE HENFHRE HENRESE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FAET FEBT
Within 1 year 1R 9,455 12,429 9,995 14,045
After 1 year but within 2 years 15F12B2F R 8,826 11,555 8,198 12,110
After 2 years but within 5 years 26 {&{B5F K 6,178 5,224 15,889 16,953
15,004 16,779 24,087 29,063
24,459 29,208 34,082 43,108
Less: total future interest expenses J&, : A2 F| BRI L
R (4,749) (9,026)
Present value of lease liabilities A& & &EIRE 24,459 34,082

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 1 August 2020, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of GCINT (HK) Limited (formerly known as SD Limited)
and GCINT Asset Management Limited (formerly known as
SD Asset Management Limited) at a total cash consideration of
HK$10,000,000. GCINT (HK) Limited is a corporations licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”)
to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)
and GCINT Asset Management Limited is a corporation licensed
by the SFC to conduct Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5
(advising on futures contracts) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO.

33. WEMHB QA

(a)

R-T-TFN\A—B - FEEKH
SRERES (EB)BRART I
BAMSHEERAR) RS EARA

E%:EEEBE (AT BAEEAR
RA)BRDHETRA  BREKRER

10,000,00078 7T - £ EERES(BE)
BRRRAEESELF N IPEEHER
ZB8g([BET BEMREREEM
FS/NEFBHFRAEGA([#FH AT
GG ) ETE1E(BHERS) RE2E
(HEANRS)ZHRETHZEE - M
CERREEEEARARAREES
BRBRN IRIEE H M E A&7 458
(RBHREER)  FrE(HES
WIREER)RFIB(EEERE)ZH
EERE A o
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. WIBMIE AR (&)
(@)  (Continued) (@ (%)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GCINT (HK) P2 ERIRE S (BB AR AT R
Limited and GCINT Asset Management Limited acquired as at its CRABREEERERARZAIHMNE
date of acquisition is as follows: ERBERKERB 2 ATFENAT
Net assets acquired: PRS2 B EHE
HK$’000
TET
Intangible assets B EE 1,000
Deposits e 205
Other receivables Hofth e Y 08 1,744
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEEZES 38
Cash and bank balances Re RIBTTHEER 13,695
Trade and other payables B 5 N H M ER IR (208)
16,474
Gain on bargain purchase EEWERE (6,474)
10,000
Satisfied by: TRAR
Cash ik 10,000
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEREEZHSRAFE
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired iz Re NREFEIAR (13,695)
(3,695)
The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of REBEREEE HPRERRERBE YR
approximately HK$6,474,000 in the business combination. #16,474,00078 7T °
Revenue and net loss of approximately HK$90,000 and E-EZ_ZF \A-—RE_ZT_TF
HK$2,445,000, respectively, from GCINT (HK) Limited and TZA=+—HER - 2EERES
GCINT Asset Management Limited were contributed to the Group (BB)VERAAI RS EHNREEERR
for the period from 1 August 2020 to 31 December 2020. PR B2 Bl A A S B B B R e %
##990,000/8 7T % 2,445,000/8 7T
(b)  On 1 September 2020, the Group subscribed 11,700,000 new by RZZE-_ZFTFILA—H  ARAIRE

shares, respresenting 90% of the issued share capital of Hong
Kong GCINT Wealth Management Limited (formerly known as
United Able International Limited) at a total cash consideration of
HK$3,000,000. GCINT Wealth Management Limited is engaged
in the provision of insurance brokerage services.

11,700,000 % ¥ % 10 (FEE M £ 15 BIER
VEEEERAE (A - BEEE
FRATE])Z90%E BEITIA) « I ER
& %3,000,00087C - =K EE
BERATRERREELIRT
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(Continued)

The goodwill of HK$308,000 arising from the acquisition is
attributable to the synergy and economics of scale expected
from combining the operations of the Group and GCINT Wealth

Management Limited.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

33. WIBMIBATEI(E)
b) (#&)
UGB B TEE 4 2 B 2308,00078 7T )9 5K
BEAAEELRSEHARIEERAR
DA Z BB TEHRE & 2 W R M AR

BB S -

PR EERF AL EEFITNT

HK$’000

FHET

Consideration — shares subscription by cash RE— AR 2 R 3,000
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets W PTE R BRI B EHE A HE -SRI T

acquired — shown below (2,991)

Non-controlling interest IR S 299

Goodwill [EES 308

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of GCINT
Wealth Management Limited acquired as at its date of acquisition is

e ERREMEERBRAR ZA
BRI EE KB ERKE B Bz A ER

as follows: N
Net assets acquired: P S 2 BB FE
HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - L RE 39
Trade receivables B 5 MW IE 182
Deposits e 21
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHER 820
Trade and other payables B 5 KA e KA (892)
Accruals fEstE A (azn
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIA G B 8)
Fair value of identifiable net liabilities acquired ~ PAFREETTACAIPTUWE R #RI B EFHE 2 ATE
before subscription completion 9)
Cash received upon completion of subscription — ARREETEAE YGRS 3,000
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired FrULEE R RI B B B2 AT E 2,991
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEEEE 2R RAFRE
Cash consideration paid BERRERE 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired P Re RIREEEAE (3,820)
(820)
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33.

34.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

Revenue and net profit of approximately HK$1,523,000 and
HK$1,038,000, respectively, from GCINT Wealth Management
Limited were contributed to the Group for the period from 1
September 2020 to 31 December 2020.

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Acquisition of the remaining 10% equity interests in GCINT
Wealth Management Limited

On 30 November 2021, the Group acquired 10% equity interest of
GCINT Wealth Management Limited from non-controlling interests
at a total cash consideration of HK$380,000. The Group’s interests in
GCINT Wealth Management Limited increased from 90% to 100%. The
difference between the proportionate share of the carrying amount of
its net assets and the consideration for the additional equity interests of
HK$39,000 have been credited to accumulated loss.

33.

34.

W BB B BB 2 B (48)
b (#)

E-E-_TFNANA—BE_ZE_ZTF
+-A=+—HHM  cERBRHEE
BAERRATD AR EEE B XA
F%91,523,0007% 7T f2 1,038,000/ 7T, ©

BEZRERETZIRS

KESEERVMEEERRATGKRTZ
10% B #E

MN-ZBE-—E+—A=+0  KAEEHIEE
BEZKESERERMEEEARAA10%
KR #E - BIRESRER380,000/8 T ° KN&E
EReEERMEeRAR AT ZERH
90%IE £ 100% ° L Pl G FEERMA
{EEFAIMNZIER(E39,000/8 T2 BN EFED
AT ARFHEE -
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B
Number of
ordinary Share
shares capital
ZEREE R
HK$’000
FHET
Issued and fully paid BBITREE
At 1 January 2020 WoE-TE—F—F 729,792,904 2,060,115
Issue of shares upon conversion of R AR R RIE T TR (D
convertible notes (note 31) (Wi#t31) 83,333,333 10,555
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants TR AR R TR
(note (a)) (Ki5#() 124,045,930 4,962
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-ZZE_ZEF+_A=+—HK
—T-——F—FA—R 937,172,167 2,075,632
Issue of shares upon placement (note (b)) PATT{E R B RS B T AL
(Btatm)) 558,691,195 109,504
Issue of shares upon conversion of convertible PR AR R SRR TR (D
notes (note 31) (Baz31) 2,958,333,333 366,452
At31 December 2021 R-FB-_—F+=-A=1+—8 4,454,196,695 2,551,588
Notes: Mzt -
(@  Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants (@ RWIEIREIFBITRE

(b)

On 16 October 2019, the Company issued a total of 143,755,385 bonus
warrants (“2019 Warrants”) on the basis of one bonus warrant for every five
shares of the Company held by the shareholders on 30 September 2019. The
holders of these 2019 Warrants were entitled to subscribe in cash at any time
during the period commencing from 16 October 2019 to 15 October 2020 (both
dates inclusive) for 143,755,385 new ordinary shares at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.04 per share (subject to adjustment).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 124,045,930 ordinary shares were
issued for cash at the subscription price of HK$0.04 per share pursuant to the
exercise of the 2019 Warrants. There were no warrants outstanding as at 31
December 2020 as they had lapsed on 15 October 2020.

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 25 March 2021, completion of the placing of the 149,691,195 ordinary
shares of the Company at a placing price HK$0.2 per share took place with net
proceeds of approximately HK$29,340,000 raised.

On 17 November 2021, completion of the placing of the 409,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at a placing price HK$0.2 per share took place with net
proceeds of approximately HK$80,164,000 raised.

RZZT—NF+A+-A  ARREBER
—E-NENAZTEESHEEARARRR
DEE—HOFRREF2EEFTEH
143,755,385 AL MR IR IEE ([ ZF —NFR
BEZE]D  WE-_T-NFRBEZZEEA
AT -AFTA+AARE-_ZT-ZF
+A+EB(BREEEWA) IR - BERIZY)
S REBEENR0.04BT (A FRAE)UELRE
143,755,385 FTEimAR o

REBEE-_ZE-_ZFE+-_A=+—BILEE -
124,045,930 L@ B ATHE T — NFR
A B ML R B EER0.0475 LT AR
&  HREBRZZ-TF+AT+RBXRH
MR- -_TE+ - A=+—BAEHKRITE

SRR -
R — R R

MN-ZE-—F=A-+HH NUEEEER0.2
LA EARF]149,691,1958% E R E 2K
EEASFIAFEELA29,340,0004 7T ©

RZZ=_—F+—A++8  LEEESRK.2
78 TLAC & K2 71409,000,000% 38 A% B TR
EEASFHIAFEEL A80,164,0004 7T °
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) approved
by the shareholders on 11 November 2014, under which the directors
of the Company may, at their discretion, offer any eligible participants
(including any directors) of the Company or of any of its subsidiaries
options to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated in the Scheme. For each lot of the share options
granted, the participants will pay a nominal consideration of HK$1. The
period within which the shares must be taken up under an option is
determined by the board of directors of the Company from time to time,
except that such period shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
of the options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of
share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange’s closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the grant.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June 2017,
an ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the scheme mandate limit.
The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise
of all share options granted and to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
7 June 2017. This limit can further be refreshed by the shareholders of
the Company in a general meeting in accordance with the provisions of
the Listing Rules. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options granted to each eligible participant under the Scheme within
any twelve-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to the shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

There were no share options granted and exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. There were no share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

RAREE—BERIR_Z—NF+—A
TRtz BRI ([ 8)) - Rig
Zatdl ARREFARBERAARRAHEE

A ERRZE A ER2EE (BEEM
EF)REBRENRBARRRD - 1HEA

BIREZ A BIFT U 2 R R MGk 1 - 2 EEFL
SHERZBRESNEERETET R
EREREEARND 2 BRBARRZESR

TEEE @ EE RS BABBER
AEIEE 4 -

BREZTEERESETE - Y TELR0)
AABBMD R EIAER I B BB SR
ZWTHE - RARARBEONERE L A H
Al FLE %% 5% AR PR AT 2 S EZ
EINSE

—IEEBEFNEEERE s ERRAERD
RARBE—_ZE—+F XA LHEITZHRE
AFRE FERBR - RREZTEI TR
SR FERE 2B BREREITER - AQF]
AIBETZBRNBERZHERARRRE
—tFNALBEEITRMHZ10% ° IR
B A] AN RIRR SRAR YR £ 1T AR Bl 2 A6 S A R
RAREE—FFH - ™A+ 1@ A HRE -
BT EEERSHE ZEBRERETZR]N
B R ZARQRIAEAI BB BT D

1% &BR o (E{r] 8 18 It PR B8 2 BE AR i ZE 45 %
HRIEARS S I#E— SR T -

HE-_ TR -_T-_TF+_F=+—
BIEFE  WERHSITEERE R
——FRZEZZTFF+-_A=+—H  UE
BERRAE M R TIE -
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37. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. The Group
has no other material obligations for the payment of pension benefits
associated with the MPF Scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the local government, whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the pension fund scheme at a certain percentage
of the employees’ relevant basic salaries. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately.

The Group’s contributions to employee retirement benefits for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were HK$1,411,000 (2020: HK$1,202,000).
As at 31 December 2021, there was no material outstanding
contribution to employee retirement benefits.

37. EERKEF

AEBRBBERIEARES K AZEE
REGED 2 AEEBEMIEM 2B ERLAS
AR BI([RERE]) - RESFS
RRBYSEANER 2 ERHRFURKEE -
RFEESTE  EXREEBHRZESN
¥ © 2 5% A BIF LR - HEEAK
AJA30,000/8 TTRIR BT 2 KA
BB - R Ltz FEEFIN  REETE
H i B2 o5 1 2 5 &I AR 2 BARMAE R 5K
BiE-

REBEHERBS TRARMRY  ARESHE
H 77 BT RR S 2 FE R TR KRG8 &
It ARERREREREAHECETH
DR AREFEELHK - MEtEIELZ

RN SR

REE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE -
AEBEREEERKBANFEEL 2 HAE
1,411,000 7 ( ZZF ZF4F : 1,202,000
) M E-_—F+-_f=+—H W&
BARZMNZEERNERIMHK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ2 —F - —F+ =1 —HIFE

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as

38. BAEIE

RZBEZ—FR_ZF-_FF+-_A=+—
B KAGRA SRR P EHREE 2 E A%

follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Production sharing contract: EmaKam :
— Contracted but not provided for —BRTABREE 17,758 16,863

In addition to the above, Can-Elite entered into the Fifth Modification
Agreement with China United regarding the modified PSC on 10 August
2020. Pursuant to the Fifth Modification Agreement, the exploration
period applied to Area A shall begin from the date of commencement of
the implementation of the contract, to the date of filing to the relevant
authorities under the Chinese Government for the Overall Development
Program. Further, the exploration period of Area B has been extended
for two more years, from the original expiry date (being 31 March 2020)
to 31 March 2022. During the extended exploration period, at least 17
wells are required to be completed in Area B with the performance of
relevant exploration works such as fracturing, drainage and extraction.
In order to complete the above exploration works, Can-Elite is required
to utilise at a minimum of HK$42,943,000 (RMB35,000,000) equivalent
in US dollars towards Area B, as the expected minimum exploration
expenditure amount.

The Group has applied for an extension of the exploration period of
Area B under the Fifth Modification Agreement with China United. The
negotiation is still in progress with China United to agree on the terms
and conditions, and based on past experience, the management of the
Company considered that the chance to extend the exploration period is
highly probable.

BrbaiEoh  HERERN T _TFN\A+
HERBHIERERDKE RGN ERXIE
s o BIEBEFRIXER Wik - ARBARY
FHERARMABNITE B - EERE
BESARATEBNEBIPIERNBE S
Al o b BEZHEHELERZWE -
HEANIHE - -_TF=A=+—HIt
REZE-_F=A=+—H8  -REEZH
HEN  BRAIREACEFEAZL++
O - WETEREREEBEEER - A
TSR Rl ENRIES - HEEEREHBEIE
B2 142,943,000 7T ( A R 35,000,000
TEENET  EAEEHNREKRER
HER o

REE D AP AR RERRIER] HEE
TEBREYIRER o B A 8 A Bt A6 B AR A
MEmNEETY - BERBBTER A0
AEEERRERYFRMOBEERX -
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39. CONTINGENCIES

Environmental contingencies

The Group has not incurred any significant expenditure for environment
remediation and is currently not involved in any environmental
remediation. In addition, the Group has not accrued any amounts for
environmental remediation relating to its operations. Under existing
legislation, management believes that there are no probable liabilities
that will have a material adverse effect on the financial position or
operating results of the Group. The PRC government, however, has
moved and may move further towards more rigorous enforcement
of applicable laws and towards the adoption of more stringent
environmental standards. Environmental liabilities are subject to
considerable uncertainties which affect the Group’s ability to estimate
the ultimate cost of remediation efforts. These uncertainties include:
(i) the exact nature and extent of the contamination at various sites
including, but not limited to mines, concentrators and smelting plants
irrespective of whether they are operating, closed or sold; (ii) the extent
of required cleanup efforts; (iii) varying costs of alternative remediation
strategies; (iv) changes in environmental remediation requirements;
and (v) the identification of new remediation sites. The amount of such
future costs is not determinable due to such factors as the unknown
magnitude of possible contamination and the unknown timing and
extent of the corrective actions that may be required. Accordingly,
the outcome of environmental liabilities under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot be reasonably estimated at present,
and could be material.

39. RAEE

REREEA
AEEZESREARRBPELEALL
B RITMR 8 2 BT IR EH M T o 1o -
KEBEBREEBTIRREREUGES
B o IRIBIRITAD - ERERETESTE
e ANEBMBRR NG EEEFTEAT
P alE - A PEBFCEREH
BEEE — PRSI TIE A 2 A D] - WERNE
BEEZIRREE - RRAIAZBEGFLEE
TOTEERER - ENEBEGTSERR
HERAREBERAZEN B THEREZR
) EESH - BEATRANEER B
R B SRS BTN BT E
SRR EMIZE © (VTR ETZE
BIEZRRE (i) SBERIE B2  (iv)
RIBRMERTZNE  RVERFEES
o A AIRESS IR E AR RATRREL
MEENRERNENEEARASERE &
ERBETHERRBA - #Ut - RIFZEZER
RRZIBEFRREEAFREZ RRBEERE
EEBRIAIEHE - BEAETHEK -
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. AR S
RATEEK B AT (BIARDT 2 @) >
B ESRRZ HENGA AR - U
UL IR EE - BEAREE BRI
ZRINR S EBEN T XRE

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

A HEBLZRS
RAEE - AEBERAE XGRS MR

(A) Transactions with related parties
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties in the normal course of business: Bl 7 2 2 S
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET

Ultimate Holding Company BAERAR
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Loan interest BRFE - 10,108
Imputed interest on convertible notes AR RIE 2 (HE RS 48,388 51,478
Ultimate Controlling Party BRAREST
Loan interest BERFE - 3,867
Commission income VEEAL N 236 -
Handling fee income FEBRA 1 -
Interest income on IPO financing BERAAEEREZFEWA 33 -
Salaries paid SRS 738 738
Ms. Li Dan (“Ms. Li”) (note (v)) ER Lz (ELx ) (Hiw)
Commission income AalA 512 -
Handling fee income FEBRA 1 -
Interest income on IPO financing (note (viii)) B X AFREERVE 2 F2UMA

(Hsaz(viii)) 57 -
Commission income by provision of insurance }E R 4% 40 R T 2 S WA

brokerage service (note (vii)) (B &t wvii)) 3,269 1,030

Ms. Shao Yanxia (“Ms. Shao”) (note (vi)) BReaEE 2+ ([ Bzt ) (A e i)
Commission income VG ON 13 -
Handling fee income FEEBRA 1 -
Interest income on IPO financing (note (viii)) B X AFREERVE 2 F2UA

(Hsaz(viii)) 23 -
Salaries paid [EANE A 1,128 831
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Outstanding balances with related parties

40. BB AR5 (&)

(B) EERAEES 2 EMAREEBLER

2021 2020
—E——F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TETT
Loan from KETHIER ZER

— Ultimate Holding Company (note (i)) — RN B (AT 5T () 97,500 97,500

— Ultimate Controlling Party — BRI (e i) K (iii))
(notes (ii) and (iii)) 66,255 64,133

Loans interest payable to JERTFIT5 2 BT

— Ultimate Holding Company — R AT 10,010 10,155

— Ultimate Controlling Party — ERAEEEEIT 4,222 4,087
Commission receivables by provision of MF L TR R A 40 IR TS

insurance brokerage service with Ms. Li JEMER 2 & - 1,030
Accounts payables — cash client’s accounts  FEERF —HEEFLIRN

— Ultimate Controlling Party — BRI 2,709 -

— Ms. Li — 74 7,166 -

— Ms. Shao —ffZ+ 11 -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests of & — M B A RIFERER 2

a subsidiary (note (iv)) KIE(HaEdiv) 17,168 16,697
Convertible notes held by Ultimate Holding — &x44ER% A A ATHE 2 AT IR IR

Company

— liability portion —BEHS - 311,945
Convertible notes held by the Ultimate BREAER A RIPTHS 2 TR SRR

Holding Company

— embedded derivatives —ANETETA - 46,234

Notes: it

(i) The loans were sub-ordinated in nature which were unsecured, interest iy EXRBRELE ER-_Z-_ZTFRE
bearing at 12% to 24% per annum and not repayable within one year in HHR - REFE12EZ24E5 B RBA
2020 and changed to unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on R—FREE IR T —F—H—
demand from 1 January 2021. HEESEER  REREREKRER -

(i) The Ultimate Controlling Party of the Company is Mr. Pan Jibiao. (i) ARRBZEREIEGT RBEREE -

(iii)  The loans were sub-ordinated in nature which were unsecured, interest (i) EFEBEEME  HRAZZ-ZTFAE
bearing at 1% per month and not repayable within one year in 2020 and iR RAFIRI B BRBAR—FR
changed to unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand EE UTHR-—T-—F—-A—HZFA
from 1 January 2021. mIER . R REREREE -

(iv)  The amounts due to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary are (iv), RZZT—_—F EN-—BENBRFEZIHE

unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand in 2021 (2020:
unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable within one year).

BRERFURTEER AR RARE
REE(ZE-2F  BER 28 RE
AR —FREE ) °
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Ms. Li is the spouse of Mr. Pan Jibiao.
Ms. Shao is the executive director of the Company.

On 10 November 2020, GCINT Wealth Management Limited (“GCINT
WM”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the client agreement dated 10 November 2020 (“Insurance Brokerage
Agreement”) in relation to the packaged insurance brokerage services
provided by GCINT WM to Ms. Li in procuring insurance policies to be
taken out with third party insurer(s) with Ms. Li, who is the spouse of the
Ultimate Controlling Party, pursuant to which GCINT WM provided a
packaged insurance brokerage services to Ms. Li for a term of 12 months
commencing from 10 November 2020 and expiring on 9 November 2021.
The transactions contemplated under the Insurance Brokerage Agreement
constitute a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For details of the transactions contemplated under
the Insurance Brokerage Agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 19 February 2021 and the Company’s circular dated
24 May 2021.

During the Year, GCINT (HK) Limited (“GCINT (HK)”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in its ordinary and usual
course of business, have granted a number of loans for the purpose of
acquiring securities in the initial public offerings on the Stock Exchange
(“IPO Loans”) to, among others, Ms. Li and Ms. Shao which constituted
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For details of the IPO Loans, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 30 November 2021.

(C) Key management personnel compensation

40. BBARZ ()

(B) RN zEMIRMEBELR(ET)
Mk ()
V) FERERBEREEZ RS-
Vi) BREARARZHITES -

Vi) RZZEZZTF+—A+H ARAFRZ
FrEMBRAACEERUEEESR
BRAFRI([&EBRRMEER]) BRERK
e g Y g VA= e
TFEF+—A+TANERH®E([REBE
LBHEl)  NEEHSEEREEER
MELZTRHEZERBELRKRT - UMA
FE=FRRARBRE - Bt - R
BHEEERZLLRHEZERRERL
R =T =_TF+—A+HRBREZ=
T—F+—ANABER AP+
A BRI ETRAE14AK - REBEL
HEE T RETHRZEXARNARNE
BR S  ARRBELIHEE THETT
MR GFHE F2HARRAMAR-T
T ZATIENRAERARF A
BT —FRAZTMNEREK -

(vii) RAFE » KRB ZHEEZENBERF
SRERES(FR)BRAR(2ER
BEZDPRERSR—REBBRES -
ER(EHEBE)FTRERBRERTS
BER BREBMRXAERAREES
BiEmESR([BERAREEER]) &
BRADRFR EHHRAFI4AZHETZ
BMERH - AHERRAHAEEERNF
B FLRAARARBAHRE-_T-_—F
T—A=tRZEH-

(C) EEEEEKERM

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHT

Salaries, allowances and e R RHMEYF
other benefits in kind 5,724 5,274
Discretionary bonus EYIBTEAL - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 108 103
5,832 5,377

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 12).

wMe e AT B ITRAI(HiE12) °
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41. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. A EIEBEBBEMR R E
2021 2020
—B——F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER e = 2
Interest in subsidiaries, net RHTB AR 2= - TR - -
Right-of-use asset EREERE 22,603 31,956
Rental deposit HEZe 2,622 2,259
25,225 34,217
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries, net EUHTEB A RIFRIE - FEE 87,091 33,351
Other receivables H A e GRTE 4,828 2,268
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHS 17,457 9,179
109,376 44,798
Current liabilities REBAE
Bonds BEH 9,999 -
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company KB REERDRZER 107,510 -
Convertible notes AT
— liabilities portion —BEHS - 311,945
Convertible notes AIRAR
— embedded derivatives —NETETIA - 46,234
Lease liabilities HEaE 8,765 7,590
Other payables H e K08 10,144 2,808
136,418 368,577
Net current liabilities REEEFHE (27,042) (323,779)
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41. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

—FF A= —HIFE

FINANCIAL POSITION  41.

DR EEMBRRERE)

(Continued)
2021 2020
—EBZ—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABAE (1,817) (289,562)
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Bonds &5 - 9,996
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company REREIZERAB 2 ER - 107,655
Other payables o fEATRUE - 1,102
Lease liabilities HEBE 14,943 23,479
14,943 142,232
Net liabilities EEFH (16,760) (431,794)
Capital and reserves BRREHE
Share capital [N 2,551,588 2,075,632
Reserves (e (2,568,348) (2,507,426)
Capital deficiency BEAE U (16,760) (431,794)

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Pan Jibiao
sBur
DIRECTOR
EFE

Shao Yanxia

ARREEE
DIRECTOR
EE

ARBMBERAREEERN T -__F=
AZ+HBH#ERBERE TR THIES
REREE
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41. REEEMBRRERE)

(Continued)
Note: et
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of reserves between BRAARAEREEHORENRFR 2 EBFER
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below: ST
Special Accumulated
capital reserve losses Total
BRIEAGHEE Ey i et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET TET
(note 41(a))
(Hizt4a1(a)
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_ZTF—-HA—H 579,799 (3,009,684) (2,429,885)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year FEBEIRZEMSEHE - (77,541) (77,541)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 i - iJr A=+—H
k_F-_—4F—HA—H 579,799 (3,087,225) (2,507,426)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year FEBERZEMAS LS - (60,922) (60,922)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—H 579,799 (3,148,147) (2,568,348)

Pursuant to the reductions in capital of the Company in 2003 (“2003 Capital
Reduction”), 2009 (“2009 Capital Reduction”) and 2012 (“2012 Capital Reduction”),
the Company has undertaken that in the event of its making any future recoveries
in respect of the provisions against certain specific subsidiaries as at 31 December
2002, 2008 and 2011, respectively, all such recoveries up to maximum amounts of
HK$367,938,000 in relation to 2003 Capital Reduction, HK$130,663,000 in relation
to 2009 Capital Reduction and HK$171,025,000 in relation to 2012 Capital Reduction,
will be credited to a special capital reserve of the Company, which shall not be
treated as realised profits for the purpose of section 79B of the predecessor Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) and shall be treated as an un-distributable reserve of
the Company for the purpose of section 79C of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32).

No credit transfer to this special capital reserve was made by the Company in 2021 and
2020.

BAARRIRZZE=F([ZTT=FRAHR])
ZZENF((ZZTNEFERAER]) R=F _i(f_
T FRAEIR]) 2 BAERBAE - ANA RS A&
# o WARARRARBERARD BN ZTT_F -
B\ FRZF——FF+A=+—BHRETEE
MEBARRHZEE  AAZSRESE(R=-F
T=FRAEIR M S &= A367,938,0008 7T © HE=
TENFRAYIRIMNE &= £130,663,000757C * 5t
ZE - FRAEIRME &= A171,025,000% 7T) #
BARRRZEREAREER - ERREB R RHED
(B32F)E7IBEMS A EWRACERHH - MAE
MJ?%%QT\ Bl (328 ) B7ICIHEIEBA AR ZT
DIREEERIE -

RIZEZ—FRZZTZFF  ARAHESHERSE
FrBI B AR -
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42. RESERVES

(@

(b)

(o)

Special capital reserve

Pursuant to 2009 Capital Reduction and 2012 Capital Reduction,
the amounts of HK$492,172,000 and HK$87,627,000 by which
the capital reductions exceed the total accumulated losses of
permanent nature of the Company as at 31 December 2008
and 31 December 2011, have been credited to a special capital
reserve of the Company which shall not be treated as realised
profits for the purpose of section 79B of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) and shall be treated as an
un-distributable reserve of the Company for the purpose of section
79C of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries and foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies in note 3(g) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company, as calculated
under the provisions of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622), with reference to section 79B of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) was Nil
(2020: Nil).

42, f#E

(@)

(b)

(o)

BHRIERFHE
BE_ZTNFRAFRER -F—=F
BRASHIR - BRAER A BB AR E R =
ZENF+_A=+—HBR=ZZT—F
+Z A=+ —RAZKAE R EEERE
2 8843492,172,0007% 7T % 87,627,000
BITEBARRE ZFRIERFEER
TRRBE SR RUEDI (328 ) B 79BKM
ETEHRARER RS - MARRS
BREHEDI(FE32F ) B7ICIKIERAER
Bl Z DA DR ERIE -

BE R
ERREREMERESINNEARR
BINETE 2 TR PTEE 2B 2=
# o RBDRBEEMBRERMEIQ
Pl SRt IREIE ©

GRS
RZBEZ—F+_A=+—8 " di#tn
K TARBEE A GEEEREN
BB RNTUEH(F622F ) FE6HD 215
XU EREBRAGEH (F328)F
7BEETE) BE(ZEZFF - &) o
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

43.

BMEXBELAE R

TRHANAEEREXBHMELZAEE
B SRASNFREEE - BEXEBHE
EZBEREZSENAREGA RS RERTD
DEAREEBHEREZRAESRNEIARRK

BERE -

Convertible ~ Convertible Loan from Loan from
notes - notes - Ultimate Ultimate
Lease Other embedded liabilities Holding  Controlling Interest

liabilities horrowing Bonds  derivatives portion  Borrowings Company Party payable Total

TERRE REER REER

-RE  TEREE BRAE BH
HEER AR &% fieI8  -88%7 B2 ZER PAE EAFE &it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T T Tin T T T T

(Note 32) (Note 27) (Note 29) (Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 30) (Note 30)

(W) Wiv) (W) (1) (Ws1) (Hii30) (its0)
At 1 January 2020 R-3-%%-8-B 1,805 11,059 14,966 110,348 268,607 25,000 10,000 - 247 442,032
New leases entered i 37,652 - - - - - - - - 37,852
Reclassification ENOE - - - - - - 47 - 47) -
Financing cash flows BERERE (5,770) - 5,000 - - (25,000) 87,500 60,676 - 112,406
Interest paid ERAE (2,728) - (172) - - - - - 20m) (5511)
Interest payable ERFE - - - - (100) - - - - (100)
Interest expenses HEREx 2728 - 802 - 51478 - 10,108 3,867 1811 70,794
Changes in far value ATERE - - - (61,599) - - - - - (61,599)
Conversion of convertible notes ERuhRZE - - - 2,515) (8,040) - - - - (10,555)
Exchange adjustment Ei A% 195 690 - - - - - 3,677 - 4562

At31 December 2020 and 3
1January 2021 TZA=+-Bk
“F--5-h-B 34,082 11,749 9,996 46,234 311,945 - 107,655 66,220 - 589,881
New leases entered g 279 - - - - - - - - 279
Financing cash flows HARSRE 9.961) - - - - (20,000 - - - 29961)
Addition AE - - - - - 20,000 - - - 20,000
Interest paid ERfE (4300 - (700) - - (65) - - - (5,063)
Interest payable IS, - - - - (5732) - (145) - - (5,877)
Interest expenses R 4300 - 703 - 48,388 65 - - - 53,456
Changes in fair value ATEEY - - - (34,383) - - - - - (34,383)
Conversion of convertible notes ~ EHTARZE - - - (11,851) (354,601) - - - - (366,452)
Exchange adjustment S 59 389 - - - - - 2257 - 2,705
At31 December 2021 iS4

+-A=t+-8 24,459 12,138 9,999 - - - 107,510 70477 - 224,583
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Financial Summary

P HE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SECF T FHE T-NE TN\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THT FHETT FET FET
Results ES
Revenue Yak 36,931 69,766 7,587 9,109 16,669
Loss before tax MR AT E 1B (64,812) (64,738) (505,733) (657,874) (403,642)
Income tax 5% 2,383 111 108,572 127,083 99,495
Loss for the year FEEE (62,429) (64,627) (397,161) (530,791) (304,147)
Other comprehensive (expenses) FEHM2E(FEXL)
income for the year WA (5,288) (6,577) 3,197 (33,081) 66,834
Total comprehensive expenses & 2 T8 2 858
for the year (67,717) (71,204) (393,964) (563,872) (237,313)
Loss for the year attributed to: ~ FE(EFE E518 -
Owners of the Company i/NEIEZE N (67,248) (64,369) (396,791) (530,452) (303,913)
Non-controlling interests FEIE I S (469) (258) (370) (339) (234)
(67,717) (64,627) (397,161) (530,791) (304,147)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=B —T-FF —“T-hEFE T N\F —TLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET T TR TET FET
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Total assets BERLE 366,232 361,908 190,954 690,821 1,348,896
Total liabilities BERE (341,480) (745,016) (518,688) (652,371) (746,669)
Total equity (capital deficiency) —#8#% (& A E54L) 24,752 (383,108) (327,734) 38,450 602,227
Non-controlling interests EEl g £ 5,658 4,849 4,904 4,534 4,195
Equity (capital deficiency) EANEIE/ 2PN
attributable to owners of R (B AEAL)
the Company 30,410 (378,259) (322,830) 42,984 606,422
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